Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE AGENDA
Date:

Thursday, 7 October 2021

Time:

6.00 pm

Venue:

Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

You
can
view
the
agenda online by using
a smart phone camera
and scanning the code
below:

29 September 2021
PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
i)
ii)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Interests

3.

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

4.

First Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2021/22 (Pages 9 48)

5.

Medium Term Financial Plan Refresh (Pages 49 - 68)

6.

Vision Derbyshire (Pages 69 - 112)

7.

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review & Focus on Universal Credit
Implications (Pages 113 - 118)

8.

Review and Renewal of Torr Vale Mill Memorandum of Understanding (Pages 119 172)

9.

Safer Walk and Ride Initiative (Pages 173 - 200)

10.

To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

PART 2
11.

To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 201 - 202)
(Paragraph 3, 7 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the

prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. )
12.

Joint Venture for the Provision of Facilities Management and Housing Repairs
(Pages 203 - 246)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

13.

HIF Update
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER
Membership of The Executive
Councillor A McKeown (Chair)
Councillor A Barrow
Councillor J Todd

Councillor D Greenhalgh (Vice-Chair)
Councillor F Sloman

Agenda Item 3
High Peak Borough Council
THE EXECUTIVE
Meeting:

Thursday, 5 August 2021 at 6.00 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens,
Buxton

Present:

Councillor A McKeown (Chair)
Councillors A Barrow, D Greenhalgh, F Sloman and J Todd
Councillors Kemp and Thrane were also in attendance.
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Ashton

22/12

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda Item 2)
There were no declarations made.

22/13

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 1 July 2021 be
approved as a correct record.

22/14

FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT & PERFORMANCE
REVIEW 2020/21
(Agenda Item 4)
The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March (“Fourth
Quarter 2020/21”). The report was considered by the Corporate Select
Committee on 26 July 2021. The position was summarised as follows:
Subject
Finance

Headline
The Finance headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:
Performance against Budget


At the Quarter Four stage the General Fund provisional
outturn for 2020/21 is an underspend of £4,921,342
(including £3,360,640 of s31 grants, in respect of
Business Rates reliefs, received in advance to be applied
in 2021/22)

Efficiency Programme


At Quarter 4 £210,000 in savings have been achieved
against the 2020/21 revised efficiency target of £257,000
(General Fund)

Page 3

Reference
Appendix A

The Executive
Thursday, 5 August 2021

Housing Revenue Account


The Housing Revenue Account is in surplus (against
budget) by £2,240,494 at the Quarter Four (provisional
outturn) stage.

Capital Programme





The General Fund Capital Programme budget for
2020/21 as revised is £2.7 million. The outturn is
£2.8 million, representing an overspend of £0.12
million at year end.
The HRA Programme for 2020/21 as revised is £3.97
million. The outturn is £3.73 million which represents a
£0.25 million underspend.

Treasury Management




Cash investments held at 31st March 2021 totalled £28.4
million.
Council borrowing at 31st March 2021 totalled £66.8
million.
The Council’s net interest general fund budget is in
surplus by £32,306 with a £7,984 deficit on the HRA

Revenue Collection




Procure
ment

97.83% of Council Tax was collected by 31st March 2021,
compared to 98.41% for the same period last year.
98.11% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March
2021 compared with 98.39% for the same period last
year.
At the end of Quarter Four the value of sundry debt over
60 days old was £182,978 which compares to £162,981
at 31st March 2020

The Procurement headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:

Appendix B

 14 procurement activities were completed

 The Procurement forward plan includes 88
procurement activities for completion/start in 2021/22
(either HPBC only or joint)


Performa
nce

At the 31st March 2021, 62% of procurement activity
undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council paid
95% of its invoices within 30 days

The Performance headlines for the Fourth Quarter
are:

67% of the key performance indicators met target,
with 41% of measures performing better than last
year
 The Council received 86 complaints, 328 comments
and 174 compliments
Page 4 in the Fourth Quarter.

Appendix C

The Executive
Thursday, 5 August 2021

Options considered:
Detailed analysis is contained within the appendices.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Fourth Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of the
covering report be noted;

2. That the allocation of the surplus on the General Fund Revenue
Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.11)
be approved;
3. That the proposal to carry forward unspent revenue budget as
described in Appendix A (Paragraph 2.14) be approved;
4. That the proposals to carry forward unspent capital budget as set
out in Appendix A (Paragraph 6.5 and 7.5) be approved; and
5. The write offs set out in Appendix D of the report be approved.
22/15

UPDATE ON AIR QUALITY MONITORING
(Agenda Item 5)
The Executive considered the latest Air Quality Data across the High Peak
and measures being proposed and undertaken in relation to the two
declared Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) as part of the Air Quality
Action Plan. The report was considered by the Community Select
Committee on 21 July 2021. The additional recommendation from
Community Select Committee was accepted and it was noted that although
the Council has a statutory duty to declare an Air Quality Management Area
where required, it has limited powers to implement the action plan and relies
on partnership working.
Options considered:
There were no alternative options to consider.
RESOLVED:
1. That the updated information and data be noted;
2. That the potential for the declaration of an AQMA in Fairfield in 2022

in the event that monitoring results and data analysis from 2021
support this be noted;
3. That early exploration of mitigation of compromised air quality in the

potential AQMA on Fairfield Road be noted.
22/16

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR
(Agenda Item 6)

Page 5

The Executive
Thursday, 5 August 2021

The Executive considered a draft policy covering the Council’s response to anti
social behaviour and also a handbook that is intended to provide relevant advice to
the residents of High Peak, which had been produced in response to a commitment
to review the approach to Community Safety to ensure that it is supportive in
fighting crime and anti-social behaviour. The report had been considered by the
Community Select Committee on 21 July 2021 which had requested that hard
copies of the handbook be made available in libraries and customer contact
centres. It was also suggested that a briefing note be produced outlining what
controls are in place around the use of drones, including any approvals required for
use on council land.
Options considered:

As detailed at paragraph 5 of the report.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Council’s responsibilities with respect to anti-social behaviour be
noted;
2. That the draft Anti-Social Behaviour Policy be approved; and

3. That the Anti-Social Behaviour Handbook be noted and assistance
be given in raising awareness of the handbook within the community.

22/17

TO RESOLVE THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM
THE MEETING FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS BECAUSE THERE MAY BE
DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN
PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.
(Agenda Item 7)
RESOLVED:
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
items because there may be disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 972.

22/18

TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 8)
RESOLVED:
That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2021 be approved as
a correct record.

22/19

LIFT REPLACEMENT PROCUREMENT
(Agenda Item 9)
The Executive gave approval to proceed with the procurement of
appointment of main contractor to deliver the Lift replacement program and
that the award of the contract
be made
Page
6 via a Individual Executive Decision.

The Executive
Thursday, 5 August 2021

22/20

APPLICATION FOR WRITE OFF OF NON- RECOVERABLE DEBTS
(Agenda Item 10)
The Executive approved applications to write off balances which are deemed non
recoverable.

The meeting concluded at 6.15 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
The Executive
7 October 2021
TITLE:

First Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance
Review 2021/22

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICERS :

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (2021/22 – First Quarter (Financial Report)
 Appendix B (2021/22 – First Quarter (Procurement Report)
 Appendix C (2021/22 – First Quarter (Performance Report)

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th June (“First
Quarter 2021/22”)

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that the Executive:


Note the First Quarter 2021/22 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this
covering report.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after
considering service activity up to the end of the First Quarter (i.e. 30th June
2021).

3.2

Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

3.3

The position can be summarised as follows:
1 9
Page

Headline

Reference

The Finance headlines for the First Quarter are:
Performance against Budget
 At the First Quarter stage the General Fund outturn for 2021/22 is
projected to be £1,784,680 underspent.
Efficiency Programme
 At Quarter One £67,870 of savings have been taken against the
2021/22 revised efficiency target of £101,560 (General Fund).
Housing Revenue Account

The Housing Revenue Account is predicted to be in surplus (against
budget) by £119,525 at the Quarter One stage.
Capital Programme
 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2021/22 as
revised is £8.44 million. The projected outturn is currently to
budget.
 The HRA Programme for 2021/22 as revised is £7.88 million. The
projected outturn is currently to budget.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30 June 2021 totalled £27.6 million.
 Council borrowing at 30 June 2021 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest costs are forecast to be as budgeted for
both the HRA and for the general fund.
Revenue Collection
 28.78% of Council Tax was collected by 30 June 2021, compared to
28.47% for the same period last year (and 29.64% in 2019/20)
 29.10% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 2021
compared with 22.51% for the same period last year (and 30.01% in
2019/20)
 At the end of Quarter One the value of sundry debt over 60 days old
was £252,450 which compares to £270,240 at 30 June 2020.
The Procurement headlines for the First Quarter are:
 19 procurement activities were completed
 The Procurement forward plan includes 52 procurement activities for
completion/start in 2021/22 (either HPBC only or joint)
 At the 30 June 2021, 43% of procurement activity undertaken was
on the forward plan and the Council paid 96% of its invoices within
30 days
The Performance headlines for the First Quarter are:
 66% of the key performance indicators on track, with 35% better
than the previous year.
 The Council received 30 complaints, 925 comments and 19
compliments in the First Quarter.

Appendix A

Subject
Finance

Procurement

Performance

Appendix B

Appendix C

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the
subject of this report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Detailed Analysis is contained within the appendices

Page2 10

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
None

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
None

6.7

External Consultation
None

6.8

Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

JOHN BETTS
Interim Executive Director (Finance and Revenues & Benefits)
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Appendices A-C

Contact details

Keith Pointon
01538 395400 Ext. 4193
Vanessa Higgins
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

3 11
Page

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

2021/22
First Quarter
Financial
Review

1

Page 13

1. Background and Introduction
1.1.

In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the
first such report for 2021/22.

1.2.

The report summarises overall financial performance for 2021/22 with particular
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific
considerations are as follows:


General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and the funding received by the Council.



Alliance Environmental Services (Section 3) – highlights the performance of
the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste and Fleet services.



Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast.



Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.



General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update to
Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.



HRA Capital Programme (Section 7 ) – provides an update to Members on
progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans.



Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of
investments and borrowings.



Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the
Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

2

Page 14

2. General Fund Revenue Account
2.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General
Fund Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Alliance Leadership Team
Audit
ICT
Human Resources
Member Services
Property Services
Benefits
Planning Applications
Building Control
Customer Services
Legal Services
Electoral Services
Licensing and Land Charges
Regeneration
Communities and Cultural
Housing Strategy**
Transformation
Community Safety and Enforcement
Finance & Procurement
Revenues
Corporate Finance*
Waste Collection
Street Scene
Leisure Services
Horticulture
Environmental Health

£
58,290
10,240
573,210
69,480
249,990
92,720
(168,470)
(404,180)
56,140
144,390
30,510
59,470
(317,750)
162,980
272,270
12,200
21,250
109,580
170,820
(292,750)
5,472,380
2,013,320
449,480
729,540
342,090
(30,440)

£
38,060
3,210
573,210
49,480
211,980
125,720
(178,970)
(406,050)
86,140
96,800
27,510
56,470
(317,750)
165,820
251,510
(8,420)
17,890
85,180
143,970
(161,440)
5,661,480
1,952,770
444,410
562,560
300,450
(30,440)

£
(20,230)
(7,030)
(20,000)
(38,010)
33,000
(10,500)
(1,870)
30,000
(47,590)
(3,000)
(3,000)
2,840
(20,760)
(20,620)
(3,360)
(24,400)
(26,850)
131,310
189,100
(60,550)
(5,070)
(166,980)
(41,640)
-

Contributi
on to /
(Use of)
Earmarke
d
Reserves
£
3,000
(5,380)
(60)
(76,880)
(780)
-

Net Total of Services

9,886,760

9,751,550

(135,210)

-

(215,310)

(80,100)

(215,310)

Service (with staff*)

Net Interest
Funding:
- external
- reserves contribution to/(from)
general contingency
use of carry forward from 20/21
earmarked
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit

Expected
Outturn
2021/22

2021/22
Budget

Variance

Net
Variance

£
(20,230)
(7,030)
(20,000)
(38,010)
33,000
(10,500)
(1,870)
30,000
(47,590)
(3,000)
2,840
(20,760)
(26,000)
(3,360)
(24,400)
(26,850)
131,310
189,100
(60,550)
(5,130)
(243,860)
(42,420)
-

1,784,050

1,784,050

-

11,670,810

11,535,600

(135,210)

-

(7,358,540)

(9,008,010)

(1,649,470)

(4,285,760)
(26,510)

(4,285,760)
(26,510)

-

80,100

80,100

-

(1,784,680)

(1,784,680)

-

(1,784,680)

(1,649,470)

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance (except for the staff budget of the Carelink service
within Housing Strategy which for operational reasons are included within the Service).
** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account

3

Page 15

2.2.

A revenue budget of £11,644,300 was set for 2021/22. In accordance with
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £26,510 in unused budgets from
2020/21 has been authorised.
Communities (£20,000): unspent budget in regard to development of Victoria
Hall.
Member Services (£4,010): in respect of Councillor Initiative grants not issued in
2020/21.
Customer Services (£2,500): unspent budget for staff uniforms pending reopening of receptions..
This brings the 2021/22 budget to £11,670,810.

2.3.

The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.4.

The Q1 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 2021/22 is
£9,886,130. This represents a projected surplus for the year of £1,784,680.

2.5.

There are two service areas with projected significant underspend (>£50,000):

2.6.



Waste Collection (£60,550 underspend); Income levels from recycling and
trade waste activities are anticipated to generate an additional £40,000 in the
year. A further £20,000 saving in fees payable for disposal is forecast. These
savings may be eroded by the continuing cost pressure Covid-19 has placed
on the contractor.



Leisure Services (£243,860 underspend); The MTFP included £432,000 in
anticipated leisure centre Covid-19 support in 2021/22. Costs at Quarter One
are forecast to be £170,000 below that level for the year. Government grant of
£60,00 towards this cost was received in 2020/21 and placed into an
earmarked reserve to be applied in 2021/22. This will be drawn down during
the year together with a further £16,000 to cover costs associated with the ongoing Future Leisure Provision review.

There are two service areas with projected significant overspends (>£50,000).


Revenues (£131,310 overspend); Covid-19 has significantly impacted the
Recovery service with income generated from summons activity predicted to
be some £89,000 below original expectations. Further budget pressure in the
region of £42,000 is predicted in local taxation from the level of spending on
external services to support billing processes.



Corporate Finance (£189,100 overspend); Based on demand to date
income from the Borough’s spring water franchise is anticipated to be falling
£240,000 short of annual budget. This is being offset by a predicted £50,000
saving against the Authority’s staffing budget.
4

Page 16

2.7.

The net interest costs, as detailed in section 8, are currently forecast to budget.

2.8.

The level of funding anticipated for the year is currently forecast £1,729,570 above
that budgeted due to the following:
Business Rates (£1,649,470):


The Council expects to receive £1,575,804 in additional S31 grants in the
year due to the continuation of Extended Retail Relief and Nursery
Discount to respond to the covid-19 situation – at the time of budget setting
central government had not confirmed these reliefs. Accounting practice
dictates that these grants are treated as general fund revenue in the year.
However, the extended reliefs impact the Collection Fund by increasing the
deficit in the year, which will need to be distributed in future years, therefore
this additional funding needs to be earmarked to accommodate this and
cannot be used to support other services.



A decrease of £73,666 on the net levy payable on growth to the Derbyshire
Business Rates Pool is currently forecast compared to the budgeted
amount though this is likely to change as it is dependent on the
performance of all members of the pool.

Use of Reserves £80,100:


Earmarked Reserves (£80,100 additional usage):
o Earmarked reserves are created to match available funding with future
projects and activities. Often it is not possible to anticipate when eligible
spend will occur and so as the year progresses services will identify
projects and schemes where earmarked reserves can be applied. To
date across the authority usage amounts to £80,100 more than
nominally anticipated at the beginning of the year.

5

Page 17

3.

Alliance Environmental Services

3.1.

Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street cleansing
and grounds maintenance services to both High Peak Borough and Staffordshire
Moorlands District Councils. The Councils are shareholders of the company
along with Ansa, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council.

3.2.

AES’s financial performance and impact on this Council’s budget is summarised
below:

AES Contract budget

General
Fund
£
4,393,990

£
£
207,140 4,601,130

Management fee
Allocation of AES efficiency
Additional Fee
Covid-19 costs
Total management fee payable
Allocation of Joint Operation Profit
Net total

4,514,130
(27,946)
346
TBC
4,486,530
(92,191)
4,394,339

211,794 4,725,924
(333)
(28,279)
346
TBC
TBC
211,461 4,697,991
(4,323)
(96,514)
207,138 4,601,477

2021-22

Variance to budget

349

HRA

(2)

Total

347

3.3.

The AES business plan for all services being delivered to the Council during
2021/22 includes a budgeted management fee of £4,725,924. The Council’s
share of the total AES forecast efficiency target for 2021/22, £28,279, is
repayable to the Council at the end of the year and is allocated against the
management fee costs.

3.4.

The £346 additional fee relates small changes in service requested by the
Council for which the management fee will be adjusted. Some additional costs
relating to Covid-19, such as additional cleaning products, PPE and additional
agency costs are anticipated, but no forecast figure is available at this time, this
will continue to be monitored.

3.5.

Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is consolidated in to
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to
separate group accounts being reported. The profit is therefore apportioned
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of
budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the profit
based on the forecast outturn is £96,514 and is offset against the management
fee costs.

6

Page 18

4.

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

4.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2021/22.

4.2.

The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2017) included
the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
targeting savings of £2.1 million. .

4.3.

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now more
of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The strategy
has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service
delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council to
ensure that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set out
in Corporate Plan.

4.4.

The 2021/22 budget was set in February 2021 with the assumption of £95,000 of
savings in the year. Unachieved efficiencies of £6,560 were brought forward from
2020/21, an improvement on the £47,000 anticipated in the MTFP, making a
revised target to be achieved in 2021/22 of £101,560.

4.5.

At the end of Quarter One, £67,870 savings have been taken against the 21/22
efficiency target, largely relating to the removal of surplus leasing budget. It is
expected that the remaining savings requirement (£33,690) will be realised by
year-end.

4.6.

The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the Efficiency
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency
programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently stands at £200,000.
It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in previous years so it remains
intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency
Programme.

5.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

5.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the
operation of the Council’s housing stock.

5.2.

The 2021/22 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to produce a
deficit of £1,870,230 supported by reserves. The Chief Financial Officer has, in
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, authorised the roll forward of
£263,000 in unused budgets from 2020/21 to facilitate completion of capital
component works. In addition, four further schemes have been added to the
7

Page 19

capital programme (detailed in 7.4 below) requiring an additional HRA funding
contribution of £621,350.This brought the 2021/22 budget to a deficit of
£2,754,580 and will be supported by reserves.
5.3.

Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account at the first
quarter stage is £17,856,990 with estimated income of £15,221,935. This
represents a deficit for the year of £2,635,055 (i.e. £119,525 below budget –
therefore less reserves are required to fund HRA activities in year).

Housing Revenue Account
INCOME
Dwellings Rents
Non - Dwelling Rents Etc
Sub-total income

2021-22
Approved
Budget
£

Q1
Changes
£

2021-22
Revised
Budget
£

2021-22
Expected
Outturn
£

Variance
£

(14,483,110)
(671,660)
(15,154,770)

-

(14,483,110)
(671,660)
(15,154,770)

(14,442,862)
(779,073)
(15,221,935)

40,248
(107,413)
(67,165)

EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance
Supervision & Management
Rents, rates, taxes Etc.
Other Operating Expenditure
Depreciation & Impairment
Interest & Debt Management
Contribution to Capital
Sub-total expenditure

4,409,480
2,739,230
109,130
782,430
2,099,030
2,693,060
4,192,640
17,025,000

884,350
884,350

4,409,480
2,739,230
109,130
782,430
2,099,030
2,693,060
5,076,990
17,909,350

4,450,480
2,675,230
104,630
727,600
2,129,000
2,693,060
5,076,990
17,856,990

41,000
(64,000)
(4,500)
(54,830)
29,970
(52,360)

Surplus(-)/Deficit
Use of Reserves
Balance

1,870,230
(1,870,230)
-

884,350
(884,350)
-

2,754,580
(2,754,580)
-

2,635,055
(2,635,055)
-

(119,525)
(119,525)
-

5.4.

The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account”
(HRA). By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget
throughout the financial year. The deficit balance predicted by the Council at this
first quarter stage will be funded by a transfer from reserves within the Housing
Revenue Account.

5.5.

There is are no significant (>£50,000) overspends to report at this stage.

5.6.

There are three significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted at this stage.


Income - Non-Dwelling Rents (£107,413) – increased income from service
charges has been responsible for the majority of this positive variance.
8

Page 20

.



Supervision and Management (£64,000) – there are numerous small
underspends across a large number of budget areas contributing to this
underspend however, a large proportion of this variance reflects savings in
salary costs, transport costs and general employee related expenditure.



Other Operating Expenditure (£54,830) – This underspend relates to a
reduction in the anticipated contribution to the bad debt provision.

6.

General Fund Capital Programme

6.1.

This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s
General Fund Programme.

6.2.

The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund
Capital Programme position at 30 th June 2021. Further detail on a scheme by
scheme basis is contained in Annex A.
2021/22
Approved
Budget
£

Housing
Housing Standards
Property Services
ICT
Fleet /CCTV
Leisure Services
Regeneration
Horticulture
Total

2021/22
Revised
Budget
£

Q1
Changes
£

Expected
Outturn
2021/22
£

Expected
Variance
2021/22
£

374,000

-

374,000

374,000

-

489,110
3,586,450

30,000
160,120

519,110
3,746,570

519,110
3,746,570

-

67,050
1,527,330

12,260
56,790

79,310
1,584,120

79,310
1,584,120

-

-

60,000

60,000

60,000

-

2,346,110
9,040

(360,750)
85,000

1,985,360
94,040

1,985,360
94,040

-

8,399,090

43,420

8,442,510

8,442,510

-

3,762,090

(291,870)

3,470,220

3,470,220

-

250,000
374,000
12,500
-

51,000
50,000

51,000
250,000
374,000
12,500
50,000

51,000
250,000
374,000
12,500
50,000

-

4,000,500
8,399,090

234,290
43,420

4,234,790
8,442,510

4,234,790
8,442,510

-

Funding:External Contributions
External Contributions
Capital Receipts(Land)
Capital Receipts(one for one)
Capital Receipts(vehicles)
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing
Total

6.3.

The 2021/22 General Fund Capital Budget was approved by Members in February
as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan £8,399,090 . A reduction to the
programme of £41,580 was then approved by Executive in August as part of the
Provisional Outturn report and reflected the carry forward of budget variances
from 2020/21. A new project budget of £85,000 has been added during Quarter 1.
The overall approved budget now stands at £8,442,510

6.4.

The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February are as
follows:9

Page 21



(£41,580 decrease) The carry forward of 2020/21capital budget variances as
a result of projects which were either behind schedule or had progressed
quicker than expected in the year.



(£85,000 increase) Individual Executive Decision 4th November 2020
approved the use of £51,000 Section 106 planning obligation funds towards
the creation of a new pump track facility at Bankswood Park. The project has
also been awarded £34,000 funding from British Cycling.

6.5

At this stage there are no significant capital variances to report

7.

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

7.1.

This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s HRA
capital spending.

7.2.

The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme at
30th June 2021. Further detail on a scheme by scheme basis is contained in
Annex B.
2021-22
Approved
Budget

20/21 Carry
Forwards

2021-22
Revised
Budget

2021-22
Expected
Outturn

2021-22
Variance

£

£

£

£

£

5,507,170

185,000

1,106,400

6,798,570

6,798,570

-

Repairs Team Capital Works

295,000

-

-

295,000

295,000

-

Commissioning Fees

100,000

-

-

100,000

100,000

-

Vehicle Purchasing

289,500

90,000

-

379,500

379,500

-

100,000
6,291,670

(12,000)
263,000

217,610
1,324,010

88,000
217,610

88,000
217,610

-

7,878,680

7,878,680

-

Major Repairs Reserve

2,099,030

-

-

2,099,030

2,099,030

-

HRA Contribution

4,192,640

263,000

621,350

5,076,990

5,076,990

-

Capital Receipts (1-4-1)

-

-

87,040

87,040

87,040

-

Capital Receipts (Other)
Grant – MEH LAD 2

-

-

130,570
485,050

130,570
485,050

130,570
485,050

-

6,291,670

263,000

1,324,010

7,878,680

7,878,680

-

Scheme

Asset Management Works

Housing IT Systems
New Build/Asset Purchases
Total
Funding:

7.3.

Q1 ReProfiling

The 2021/22 HRA Capital budget of £6,291,670 was approved by members in
February 2021 as part of the MTFP.
10

Page 22

-

7.4.

7.5.

The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February are as
follows:

(£263,000 increase) The carry forward of 2020/21 capital budget variances as
a result of projects which were either behind schedule or had progressed
quicker than expected in the year.



(£1,324,010 increase) This net increase relates to two areas. Firstly,
£324,440 relates to a number of schemes (mainly component replacements,
kitchens, bathrooms, roofing etc.) that are either re-profiled to complete sooner
than expected or have been delayed until 22/23. Secondly £999,570 relates
to four schemes that have been added to the HRA Capital Programme as
follows:

o Bakewell Green Garages £50,000 – the scheme provides resources
to knock down the existing garages which are no longer fit for
purposes and re-build.
o Hartington Gardens Footbridge - £8,000 – This is an initial cost for
survey works to establish the potential costs involved in replacement
or repair of the current footbridge. The scheme is not expected to
complete until 22/23.
o Grant works - £723,960 – Following a successful bid to the Green
Homes Grant Fund Round 2, the Council has received grant funding
of £485,050 which can be used to fund 67% of spend on energy
efficiency measures; the remaining 33% must be funded from the
Council directly. The scheme will complete by December 2021.
o House Purchase - £217,610 – The Council has utilised Capital
receipts including 1-4-1 Right to Buy Receipts to purchase a former
Council House in order to increase the available stock.
During the first quarter, £1,332,504 has been incurred on HRA Capital Schemes
principally on window and door replacements and cladding works.

7.6.

Much of the HRA spend has been re-profiled to commence in late autumn with
some delayed until 22/23 mainly due to continued access issues to those sites
where residents are vulnerable or refusing access due to concerns around Covid
19 infections. Following the re-profiling and the addition of new schemes, the
HRA capital programme is expected to be on target at this first quarter stage.

7.7.

Capital funding expected to be applied during 2021/22 is higher than forecast due
to the variances noted above.

8. Treasury Management
8.1.

This section of the report sets out the key Treasury Management statistics in
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high
level Treasury Management summary. The Audit and Regulatory Committee
receives detailed operational updates on Treasury Management.
11

Page 23

Investments
8.2.

Cash Investments held on the 30th June 2021 totalled £27.6million. The average
level of funds available for investment up to the end of the quarter totalled
£29.3million and £16,850 interest was earned.

8.3.

The Council has budgeted to receive £40,290 in investment income in 2021/22.
As interests rates are currently as expected at the time of budget setting, the
outturn against the budget is forecast to be on target at this early point in the year.
Borrowing

8.4.

Outstanding borrowing at 30th June 2021 totalled £66.8 million. The Council’s
general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,824,340 and £1,693,060 respectively
in interest charges and other financing costs in 2021/22. This was based on
existing external debt funding previous capital purchases.

8.5.

No ‘new’ borrowing or refinancing activity has occurred during quarter 1, therefore
no variance to the budget is forecast at this stage.

9.

Revenue Collection

9.1.

The collection rate outturn for Quarter 1 2021/22 was as follows:





Council Tax – 28.78% of Council Tax was collected by 30th June 2021,
compared to 28.47% for the same period in 2020/21, and 29.64% in 2019/20.
Business Rates – 29.10% of Business Rates was collected by 30th June
2021, compared with 22.51% for the same period in 2020/21, and 30.01% in
2019/20.
o The longer term effects of Covid-19 on collection rates continue to be
monitored.
Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of
Quarter 1 was £252,450 which compares with £270,240 at 30th June 2020.
The level of arrears has been impacted by a delay in recovery action following
onset of the pandemic.

12

Page 24

Annex A

General Fund Capital Programme Update 30th June 2021

Scheme

2021/22
Approved
Budget

Q1
Changes

2021/22
Revised
Budget

Expected
Outturn
2021/22

Expected
Variance
2021/22

£

£

£

£

£

Housing & Housing Standards
Affordable Housing Project

374,000

-

374,000

374,000

-

Disabled Facilities Grants
Private Sector Housing Renewal

489,110
-

30,000

489,110
30,000

489,110
30,000

-

863,110

30,000

893,110

893,110

-

3,586,450

160,120

3,746,570

3,746,570

-

3,586,450

160,120

3,746,570

3,746,570

-

67,050

12,260

79,310

79,310

-

67,050

12,260

79,310

79,310

-

1,527,330

(3,000)

1,524,330

1,524,330

-

-

59,790

59,790

59,790

-

1,527,330

56,790

1,584,120

1,584,120

-

-

60,000

60,000

60,000

-

-

60,000

60,000

60,000

-

2,346,110

(360,750)

1,985,360

1,985,360

-

2,346,110

(360,750)

1,985,360

1,985,360

-

Property Services
Asset Management Programme
ICT
Fleet Management
Vehicle/Plant Acquisitions
CCTV
Leisure Services
Outdoor Sports Facilities Fund
Regeneration
Fairfield Roundabout & Buxton
Crescent
Horticulture
Park Play Area Improvements
Play Facilities Fund

Total General Fund

-

85,000

85,000

85,000

-

9,040

-

9,040

9,040

-

9,040

85,000

94,040

94,040

-

8,399,090

43,420

8,442,510

8,442,510

-

13

Page 25

14

Page 26

Annex B
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update 30th June 2021

Scheme

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:
Roofing & External Works
Gamesley Cladding Works
Bathroom Programme
Kitchen Programme
Electrical Works
Central Heating Works
Queens Court Boiler Replacement
Windows and Doors Programme
Aids & Adaptations
Structural Works (Various)
Lift Replacements
Fairfield View Project
Sheltered Fire Alarm Upgrades
Rendering Works
Energy Efficiency Project Works
(Grant)

Approved
Budget
2021/22

20/21
Carry
Forwards

Q1 ReProfiling

2021/22
Revised
Budget

2021/22
Expected
Outturn

£

£

£

£

£

42,440

230,000

230,000

-

548,000

550,000

550,000

-

100,000

(100,000)

506,590

506,590

-

754,180

170,000

300,000

1,224,180

1,224,180

-

549,250

-

549,250

549,250

-

264,590

-

134,590

134,590

-

187,560

-

250,000

(248,000)

506,590

STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning
Costs
VEHICLE PURCHASING
Vehicle Purchases
IT PURCHASING
Housing Systems

50,000
1,310,000

10,000

-

1,320,000

1,320,000

-

295,000

50,000

-

345,000

345,000

-

-

85,000

224,000

309,000

309,000

-

680,000

18,000

(452,000)

246,000

246,000

-

20,000

-

-

20,000

20,000

-

140,000

-

-

140,000

140,000

-

-

500,000

500,000

-

1,106,400

723,960
6,798,570

723,960
6,798,570

-

500,000
-

185,000

723,960

70,000

-

-

70,000

70,000

-

155,000

-

-

155,000

155,000

-

70,000

-

-

70,000

70,000

-

295,000

-

-

295,000

295,000

-

100,000

-

-

100,000

100,000

100,000

-

-

100,000

100,000

-

289,500

90,000

-

379,500

379,500

-

289,500

90,000

-

379,500

379,500

-

100,000

(12,000)

-

88,000

88,000

-

100,000

(12,000)

-

88,000

88,000

-

-

-

217,610

217,610

217,610

-

-

217,610

217,610

217,610

-

1,324,010

7,878,680

7,878,680

-

NEW HOUSING
House (Stock) Purchases

TOTAL SPEND

(130,000)
(50,000)

5,507,170

REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Void Rewires
Void Kitchens
Void Bathrooms

Over /
(Under)
Spend

6,291,670

263,000

15

Page 27

-

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B

2021/22
First Quarter
Procurement
Review

Page 29

1.

Introduction

1.1

A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was
approved by Full Council in February 2017.

1.2

The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives
linked closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.
The key actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a
professional Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support
transparency and the implementation of electronic tendering processes and
procurement systems.

1.3

The revised Procurement Strategy is scheduled for presentation and
implementation following consultation with Members during 2021. The revised
strategy will focus on the following key objectives to support the aims of the
Council’s Corporate plan and align with the LGA National Procurement Strategy:







Delivering Value for Money
Commercial focus and effective Contract Management
Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership
Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement
Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth
Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts

2.

First Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1

The activity supported by the procurement function for the first quarter April 2021
to June 2021 is summarised below:
First Quarter
HPBC Only
JOINT (SM/HP)
TOTAL

High Value
(> £181,000)

Low Value
(< £181,000)

3
0

10
6

Total
13
6
19

2.2

Annex A provides details of the 19 procurement exercises completed during
Quarter one.

3.

2021/22 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1

The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting
in 2021/22.

Page 30

2020/21 Activity

High Value
(> 181,000k)

HPBC
JOINT (SM/HP)
TOTAL

Low Value
(< £181,000k)

6
4

24
18

Total
30
22
52

In addition to the above, there are 164 listed entries brought forward from
previous years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined).
3.2

Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for
support and delivery in 2021/22 includes:









Facilities Management
Glossop Halls (D2N2) refurbishment project (Glossop Indoor Market and
adjacent buildings) – Main Contractor
Glossop Market Operator Concession
HIF A6 Hogshaw Roundabout Main Contractor
Future High streets – Spring Gardens Buxton
Gas Servicing and Maintenance - HRA
EFG Greener homes LAD2 funding – HRA
HRA Capital works contracts (Kitchens / Roofing / Electrical)
Professional Services Contract – Architectural Framework

4.

Procurement Performance

4.1

This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity.

4.2

Performance for the first quarter is highlighted below:-

Performance Indicator

Target

Performance at
30th June 2020

% Of invoices paid within 30
days

96%

96%

% of Alliance Procurement
Activity on Forward Plan

68%

43%

Annual contract spend as %
of gross expenditure budget

93%

88%

Supplier (Creditor) spend
within the local area as a %
of total spend

Baseline

Result 20/21
8%

% of Contracts awarded to
local suppliers following
submission of EOI (over
£5,000)

Contextual

Result 20/21
32%

Page 31

Performance Indicators – targets off track
4.3

We are continuing our communication programme of regular service review
meetings to ensure planned activity is captured and monitored on the plan. We
are continuing to work with service areas to ensure they are compliant in
commissioning Supplies, Services or Works and that the internal processes are
adhered to.

Page 32

ANNEX A
First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC
Contract Title

Brief contract description

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Procedure

Award Detail

Term /
Duration

Total
Contract
Value £

Plumbing and
Heating Works
Contract

Boiler / Central Heating
Replacement Programme
Housing (HRA Capital)

Recurring

Asset
Management

Open Tender

Renovo ltd

1 (1+1)
yrs

376,893

External
Rendering &
Insulation - HRA
properties

Works Contract (HRA
Capital)

One Off

Asset
Management

Open Tender

Jackson
Jackson &
Sons

1 (1+1)
yrs

£1.5M

Gladstone
Street - Walk
way Repairs

Minor Works Contract

One Off

Asset
Management

Open Tender

n/a

145,072

Purchase Ride
on Rotary
mower and Mini
Digger

Grounds and Cemeteries –
Equipment replacement
Purchase

One Off

AES –
Grounds

Direct Award
Framework

Whittle
Programmed
Maintenance
Ltd T/A
Hankinson
Whittle
FR Sharrocks
Ltd - Mower
Chippendale
Ltd - Mini
Digger

n/a

Mower
£24,695
Digger
£27,639

Lift Servicing
and
Maintenance –
through floor lifts

Servicing, maintenance and
repair of tenant through floor
lifts - HRA properties

Recurring

Asset
Management

Framework
Further comp

Express Lift
Company

1 yr

5,752

New Mills
Placed Based
Working

Active in the community
initiative

Recurring

Service

Single Source

New Mils
Volunteer
Centre

1 yr

15,000

Glossop
Cemetery
Extension
Programme Works Contract
Appointment of
Main contractor

Groundworks and land
development to land
adjacent to Glossop
Cemetery

One Off

Asset
Management

Open Tender

A T Bone Ltd

12 wks

613,914

Warmbrook (+
Ashwoord Park
TBC)
Waterways
improvement
works HPBC
Victoria Hall Architect
Support

Works to various waterways
/ courses across HPBC
Warmbrook and Ashwood
park initially

One Off

Asset
Management

Open Tender

Bailey
Contracts Ltd

12 wks

70,880

External Architectural
services: Fire Exit works
and Listed Building Consent

One Off

Communities

Change
Control Notice
-Existing
contract

AHR Ltd

n/a

9,468

Commissioning

Page 33

Midlands
Highways
Agency Membership

Homes England Grant
funding - Hogshaw
Roundabout project and
housing development

Recurring

Regeneration

Public sector
membership

Midlands
Highways
Agency

Development
consultancy and
Agency Services
- In relation to
Fairfield Project

Development and
consultancy services require
to support on Fairfield
Project

One Off

Legal Services

Framework
Direct award

Operation of
High Peak
Markets

Management of Outdoor
markets

Recurring

Regeneration

Re opening High
Streets
Business
Support Pack

Specialist research / design /
content / print packs for high
street businesses Covid
recovery support

One Off

Regeneration

Page 34

1 yr

6,500

Fisher German
LLP

1 + (2)
yrs

20,000

Licence
agreement

Buxton Town
Team

Licence Agreement

RFQ

Visual Print &
Design

4 wks

5,815

First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)

Contract Title

Brief contract description

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Procedure

Award
Detail

Public Building
Condition
Surveys - Phase
Two
PSN Services

Full portfolio Condition
surveys of Councils’ Assets

One Off

Asset
Management

Direct Award

Concertus
Derbyshire
Ltd

Public services Network

Recurring

Transformation

Framework

Climate Literacy
training

Carbon awareness training
and support accreditation
status

One Off

Communities /
Climate
Change

Building Control
Out of Hours
Emergency
cover

Out of hours services –
dangerous structures

Development
Control

Resources
Support

External staffing support

Recurring
(Interim
arrangement
prior to
longer term)
One Off

Env Health

Single
Source

Osbourne
Richardson
Ltd

One Off

Communities /
Climate
Change

Single
Source

Anthesis
Group

Food Hygiene
Inspections
Climate action
Plan
Consultancy
Support

Produce a SCATTER
Carbon budget model for
each authority including a
District-wide inventory and
provide Science Based
Target Setting for the
authorities

Term /
Duration

Total
Contract
Value £

6
months

93,246

Nominet

2 yrs

5,531

Single
Source

Keele
University

n/a

3,450

Single
Source

Derbyshire
Building
Control

2
months

10,000

9
months

17,000

n/a

6,950

Partnership

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 37

High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2021/ 2022 (Q1)

Page 38

High Peak Q1 Summary
The following report provides an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April to June 2021 in relation to the Council’s corporate
plan priorities. As well as the summary below, the report also provides insight into the council’s performance against each of its four strategic
aims, including both successes and areas for further improvement.
Performance Overview
There are 44 targeted measures to report against at the close of Q1, with the remaining measures in the council’s performance framework
being considered contextual in nature and featuring in the Annual Report. The charts below show the results for the first quarter in terms of
both attainment and trend data. At the end of June the council was on track to meet 66% of targets and had improved upon or maintained its
performance level compared to last year in 57% of measures. The Q1 results are +7% up on last year in terms of attainment of targets but the
trend data is -8% down on last year. The full framework and the actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures can be accessed here.

Page 39

100%
80%

100%
80%

66%

60%

60%

40%

40%

30%

20%
4%
0%
On Track

Off Track

N/A

35%

43%
22%

20%
0%
Better

Weaker

No Change

Customer Feedback Overview
This report also provides an overview of the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of complaints, comments and
compliments. The number of complaints closed during Q1 this year was higher than last year’s very low level, with 30 stage 1 complaints.
There have been no repeat complaints reported and the council responded to 95% of complaints in 20 working days, just short of its 97%
target. This report includes further details of the lessons learned from complaints and any repeat issues, where relevant.

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work
Fit for purpose housing
✓ New housing benfit claims processed in 7.65 days against a target of 18 days
✓ No gas safety checks were overdue in council homes
Areas for improvement: The time taken to process benefit changes has risen above the target due to a numer of factors
including an increase in the volume of Universal Credit changes. We have processed over 90% of right to buy transactions
but two took longer than targeted due to an increase in the number of applications. Repairs performance data is unavailable due to absence.

Page 40

At the end of June the council had 17 households in temporary accommodation for over six weeks, which is an improvement on the year end
position and none of the households are families. There are currently 145 active homeless cases and the council is working with partners
across the County to address winter housing provision. Although still off track, there has been an improvement in the proportion of
homelessness applications opened at the ‘prevention’ stage and also improvements in settled accommodation outcomes.
Carelink Service:
✓ 100% of emergency calls responded to within 45 minutes
✓ Over 96% of referrals installed within 15 days

Accelerated housing delivery programme:
Fairfield Roundabout - Project milestones and grant funding are off track as no further payments/claims or amends will be discussed
with Homes England until the current Deed of Variation is signed. Once signed, any further amends to milestones can be discussed
with Homes England. Delays in discharging the GFA conditions and agreeing/meeting project milestones will significantly impact on
grant drawdown of the remaining £1.5m. Fisher German have been appointed to resolve these issues. Members are being updated
on this project including the financial risks.
Granby Road – Approval given to withdraw from LAAC early. Jigsaw Homes have submitted a pre-app for discussion.

High quality leisure facilities
✓ £34k in external funding awarded in support of the physical activity and sports strategy
Leisure projects – Initial plans and headline cost implications for leisure sites were reviewed at the most recent member working group, more
detailed assessments of the financial implications are to be undertaken. Under the place based working section of the Council’s physical
activity and sport strategy, High Peak has provided £10k (year 1) funding towards the creation of a Community Engagement Worker post for
the New Mills area. The post is being hosted by the NM Volunteer Centre and the advert is currently live.
High quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health
✓ 20% of routine permitted process inspections carried out
✓ 20% of high risk premises were inspected

Page 41

The ability of the Environmental Health Team to carry out regulatory inspections in food and other premises last year was severly affected by
the lockdown and the pull on resources for public health work. Resource needs within the service are being addressed corporately in order to
ensure the team is able to get back on track with its schedule of inspections.
Working in Partnership:
The number of fly-tipping incidents has improved in Q1 with 114
collections recorded, compared to last year where we saw a total of 609
incidents.
The council is working in partnership with its AES waste partners to
address the issue of illegally dumped rubbish which blights our
environment and costs local taxpayers tens of thousands of pounds to
investigate and clear up.
Together we’re going to W.A.R on fly-tipping.
Aim 1 areas for improvement and Priority Action updates can be viewed here

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money
Financial resilience and value for money
✓ 88% of expenditure is on-contract spend
✓ 96% of invoices paid on time
✓ Over 94% of internal audit recommendations were implemented in time
Areas for improvement: At the end of June the proportion of housing rent collected is lower than last year but comparisons are affected by the
change in the way Universal Credit payments are received (in arrears). It’s expected that these comparisons will become more robust from Q2.

Page 42

Available services provided ‘right first time’

✓
✓
✓
✓

53% of contacts made via the web
Over 8800 social media followers
No repeat complaints
39,159 OneVu Portal accounts

Areas for improvement: There was 1 late response to the 22 complaints received during Q1. FOI response times have increased due to the
demand on resources caused by the pandemic, with 54% issued on time.
A new Access to Services Strategy is being prepared with the help of
the Institute of Customer Services, which will both influence and
reflect the new Digital IT Strategy also being prepared this year with
professional expertise provided by SOCITM.
High performing and motivated workforce

Positive Legacy Project Update:
The retention of agile working and access to flexible working
arrangements is currently being reviewed, and new policies are
currently being developed. Alongside this, the council is
identifying the benefits of reduced mileage, virtual access to
meetings and training.

Areas for improvement: Sickness absence has risen to 1.69 days and is
projected to miss the tightened target this year due to an increase in long term cases. Of the 8 cases, two have returned to work and the
remainder are being handled in line with appropriate HR policies and procedures.

A leadership development programme is underway with Heads of Service and a new Organisational Development Strategy is nearing
completion, which will bring together and provide direction for the
workstreams that underpin employee and business performance.
Asset Management Plan Update:
Stock condition project will start 1st August and complete midJanuary. Leisure Sites and major buildings have been
prioritised, so data will return on a phased basis allowing
updates for leisure service review. Specification has been
developed for energy audits required for climate change
decarbonising strategy.
HRA Capital program – 9 projects on track, 3 on hold, 6 off
track.

Page 43

Pavilion Gardens Phase 2 has been pushed back to the Autumn.

Effective use of assets
✓ 100% of system and network availability
Areas for improvement: It took an average of 49 days to re-let council
stock during Q1, this included seven major voids requiring external
contractors and the removal of asbestos. Rent loss from vacant
properties now stands at 1.31% against a target of 1.03%, this equates to
just under £60k of rental income. The majority of the losses come from
Marian Court, Church View and The Bungalow.

Procurement with a focus on local businesses
Areas for improvement: Only 43% of procurement activity during Q1 was included on the forward plan. This was due to an increase in
commissioning activity in response to external funding being awarded on various schemes. This resulted in reactive procurements to source
consultancies and other providers to support the delivery of the schemes and to meet the increased shortened timescales relating to
allocation and spending of funding. We are continuing to work with Services to capture as much detail from service plans to ensure the
Procurement forward plan is current in identifying forthcoming activity.
Technology and innovation
There are future opportunities from a wider digital workspace yet to be fully realised and there are likely to be outcomes from the new Digital
IT Strategy that will rely on this virtual platform. Socitm has been engaging widely with stakeholders across the Council as well as reviewing our
existing digital landscape. These sessions will identify opportunities to leverage the existing investments in technology, as well as providing
insight into areas of opportunity to inform the future roadmap.
Aim 2 areas for improvement and Priority Action updates can be viewed here

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration
High quality development with an open for business approach
✓ all planning processing targets met, including 100% of major applications in time
✓ no major developments allowed on appeal and less than 1% of minor developments

The Building Control partnership transfer took place on 5th July as planned with no issues with service continuity. The Planning team is now
fully staffed and is beginning to make inroads into the applications backlog
Flourishing Town Centres and Business Support

Page 44

There were 249 hits on the council’s business page during
the first three months of 2020/21. The monthly council
business newsletter now has 1344 subscribers and
includes details of funding opportunities, training events
and other relevant business news.
The Glossop Market Hall roof is expected to be completed
by July 2021, after which point a new operating model will
be developed.

Growth Strategy Update:
- Buxton future high street fund: the project is progressing at pace
following the successful revised Business Case and the award of £6.6m.
Memorandum of Understanding signed and submitted alongside a
monitoring and evaluation plan. A delivery board meeting took place in
July with the CEO.
- Buxton HAZ: a soft launch has been completed. footfall monitors are
progressing. Leaflet distributed to all high street properties (2 enquiries
received as at 23/06). Tender specification prepared for the public realm
works. School programme in progress. Community engagement workshop
held 8th June to agree priorities for delivery. Steering group established to
drive forward community engagement.

Aim 3 areas for improvement and Priority Action updates can be viewed here

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment
Quality Parks and Open Spaces
The Cenotaph in the Memorial Park in Whaley Bridge has been officially unveiled after a £38,700 restoration project
following damage that was caused by a falling tree.
Parks Development Plans:
The Parks Strategy has now been approved by The Executive and design
work on the finished document will be commencing soon, ahead of its
formal launch. A play and outdoor sports facilities investment and
delivery plan has also been approved by The Executive and an
implementation plan is now being finalised.

Page 45

Bankswood Park Improvement Plan – the tender for the pump track
aspect of this project has been completed and the service
commissioning team are now finalising the contract and associated
documentation. Scoping of the other aspects of the project need to be
planned in over the next few months.
Effective recycling and waste management
✓ 52.59% of waste recycled (estimated data)
✓ 108.27kg of residual household waste (estimated data)
✓ Only 26.95 bins missed per 100,000 collections
The new cab-based waste management technology (Collective) went live at the end of June, enabling the sharing of live data around
collections.

Meeting the challenge of climate change
✓ Paper consumption is on track at 250 reams across the alliance
Developing a climate change strategy and an action plan of response to a declared climate emergency:
Since declaring a climate emergency in October 2019, the Council has started a number of activities in order to reduce its own carbon
emissions. The work undertaken so far, and the action plan of activities going forward was presented to The Executive at its July meeting and is
encapsulated in the 2021/22 Climate Change Plan (Part 1).
Work done to date includes:

Page 46

Housing – the council will be installing energy efficiency measures
such as cavity wall and loft insulation, and triple glazing with the
support of a £485k government grant.
Leisure Centres – assessment of options to reduce emissions has
been carried out with the results expected in July
Fleet – AES are trialling electric vehicles and the Energy Saving Trust
have been engaged to help the council plan its fleet replacement
programme with an emphasis on decarbonisation.
In addition, the new ways of working introduced in response to
lockdown have resulted in a 60% reduction in business mileage; as well as increased customer self-service and reduced paper consumption.
Plans to sustain these changes began last year and the new agile working policy is expected in the summer.
The Council’s Climate Change Working Group, which includes representatives from the High Peak Green Network, has been focusing on
Borough-wide greenhouse gas emissions; the role of key agencies, and the actions that the Council can take going forward. This work will
inform Part 2 of the Climate Change Plan which will be published by November 2021 – in time for the UN climate change conference (COP26).
The Plan will need to be a dynamic document that gets added to as new actions become viable and we learn more about emissions in the area
and the role the council can play, in partnership with others, to help reduce them.
Aim 4 areas for improvement and Priority Action updates can be viewed here

Page 47

Page 48

Agenda Item 5
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
The Executive
7 October 2021
TITLE:

Medium Term Financial Plan Refresh

PORTFOLIO HOLDER

Cllr Alan Barrow - Executive Councillor for
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICERS :

John Betts – Interim Executive Director
Keith Pointon – Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED:



Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
Appendix A – Detailed Medium Term Financial Plan Refresh

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update members on the Medium Term Financial
Plan (MTFP), in preparation for considering the budget (and associated council tax
and rent levels) in February 2022.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that the Executive:


Note the updates proposed to the MTFP set in February 2022, including further
proposed actions and identifies any further areas they wish to see incorporated
or considered.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) aims to ensure resources are directed
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Corporate Plan. This refresh of
the MTFP builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect
changes to income, costs and funding. It is not a complete recasting of a new
plan, or a finalised, balanced longer term plan. Those products will be produced
as part of the budget setting considerations in February 2022. The purpose of this
refresh is threefold:

Page 49



To update the MTFP produced in February 2021, for known or likely
changes



To highlight service and policy issues likely to impact on budget
considerations later in the year



To provide contextual information so that other issues that may impact on
short and longer term budgetary issues can be identified and discussed

3.2

The detailed refresh considers each constituent part of the MTFP as set in
February 2021 and RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rates each aspect. The current
capital programme, budget pressures identified in the 2021/22 budget, council tax,
business rates and levels of reserves all remain substantively robust. Inflation
assumptions will need to be revised and the delivery of savings plans and fees
and charges proposals will need to be closely monitored. There is considerable
uncertainty hanging over the Government’s reviews of business rates and fair
funding (including new homes bonus), but the likelihood is that these reviews will
be postponed another year.

3.3

So, the overall conclusion is that the MTFP remains fundamentally robust and the
following actions will need to be taken prior to it being agreed alongside the
2022/23 budget in February 2022:
 Forecasts are rolled forward to include 2025/26
 Inflation provision is reviewed alongside economic data to establish
whether structural inflation is higher than previously forecast
 Any service budget demands are built in
 The outcomes of any Government reviews (on council tax, business rates
and new homes bonus) are considered
 Any changes to the capital programme (including any identified capital /
revenue implications of major projects) are reflected
 Decisions on any outstanding savings proposals and fees and charges are
also reflected

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective
targeting of scarce resources, which is the subject of this report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

Page 50

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None.

16.6

6.7

Risk
6.8 A

Climate Change
None.
External Consultation
None.
Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are
identified and explained in the detailed report (and are substantively
mitigated by the level of reserves).

JOHN BETTS
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Report appendix

Moorlands House

Keith Pointon
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A – Detailed MTFP refresh

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
2021/22 to 2024/25
SEPTEMBER 2021 REFRESH

September 2021

Page 53

1.

Introduction

1.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s budget
and policy framework. It aims to ensure resources are directed effectively and
efficiently towards delivery of the Corporate Plan. It describes the financial
direction of the Council for planning purposes and outlines the financial pressures
the Council is likely to experience over the next 4 years. This process facilitates
the Council in planning the prudent management of its finances, in building
resilience and in providing for the needs of residents over the long term.

1.2.

The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This refresh of the
MTFP builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect changes
to income, costs and funding. It also includes an updated assessment of key risks
and a presentation of longer term financial issues which have the potential to
impact on the Council. At this point in time, this is not a complete recasting of a
new plan, or a finalised, balanced longer term plan. Those products will be
produced as part of the budget setting considerations in February 2022. The
purpose of this refresh is threefold:

1.3.



To update the MTFP produced in February 2021, for known or likely
changes



To highlight service and policy issues likely to impact on budget
considerations later in the year



To provide contextual information so that other issues that may impact on
short and longer term budgetary issues can be identified and discussed

The rest of this report follows the following structure:
Section
Strategic priorities of the Council and summary of the current (as of February
2021) 2021/22 budget and medium term financial plan
Update on impact of the pandemic and 2020/21 outturn on the MTFP
Update on capital programme (and revenue consequences)
Update on inflationary pressures and investments
Update on budget demand and budget growth, including fees and charges
Update on local taxes – Council Tax, Business Rates & New Homes Bonus
Impact of savings plans
Use and level of reserves
Summary of financial risks and next steps

2&3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

2.

Strategic Priorities

2.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by members of
the Council.

2.2.

The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2019-2023) establishes the Council’s vision,
corporate objectives and key priorities for the medium term. It in effect establishes
the Council’s commitment in the delivery of service and community leadership to

Page 54

the residents of High Peak. The Medium Term Financial Plan is updated to reflect
the contents of the plan and to ensure that resources are directed towards key
priorities.
2.3.

The Council’s vision is expressed as follows: “Working together to protect and
invest in the High Peak with the Council on your side”.

2.4.

This vision is articulated further by four aims:





2.5.








Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak
A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking council
Protect and create jobs in the High Peak by supporting economic growth,
development & regeneration
Protect and improve the environment including responding to the climate
emergency
These aims are supported by several objectives which also provide the framework
for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are summarised below:
Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak
Effective relationship with strategic partners
Effective provision of high-quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health
Fit for purpose housing that meets the need of tenants and residents
Practical support of community safety arrangements
Provision of high quality leisure facilities both in formal leisure centres and swimming pools
and out in our communities
Work with our partners and the community to address health inequality, food and fuel
poverty, mental health and loneliness
A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking Council



Ensure our future financial resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for
money
 Ensure our services are readily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and
provided “right first time”
 Invest in our staff to ensure we have the internal expertise to deliver our plans by supporting
our high performing and well-motivated workforce
 More effective use of Council assets to benefit our communities
 Effective procurement with a focus on local businesses
 Use innovation, technology and partnership with others to help improve the efficiency of
services, improve customer satisfaction and reduce our impact on the environment
Protect and create jobs in the High Peak by supporting economic growth, development &
regeneration








Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
Work to create flourishing town centres and thriving high streets that support the local
economy
Promote tourism to maximise local benefit
High quality development and building control with an “open for business approach”
Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, businesses and visitors
Working to support existing local businesses, both large and small across the High Peak as
they respond to future challenges
Supporting the development of innovative green jobs and businesses across the High Peak

Page 55

Protect and Improve the Environment including responding to the climate emergency
 Effective recycling and waste management
 Effective provision of quality parks and open spaces
 Meeting the challenge of climate change and working with residents and business across
the High Peak to implement the climate change action plan

2.6.

The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District
Council, formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of efficiency
and realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the implementation
and transformation of a joint management structure and services, consequently
realising significant efficiency savings. The Council intends to continue to drive
savings and service improvements through collaboration with its Alliance partner.

3.

Current Spending Levels

3.1.

The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of spending
and the approved capital expenditure commitments.

3.2.

The Council’s current year (2021/22) General Fund budget (and its funding) is
summarised as follows:
Budget Heading
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support
Financing Costs

2021/22
£
10,564,990
4,284,800
401,560
9,872,600
82,460
1,824,340
51,320
22,130

Total Expenditure

27,104,200

Fees and Charges / Other Income
Interest Receipts
HRA Recharges
Capital Recharges

(8,687,210)
(40,290)
(6,406,160)
(231,240)

Net Expenditure

11,739,300

Council Tax
LCTS Compensation Grant
Business Rates Retention
COVID-19 Grant Funding
New Homes Bonus
Contribution to / (use of) EM
Reserves*
Contribution to / (use of) Contingency
Collection Fund**

(6,193,160)
(126,330)
(3,710,270)
(529,010)
(341,770)

Total Financing

Page 56

(3,383,880)
(901,880)
3,542,000
(11,644,300)

Deficit / (Surplus)
New Efficiency Requirement
In-Year Deficit / (Surplus)

3.3.

95,000
(95,000)
0

The proposed 2021/22 Housing Revenue Account Budget is detailed below:

Budget Heading

2021/22
Projection
£

4,409,480
Repairs & Maintenance
Supervision & Management

2,739,230

Rates, Rents, Taxes, Other Charges

109,130

Other Operating Expenditure

782,430

Depreciation & Impairment Charges

2,099,030

Interest & Debt Management Charges

2,693,060

HRA Contribution to Capital Programme

4,192,640

Total Expenditure

17,025,000

Dwellings Rents

(14,483,110)

Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income
Total Income

(671,660)
(15,154,770)

(Surplus) / Deficit for year
Use of Reserves

1,870,230
(1,870,230)

In Year Deficit (Surplus)

Page 57

0

3.4.

The medium-term projection for capital commitments approved by Members in
February 2021 is detailed below: -

Service Area

2020/21
£
170,000
1,557,060
330,000
198,360
162,750
283,040
2,701,210

2021/22
£
374,000
3,586,450
489,110
67,050
1,527,330
2,355,150
8,399,090

2022/23
£
925,000
4,701,060
489,110
50,000
187,500
40,000
6,392,670

2023/24
£
504,000
1,518,800
489,110
50,000
698,080
3,259,990

2024/25
£
504,000
880,250
489,110
50,000
88,500
2,011,860

Total
£
2,477,000
12,243,620
2,286,440
415,410
2,664,160
2,678,190
22,764,820

523,070
43,000
57,180
170,000

3,762,090
250,000
374,000

1,456,770
905,000
925,000

489,110
2,255,880
504,000

489,110
998,000
504,000

6,720,150
43,000
4,466,060
2,477,000

Capital Receipts (Vehicles)
Capital Reserves
Earmarked Reserves

100,000
64,450

12,500
-

62,750
-

11,000
-

20,750
-

107,000
100,000
64,450

Borrowing
Total Revised Financing

1,743,510
2,701,210

4,000,500
8,399,090

3,043,150
6,392,670

3,259,990

2,011,860

8,787,160
22,764,820

Housing
Asset Management
Housing Grants
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes
Total Revised Programme
Financed by:External Contributions
Planning Obligations
Capital Receipts(Land)
Capital Receipts( one for one)

3.5.

In addition, the Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme is set as follows:
2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Total

£

£

£

£

£

£

Asset Management works
Repairs Team Capital works
Asset Purchases
Commissioning Costs
ICT Strategy
Total Programme

3,577,090
204,840
90,000
100,000
3,971,930

5,507,170
295,000
289,500
100,000
100,000
6,291,670

4,582,770
295,000
420,000
100,000
100,000
5,497,770

3,718,210
295,000
100,000
4,113,210

4,360,090
295,000
100,000
4,755,090

21,745,330
1,384,840
799,500
500,000
200,000
24,629,670

Major Repairs Reserve
HRA Contribution
Total Financing

2,099,030
1,872,900
3,971,930

2,099,030
4,192,640
6,291,670

2,099,030
3,398,740
5,497,770

2,099,030
2,014,180
4,113,210

2,099,030
2,656,060
4,755,090

10,495,150
14,134,520
24,629,670

3.6.

The updated MTFP shows a forecast cumulative deficit position of £1.082 million
over four years, which represented the required use of reserves to balance the 4
year plan, as shown below:
Reserve

Contingency Reserve

2020/21
(Budget)

2021/22

£
138,290

Page 58

£
(901,880)

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
(467,110)

£
(23,370)

£
310,290

3.7.

The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the current approved
MTFP is estimated to be:2020/21
(Budget)

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

£

£

Balance at year-end

3,819,810

2,917,930

2,450,820 2,427,450

2,737,740

Minimum requirement (s7.2)

1,332,000

1,540,000

1,540,000 1,540,000

1,540,000

Headroom

2,487,810

1,377,930

Contingency Reserve

As at February 2021:

3.8.

910,820

887,450

1,197,740

The table below summarises the projected overall HRA reserves position for the
duration of this MTFP. HRA balance is projected to significantly exceed its £1
million contingency minimum over the next four years.

HRA Reserves Brought Forward
Surplus/(Loss) for the year*
Total HRA Reserves carried forward

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2020/21
£
16,464,054

2021/22
£
17,027,032

£
15,156,802

£
14,321,172

15,095,512

562,978

(1,870,230)

(835,630)

774,340

590,930

17,027,032

15,156,802

14,321,172

15,095,512

15,686,442

£

4.

Impact of Coronavirus Pandemic & 2020/21 Outturn Position

4.1.

The Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having, an adverse
impact on the Council’s financial position. The immediate financial impact arose
from additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis as well as lost income and
delays in delivering savings targets. The longer-term financial impacts on
corporate plan objectives are difficult to forecast. Hence the need to maintain
adequate financial contingency levels.

4.2.

The 2020/21 outturn position was positive for the Council. As well as add
£100,000 to the earmarked reserve to fund future costs of the Covid-19 recovery
programme, the Council has added £950,000 to the general Contingency reserve.
This places the Council in a much better position to respond to increased levels of
risk.

4.3.

The 2021/22 financial position will be monitored through the remainder of the year
taking into account the actual recovery of income levels and services and any
further updates on Government funding.

5.

Capital Programme & Revenue Consequences

5.1.

The 2020/21 outturn position on General Fund capital spend was slightly over the
revised budget, primarily because of more pre-construction expenditure being

Page 59

incurred against the project in 2020/21 than originally anticipated, so the balance
of the remaining budget has been reprofiled accordingly. The Capital Programme
presented to Members in February 2021 will be reviewed, re-profiled and updated
as part of 2022/23 budget setting considerations, particularly to where projects
have been delayed due to the lockdown periods, social distancing measures and
contractor availability. In addition, the Council will develop an Asset Management
Strategy to ensure the future delivery of efficient asset management. This work
will be progressed once condition surveys have been undertaken and the updated
30 year costs of maintaining the general fund asset stock are known.
5.2.

The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include
external grants and contributions from third parties comprising of Government and
lottery funding; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the asset management
plan; earmarked revenue reserves and borrowing. As noted in the Table at para
3.4, estimated capital receipts of £4.466m are assumed (over the period 2020/21
to 2024/25), which is a challenging target requiring decisions to be made on land
use and asset sales. The Council’s current estimated borrowing requirement over
the 4 years is shown below and there are no material changes to this in the
refresh of the MTFP to date (assuming that capital receipts will be delivered):General Fund Borrowing
Requirement
Total

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
4,000,500

£
3,043,150

£

£
0

0

5.3.

In addition, there are other major capital projects in the process of being designed
(for example, the Future High Street Fund project) and some emerging national
policy issues that may have financial impacts locally, such as the Department for
Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (DEFRA) consultation on consistency in
household and business recycling in England. In the case of any major capital
project, the default presumption is that schemes will be self-financing, and any
financial implications will be identified in decision-making reports to the Executive
that will then feed into the MTFP. In the case of any national changes to service
policy, the default presumption is that central Government will fund the costs of
any changes imposed nationally. Again, detailed reports to the Executive will
identify if this assumption is incorrect, with any financial implications reflected in an
updated MTFP.

5.4.

The Council incurred HRA capital expenditure of £3,731,138 during the year
against a revised budget of £3,971,930; representing an under spend of £240,792.
However, there were carry forward requests of £263,000 on schemes. This is
reflected in the reduced funding direct from the HRA and associated capital
reserves, but with a requirement for the use of additional reserves in 2021/22 to
accommodate the requested carry forwards. There were no other material impacts
on the longer term HRA capital programme.

5.5.

An updated and sustainable 30 year HRA Business Plan was presented alongside
the MTFP in February 2019. It highlighted several key issues and challenges
such as the impact of the welfare reform, understanding tenant priorities,
considering the outcomes of estate regeneration reviews and the development of
new stock. All the savings in the HRA Financial Improvement Plan have been

Page 60

delivered. The major assumptions underpinning the HRA business plan will be
reviewed prior to rent setting in February 2022.
6.

Inflationary Pressures and Investments

6.1.

Inflation forecasts are made reflecting the composition of the Council’s
expenditure, resulting in an inflation rate specific to the Council. This includes the
impact on staff pay, supplies and services, premises related costs and transport.
The costs to the Council arising from inflation are forecast in the current MTFP as
follows:

Inflationary Changes

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Employee Costs
Premises Costs
Transport
Supplies and Services
In-Year Inflation Pressure

£
127,140
91,180
3,220
143,110
364,650

£
111,240
101,580
5,100
142,940
360,860

£
111,910
62,670
5,160
144,620
324,360

£
112,900
63,570
5,160
144,380
326,010

General Fund
Housing Revenue Account

237,510
127,140

222,180
138,680

224,140
100,220

224,730
101,280

When the MTFP was set (in February 2021) HM Treasury were invoking a public
sector pay freeze and inflation was depressed by the pandemic. At the time of this
refresh (August 2021), the Retail Price Index (RPI) was 2.7% and Consumer Price
Index (CPI) was 2.5%, with the Bank of England forecasting that inflation may hit
4% by the end of the calendar year. In addition, a national 1.5% pay increase offer
has been rejected by the Unions, so will need revisiting. It is unclear whether
current inflation rates are a blip created by a temporary uptick in demand as
lockdown eases, or whether rising prices reflect a systemic shift in the economy.
However, it does look as if the current MTFP forecasts (pay (1%); and an amalgam
of premises (1.25%), transport (1%) and supplies (1.5%) price increases will need
reviewing prior to the budget being set, with the likelihood that budgetary provision
for inflation will need to increase. In addition, it is currently unclear what the longer
term structural economic impacts of Covid-19 and Brexit may be, so this will need
ongoing monitoring.
6.2. The expectation is that interest rates will continue at current low levels throughout
the period of the MTFP, with only a small potential increase in the 4th year. The
Council’s advisors - Link – forecast average investment income earnings of near
0% return.
6.3. The PWLB consultation was released at the end of November 2020 and as was
widely anticipated, rates were reduced by 1%. This has not directly impacted the
forecast of borrowing interest rates, but it does provide more options for the Council
to borrow, particular for longer periods. However, there are no material changes to
existing forecasts and the budget remains as follows:

Page 61

Treasury Budgets – Borrowing
costs and investment Income
General Fund
Borrowing Costs
Investment Income
HRA
Borrowing Costs
Investment Income

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
1,824,340
(40,290)

£
1,919,640
(39,410)

£
1,967,700
(40,040)

£
1,951,700
(63,280)

1,700,040
(6,980)

1,581,150
(5,910)

1,522,920
(6,570)

1,532,550
(12,640)

7.

Budgetary Demand & Growth

7.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2021 included
changes in budgetary demand for a number of factors, the most noticeable of
which were the following:




Leisure centres – one year support of £754,000 has been included with an
assumption that this will be in part offset by further Government grant aid of
£160,000; giving a net provision of £594,000 in the Plan.
Glossop Halls – Loss of rental income during the renovation project are
included in the Plan on the assumption that the work will be completed by
2023/24.
Waste Collection - Costs are included arising out of the closure of
Melandra depot and the increase in tonnages collected.

Early forecasts (for Quarter 1) indicate that this additional budget capacity is
sufficient. In addition, other areas identified in the MTFP where there may be a
requirement to include upfront increased budget demand have been covered by
the creation of new (or increased) reserves to cover climate change related
projects and Organisational Development. So, the budgetary demands identified
in February 2021 remain valid.
7.2.

It is assumed, considering the financial pressures faced by the Council, that any
local issues that necessitate budget growth will be financed by internal spending
reductions elsewhere. Occasionally, it is necessary to include budget growth to
meet spending commitments, but there is no indication that any such items are
required in this refresh of the MTFP.

7.3.

The MTFP assumes that income losses suffered in 2020/21 arising out of the
Covid19 outbreak will be substantially recovered by the end of 2021/22. Early
indicators from Quarter 1 monitoring indicate that this assumption remains sound.

7.4.

The Medium Term Financial Plan would normally project that the Council will
increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation,
acknowledging that certain income streams may not increase each year and
others are fixed or subject to periodic review. However, the assumed annual
increase in base income has been suspended for years 1 and 2 of the plan, whilst
fees and charges income levels recover from the Covid19 shock

Page 62

7.5.

Additional revenue arising out of increased fees and charges of £115,000
(including inflationary increases) has been reprofiled into 2023/24. This is at risk if
new tariffs (or other sources of income) are not introduced.

7.6.

The current HRA Plan projects a 2.5% in rent in the years 2022/23 to 2024/25.
This is based on the ability of Authorities to increase rents from 2020/21 by CPI
+1%. It also assumes that ‘Other Charges’, including garages and service
charges, will increase in 2021/22 – 2024/25. As noted in Section 6, CPI is
currently rising at a greater rate. Therefore, the current forecasts (as outlined in
the table below) may need reviewing later in the financial year:
Rental Income

2021/22

Revenue from Rental Income and Other Charges

2022/23

£
(112,200)

2023/24

£
(285,420)

£
(290,640)

2024/25
£
(591,220)**

** 53 week rent year

8.

Local Taxes – Council Tax, Business Rates & New Homes Bonus

Council Tax
8.1. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of
capping. However, the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more than a
certain percentage is subject to referendum. For 2021/22, this percentage was 2%,
but alternatively, lower tier Authorities had the option to increase the Band D
equivalent by a set £5 or 2% – whichever was higher.
8.2. The February 2021iteration of the MTFP assumed a 1.9% increase from 2022/23
onwards. In addition, provision was included to reflect anticipated growth in Council
Tax base over the next 4 years. Having seen the growth in tax base slow during the
pandemic as house-building and employment levels were affected; it is assumed that
this will recover in 2022/23, boosted by an upturn in the economy. Current
assumptions are as follows:
Increased Council Tax Income
Revenue from increased Council Tax
Revenue from Tax Base growth

2021/22
£
(154,850)
13,230

2022/23
£
(114,980)
(87,440)

2023/24
£
(118,370)
(68,700)

2024/25
£
(121,780)
(70,080)

Total

(141,620)

(202,420)

(187,070)

(191,860)

8.3. There has been no further update from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) regarding the principles by which a Council Tax increase for
2022/23 will be regarded as “excessive” and require a referendum. Therefore, it is
sensible at this point in time to assume 1.9% increases, purely for planning purposes
within the MTFP.
Business Rates
8.4. Under the 50% Business Rates Retention system, the Authority retains 40% of
Business Rates less a tariff that is payable into a pool of Derbyshire Authorities. This

Page 63

amount is then compared to a Funding Baseline with any amount in excess of this
Baseline subject to levy, or conversely if the amount of retained Business Rates is
below this Baseline, the loss is capped by a safety net payment. The MTFP does not
anticipate the Council falling below the Baseline.
8.5. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the baseline. Net
income is somewhat suppressed due to the award of reliefs including increased small
business rate relief, caps on inflation to the multiplier, extended rural relief, and the
increase in the provision for RV reductions on successful appeals. To compensate
for the loss of business rates, the Government distributes grants (known as Section
31 grants) to Councils.
8.6. As part of the Derbyshire Pool, the levy or the safety net payment is made to or from
the Pool instead of Central Government. If the Council was not in the Staffordshire
Pool it would have to pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy, effectively
limiting the income the Council can gain from business rates growth. However, as
part of the Pool, the Council retains 40% of this levy plus 20% or £215,000,
whichever is the larger; meaning that for every £1 achieved above the baseline at
least 60% is retained by the Council with the remainder going to the Pool to be
distributed within Staffordshire. The benefit to the Council of being part of the Pool
arrangement is estimated to be £430,350 in 2021/22.
8.7. As a result of Covid-19 and the impact recession and social distancing measures are
having on businesses, there is a risk that the Council may see a reduction in the
business tax base and therefore business rates retention. A reduction of 0.5% has
been included in this version of the MTFP. There is also a risk associated with nonpayment, although collection rates for 2020/21 generally held up. 98.1% of Business
Rates was collected by 31 March 2021, compared with 98.4% for the same period
last year. Bad debt provision of 1% has been set for 2021/22; with 0.8% in 2022/23;
returning to the pre-Covid level of 0.6% in 2023/24 and 2024/25.
New Homes Bonus
8.8. The Government consulted on a replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme
earlier this year. Any new housing incentive scheme will reflect a more targeted
approach that rewards local government where they are ‘ambitious’ in delivering
housing growth. At this stage, there is no further detail on what form the new scheme
will take. In the absence of any further information, this refresh of the MTFP assumes
that the Council will continue to receive funding at a base level of £450,000 per
annum. However, this does remain a major risk to the viability of the Plan beyond
2021/22.
9.

Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme

General Fund
9.1. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by Members in
February 2017, which identified a programme of £2.1 million in savings to be made
over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21. Subsequently, a review was undertaken in
February 2019 to assess the timing and estimated value of future savings based on
the current programme. The Covid-19 recovery phase and impact on the Council’s
financial position has continued into 2021/22, but there is only a relatively modest
£95,000 target outstanding, and the Council has an earmarked reserve to support
any reprofiling requirement. There will be greater certainty on achievement of the

Page 64

savings target following Quarter 2 monitoring. No assumptions in respect of any ‘new’
efficiency programme have been incorporated into this refresh of the plan.
HRA Efficiency Programme
9.2. A HRA Financial Improvement Plan was approved as part of the MTFP in February
2017 which identified £1.2m in savings from several sources to be achieved over the
period 2017/18 – 2020/21. Progress against the Improvement Plan has been
positive and all the £1.2m savings have now been achieved.
10. Use and Level of Reserves
10.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by several assumptions that have
been made explicit in this report. New information, when it emerges, may require the
Council to alter its assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial
position. Members receive quarterly updates on performance against the budget,
indicating whether such assumptions remain robust.
10.2. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot be
fully mitigated. In February 2021 the minimum general reserve contingency balance
was set at £1.540m with an anticipation at 1st April 2021 it would hold a contingency
reserve of £3.8m. At outturn the contingency was at £4.1m, indicating a relatively
healthy level of reserves, albeit acknowledging higher levels of financial risk too.
10.3. In addition, the HRA budget for 2020/21 was originally set to produce a deficit of
£0.8m, to be funded from reserves, but produced a surplus of £1.3m to be added to
reserves, which again leaves the overall level of HRA reserves in a relatively strong
position (see para 3.8 above).
10.4. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Budget and Medium
Term Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and actively
managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within the funding
at its disposal. The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded
within this Medium Term Financial Plan:
Revenue Risks













Capital Risks

Inflationary assumptions
Interest rates
Housing benefits
Fees and charges
Universal Credit
Business Rates
Council Tax collection
Housing Rent levels (HRA
affordability)
Government grants
Financial benefits from partnerships
/ shared services
Pension costs
Contract Management












Page 65

Interest rates
External funding
Capital receipts
Capacity to deliver capital
programme
Project overspends
Project overruns
External factors (e.g. planning
objections, judicial reviews etc.
leading to project delay)
Housing finance
Weather
Brexit implications

 Brexit implications
10.5. In addition, there are several financial risks within the MTFP related to local recovery
post Covid-19 that need to be regularly reviewed and considered:o
o
o
o
o

The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure
consequences for the Council – especially regarding the operation of leisure
centres
Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as
forecast
The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic
problems in town centres and the broader economy, as well as community
safety issues, which lead to increased cost pressures
Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic support.
Further national lockdowns / tiered systems imposed which leads to further
pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to the Council
in providing support

11. Summary of Financial Risks and Next Steps
11.1. A summary of all the considerations above is given in the annex to this report, with
each factor RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rated, using the following criteria:
Either the financial position has materially shifted from that in the MTFP set in
February 2021 in a negative way (i.e. costs have increased and / or income has
reduced); or there are external factors beyond the influence of the Council, which
could detrimentally impact on the financial position of the Council.
Amber The financial position has shifted from that in the MTFP set in February 2021 in a
negative way (i.e. costs have increased and / or income has reduced), but there are
mitigating actions available (e.g. short term reserves) or policy decisions available
to resolve the pressure, but they have not yet been implemented.
Green The current financial forecast remains as set in the MTFP set in February or has
improved since that time (i.e. costs have reduced and / or income has grown).
Red

11.2. The overall conclusion is that the MTFP remains fundamentally robust and the
following actions will need to be taken prior to it being agreed alongside the 2022/23
budget in February 2022:
 Forecasts are rolled forward to include 2025/26
 Inflation provision is reviewed alongside economic data to establish whether
structural inflation is higher than previously forecast
 Any service budget demands are built in
 The outcomes of any Government reviews (on council tax, business rates and
new homes bonus) are considered
 Any changes to the capital programme (including any identified capital /
revenue implications of major projects) are reflected
 Decisions on any fees and charges and the deliverability of capital receipts are
also reflected

Page 66

Ann ex - September 2021 Review of High Peak MTFP
Area
Revenue Consequences of
Capital Spend

Return on Investments
Inflation Pressures

Increased / (Reduced) Budget
Demand

Budget Growth

Council Tax Income

Collection Fund

Government Funding Reviews

Use of and Levels of Reserves

Fees and Charges

Efficiency & Rationalisation
Plan

RAG

Comment
The outturn position on capital spend was in line with the
revised budget, so do not expect much variation from
existing MTFP plans. However, the capital programme is
more dependent on £4.4m of receipts being realised
(over the period to 2024/25), which will require decisions
on planning / sales etc
There is unlikely to be any change to interest rates in the
short term, but the MTFP already reflects this.
MTFP is built on the following Inflation assumptions: pay
(1%); and amalgam of premises (1.25%), transport (1%)
and supplies (1.5%).These assumptions were set when
HM Treasury were invoking a public sector pay freeze
and inflation was depressed by the pandemic. The pay
estimate (for 2021/22) now looks low – a national 1.5%
pay increase offer has been rejected by the Unions, so
will need revisiting.
Generally, the additional allocations incorporated into the
2021/22 budget seem to be adequate (as at interim
Quarter 1 monitoring), including the level of leisure
contractor support (£594k) and the expectation of car
park income returning to pre Covid levels by the end of
the year. There is the potential for further Facilities
Management costs, but only for this financial year, which
could be met from one-off Covid resources.
There is nothing to suggest that the current principle that
any local issues that necessitate budget growth are
financed by internal spending reductions elsewhere does
not still hold. Specific issues previously identified in the
MTFP (around climate change related projects and
Organisational Strategy) have been covered by additional
earmarked reserves, as part of the 2020/21 outturn.
There has been no indication from MHCLG regarding the
level at which a referendum is required to raise council
tax (known colloquially as the “capping guide”) but given
forecast inflation levels the current MTFP assumption of
1.9% remains valid.
Collection rates for both Business Rates (98.1%) and
Council Tax (97.8%) have remained high, so MTFP
projections remain fundamentally sound. The removal of
furlough funding may have a negative impact on Council
Tax recovery but will need reviewing later in the year.
The Government’s position on a replacement for New
Homes Bonus, the future or expansion of Business Rates
Retention and the Fair Funding review all remain
unknown. The outcomes from these reviews pose the
biggest risks to the Authority. However, the likelihood is
no implementation of any changes for a further year.
Following the 2020/21 outturn, another £0.950m has
been added to the general contingency, which is 0.3m
better than anticipated in the February 2021 MTFP.
Inflationary increases are built into the MTFP, plus £115k
in 2023/24 and £40k in 2024/25, for which decisions will
need to be made.
No ongoing savings requirement from 2022/23, and just
£95k is required in 2021/22.

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
The Executive
7 October 2021
TITLE:

Vision Derbyshire

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR

Cllr Anthony McKeown – Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS :

Andrew Stokes – Chief Executive

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – Vision Derbyshire - High Level Plan
Appendix B – Proposed Governance Arrangements for Vision Derbyshire
Appendix C – Flow Charts

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to:




Provide an update on work taking place with Derbyshire Councils on
Vision Derbyshire and the emergence of the opportunities presented
through a County Deal;
Seek approval for the Council’s involvement in Phase 4 development and
implementation; and
Seek to confirm the Council’s involvement in the establishment of a Joint
Committee of local authorities within Derbyshire, the Vision Derbyshire
Committee, to progress a collaborative working model which seeks to
improve outcomes for people and place through closer working between
those authorities.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that the Executive:




Note progress on the development of the Vision Derbyshire approach and
recent Phase 3 developments and achievements.
Consider and note key actions currently being undertaken during Vision
Derbyshire Phase 3a to develop an ambitious programme of work in
advance of Phase 4.
Consider and approve Vision Derbyshire Phase 4 proposals for the
forthcoming period as set out in the report.

Page 69











Approve the Council’s active participation in Vision Derbyshire Phase 4
and the associated costs of taking forward the programme of work, the
maximum cost of which currently stands at £52,350 per annum.
Approve proposals for the establishment of the Vision Derbyshire Joint
Committee and delegates functions to the Joint Committee as set out in
the Functions and Responsibilities document in Appendix B.
Approve the Terms of Reference, including the Introduction and Context,
Functions and Responsibilities, Procedural Rules and Information
Procedure Rules for the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee as set out at
Appendix B and the position detailed in those documents regarding
scrutiny and co-option.
Appoint the Leader, Cllr Anthony McKeown, as the Council’s
representative on the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee and the Deputy
Leader, Cllr Damien Greenhalgh, as substitute.
Agree to delegate authority to the Leader to agree by executive member
decision which authority will act as the host authority for the Joint
Committee.
Note that as the functions of the Committee are executive functions, HPBC
will not have the opportunity to co-opt additional members onto the
Committee and the ability to co-opt is restricted within the Terms of
Reference.
Note that, in accordance with section 9F of the Local Government Act
2000, constituent authorities who operate executive arrangements will
need to make formal scrutiny arrangements to review or scrutinise
decisions made in connection with the exercise of the functions of the
Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee, and that the Council’s existing scrutiny
arrangements through its select committees will apply.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Council has been working with the other local authorities in Derbyshire on
a new collective and ambitious vision and model of local government
collaboration. Phase 1 of the approach, which commenced in July 2019,
involved the Councils working together to develop a shared set of priorities
and to agree to strategically collaborate on:





3.2

Improvement of outcomes for people and places;
Speak with one voice as a county;
Provide a viable alternative to unitarisation; and to
Co-ordinate resources better and more sustainably.

Phase 2 of the approach resulted in the development of Vision Derbyshire, an
approach to non-structural reform and a case for change and proposition to
central government focused around four key ambitions as follows:


Seize innovation - pioneering skills and technologies for a sustainable
future economy

Page 70





Establish relentless ambition - creating opportunities for everyone in
Derbyshire and making these visible:
Build proactive communities - harnessing the energy in Derbyshire’s
communities and empowering people to make change:
Live and work sustainably - committing to a zero-carbon footprint in our
tourism, wider economy and ways of working

3.3

In November 2020, a report to the Corporate Select Committee and the
Executive, provided an update on Vision Derbyshire in the context of the
awaited Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper. Following consideration
of this report, the Executive agreed to adopt Vision Derbyshire as the
Council’s preferred option of local government reform in Derbyshire subject to
further reports on confirmed proposals.

3.4

Consequently the Council has continued to participate in Phase 3 of the
development of Vision Derbyshire. This has involved working to further
develop the Vision Derbyshire approach. The Leaders and Chief Executives
of eight Derbyshire Councils (all Derbyshire Councils excluding Derby City
Council and South Derbyshire District Council), agreed to progress and
commence implementation of Vision Derbyshire proposals, translating the
case for change and proposition to central government into a practical
programme of work.

3.5

Significant progress being made in a relatively short period of time and has
been successful in demonstrating the true potential of the approach. During
Phase 3, Leaders and Chief Executives supported by Lead Officers from
across the range of participating Councils have been given responsibility for
identified thematic programmes of work. The outline of the themes and
responsibilities for delivery are detailed in Appendix A.

3.6

Engagement sessions specifically aimed at broadening wider Elected Member
involvement took place between January and March 2021. Rapid progress
has also been made on governance with Lead Officers, from a number of
participating Councils, involved in the Governance Working Group designing
and developing proposals for new formal governance arrangements through a
new Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee which are presented in this report for
consideration and endorsement.

3.7

In March 2021, proposals to take forward the approach were approved and
Phase 3a, which commenced in April 2021, is now underway. Phase 3a seeks
to take advantage of the significant progress made during Phase 3 putting in
place plans and making the necessary preparations for the delivery of a wider,
ambitious programme of work as part of Phase 4 proposals. It is anticipated
that all necessary plans and activity will be completed in readiness for the
launch of Phase 4 at the end of September 2021.

3.8

A key principle of the approach is to put in place a model to position
Derbyshire at the forefront of any national developments including securing a
potential devolution deal. The national landscape has recently shifted, with a
move away from Devolution and Local Recovery to Levelling Up. Recent

Page 71

announcements by the Prime Minister and the appointment of a Secretary of
State for Levelling Up have signalled a move towards the creation of County
Deals and this presents significant opportunities for Derbyshire Councils
through Vision Derbyshire to present a credible model to Government.
3.9

Given the anticipated publication of the forthcoming Levelling-Up White
Paper, expected late in the Autumn, many county councils including
Derbyshire are actively considering their routes to securing a County Deal.
Government are currently in discussions with a number of authorities across
the country and it is expected that the Government will invite a small number
of these to be pilot areas. Derbyshire County Council recently submitted a
formal expression of interest requesting that Derbyshire be considered as a
potential County Deal pilot area.

3.10

Phase 4 of the Programme will seek to:








3.11

Confirm detailed implementation proposals developed during Phase 3a
and commence delivery of agreed short and medium-term programmes of
activity focused on achieving the four Vision Derbyshire strategic
ambitions
Establish a new joint Vision Derbyshire programme team, tasked with
accelerating and supporting the implementation of delivery plans and
proposals
Build on the success of Phase 3, further extending and deepening the
engagement and involvement of elected members, senior managers and
partner organisations through agreed implementation and delivery
proposals
Establish the new Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee embedding new
decision-making processes across participating councils
Build a broader longer-term delivery programme to meet agreed Vision
Derbyshire ambitions.

Detailed delivery programmes for each of the four thematic ambitions are
currently in development and will be in place by September 2021. Key
priorities for each of the ambitions which are set out below:
Ambition
Seize Innovation
Achieve Relentless Ambition

Communities

Live and Work Sustainably

Priorities
Business Entrepreneur Scheme
Smart Towns Programme
Careers
Skills and Employment Research
Festival of Business
Social Mobility
Homelessness
Independent Living
Domestic Abuse
Climate Change
Shared Planning Policies

Page 72

3.12

The creation of new formal governance arrangements is proposed in order to
ensure that Derbyshire Councils can work effectively, maximise opportunities
for collaboration and provide a platform to enable agile and flexible formal
joint decision making. The articles, functions and procedure rules for the
proposed Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee are attached at Appendix B, for
consideration and approval by the Council. The articles set out the main aims
of the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee, which will:





3.13

Provide collective leadership for Derbyshire
Progress shared ambitions for the area
Work together to tackle the issues and challenges outlined in the case for
change; and
Enable agile, timely and effective decision making.

The Joint Committee, on behalf of the participating authorities, will be
responsible for improving the delivery of functions already within the remit of
local authorities through statute or through specific collaborative work to
improve the economic, environmental or social wellbeing of the areas within
Derbyshire from the following broad definitions:





Shared service arrangements
Incorporating existing partnership arrangements within
Derbyshire model
Areas for collaborative system changes across authorities
Specific thematic projects and priorities

the

Vision

3.14

As Phase 4 progresses from September 2021, it is envisaged that the Joint
Committee will take on new areas of work and responsibility as these emerge
and develop. This will be subject to approval by the Council to delegate those
additional functions to the Joint Committee.

3.15

All Derbyshire Councils are now being asked whether they wish to progress
their involvement in Vision Derbyshire moving forward. It is important to note
that with the prospect of Vision Derbyshire and the Joint Committee providing
the foundations and structure for a County Deal, those councils not wishing to
progress their involvement in Vision Derbyshire at this time will still be able to
make a decision to join in the future.

3.16

The Council is now asked to consider proposals as set out in the report in
relation to the authority’s future involvement in Vision Derbyshire and the
proposed Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee. Given the role the Council has
played in developing the Vision Derbyshire approach, it is recommended that
the authority delegate functions to the Joint Committee as set out in report to
enable it to be formed. As the functions are executive functions, members
appointed to the Vision Derbyshire Committee should be members of the
Executive.

3.17

Proposals to adequately resource Phase 4 ambitions and plans, initially for a
twelve-month period, have been developed and involve the creation of a

Page 73

Programme Team and resource. The Council is required to contribute towards
the cost of this.

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The Vision Derbyshire approach will potentially have a significant impact on
the achievement of a number of the Council’s corporate priorities

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Alternative Option 1 Do Nothing – The Council could continue with current
arrangements for Vision Derbyshire with existing informal governance
arrangements and resources. However, this option is not sustainable in the
short and medium term because resources and capacity to deliver identified
programmes of work are not sufficient to progress the approach. A new joint
team and formal governance arrangements provide an opportunity to present
a different and new model of collaboration as a viable alternative to local
government reform and as such this would not deliver the ambitions of the
Council to deliver local government reform. (Not recommended)

5.2

Alternative Option 2 – The Council could cease its involvement in Vision
Derbyshire and abandon ambitions to develop a new collaborative model for
Derbyshire. The Council instead could continue to pursue opportunities to
deliver improved outcomes through traditional forms of collaboration and
partnership. However, this approach has known limitations, does not address
the challenges facing local government in respect of reduced financial
resources and will not deliver the full range of benefits as set out in the report.
It does not provide a viable alternative to local government reorganisation and
limits Derbyshire’s ability to speak with one voice. Ultimately this could
prevent Derbyshire from maximising resources into Derbyshire that may
become available through devolution and the levelling up agenda. (Not
Recommended)

5.3

Alternative Option 3 – The Council could cease its involvement in Vision
Derbyshire and pursue an alternative approach to local government reform
through local government reorganisation. However, this is not currently the
Council’s preferred option and there is currently no framework in place to
enable Councils in the country to pursue this approach at the current moment
in time (Not recommended)

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
Following agreement of proposals, Vision Derbyshire Councils will need to

Page 74

identify and confirm a host organisation to support the joint programme
team. It is yet to be determined which Council will host the seven
Programme Team posts however, recruitment to the posts would be in line
with the grading criteria of the host council and their policies and
procedures.
It is proposed that all posts will be created on a fixed term basis, and as
such, will be subject to the host council’s redundancy and redeployment
policies and procedures. Where employees are on fixed term contracts,
employment law determines that they may be entitled to claim both unfair
dismissal and/or redundancy payment at the termination of their contract.
All partners will be asked to confirm their willingness to recognise an
obligation to the postholders, through offering redeployment opportunities as
appropriate, should this become necessary.
6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed as the report relates to an
administrative decision rather than an issue of policy.

6.4

Financial Considerations
The total cost of taking forward Vision Derbyshire proposals is £436,248. A
breakdown of costings is set out in the report at Section
The total cost to the Council in supporting current proposals as set out in the
report is £52,350, which can be met from Efficiency and Rationalisation
Earmarked Reserve. It is anticipated that this cost will be offset by savings
realised from the enhanced two-tier working implemented in Phase 4 of the
programme.
Future years’ contributions will be considered by the Executive following a
review of the outcomes from the programme.
The host authority is likely to incur costs relating to the operation of the Joint
Committee and these will be met from the Programme Budget. The cost of
ensuring the Council can actively participate in the development and
implementation of proposals are currently unknown and will therefore be the
subject of a separate report to the Executive as further detail emerges.

6.5

Legal
The establishment of joint committee arrangements will need to considered
and approved at full Council
The constitutional / legal implications are set out in Section 14 of the report

16.6

6.7

Climate Change
Collaboration on climate change has been identified as one of the key areas
for potential future focus for Vision Derbyshire
External Consultation

Page 75

None at this stage

Page 76

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers
A New Vision for Derbyshire – NonStructural Reform Final Report, PWC
November 2019

Location

Contact details

Buxton Town Hall

Andrew P Stokes
Chief Executive

Vision Derbyshire Case for Change –
July 2020
Vision
Derbyshire Proposition
Central Government – July 2020

to

Page 77

7

Introduction and Background

7.1

Over the last two years, Councils across Derbyshire have been working
towards a new collective and ambitious vision and model of local government
collaboration, integration and shared leadership, which has looked beyond
traditional partnerships and focused on achieving the greatest public value for
local people and communities.

7.2

Phase 1 of the approach which commenced in July 2019, saw all ten Councils
in Derbyshire – the County Council, Derby City Council and eight district and
borough councils – working together to develop a shared set of priorities and
to agree to strategically collaborate on the improvement of outcomes for
people and places, to speak with one voice as a county, to provide a viable
alternative to unitarisation and to coordinate resources better and more
sustainably.

7.3

Phase 2 of the approach resulted in the development of Vision Derbyshire, an
approach to non-structural reform and a case for change and proposition to
central government focused around four key ambitions as follows:





Seize innovation - pioneering skills and technologies for a sustainable
future economy
Establish relentless ambition - creating opportunities for everyone in
Derbyshire and making these visible:
Build proactive communities - harnessing the energy in Derbyshire’s
communities and empowering people to make change:
Live and work sustainably - committing to a zero-carbon footprint in our
tourism, wider economy and ways of working

7.4

A number of enablers, including: leadership; culture; strategy; technology;
workforce; customers; and assets, to support and embed collaboration, were
also identified during the development of Phase 2, alongside estimated
organisational and wider system benefits that could potentially be achieved if
the new approach were to be taken forward.

7.5

New formal governance arrangements, to support effective decision making,
were also identified during this phase as being crucial in taking the approach
forward, in addition to a number of asks and offers to Government to support
the realisation of ambitions.

7.6

In November 2020, a report to the Corporate Select Committee and the
Executive, provided an update on Vision Derbyshire in the context of the
awaited Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper, with reports at the time
suggesting that this could pave the way for widespread local government
reorganisation. Following consideration of this report, the Executive agreed to:


Note the progress with the work that has taken place with Derbyshire
Councils on the development of Vision Derbyshire – a new collaborative
approach to deliver non-structural reform across Derbyshire.

Page 78







7.7

Note the intended publication of the Government’s Devolution and Local
Recovery White Paper and the potential implications in relation to local
government reform.
Approve Vision Derbyshire as the Council’s preferred option of local
government reform in Derbyshire at this current time subject to further
reports on confirmed proposals.
Endorse the District Councils’ Network’s call for proposals in the
Government’s white paper to back the success of district councils in
delivery and not distract from the local recovery effort or reduce delivery
capacity through forcing local government reorganisation; and
Ensure that the Corporate Select Committee receive further reports on any
confirmed proposals from Vision Derbyshire when available.

Consequently the Council has continued to participate in Phase 3 of the
development of Vision Derbyshire and the purpose of this report is to:





Ensure that the Corporate Select Committee is aware of developments
and progress that has taken place on the development of Vision
Derbyshire and the activity that is currently taking place to prepare for the
next phase of the Vision Derbyshire approach;
Consider the commitment of financial resources to support the Phase 4
proposals; and
Consider the Council’s involvement and participation in new governance
arrangements through a Joint Committee

8

Vision Derbyshire – Phase 3

8.1

Work has actively been taking place to further develop the Vision Derbyshire
approach. In October 2020, Leaders and Chief Executives of eight Derbyshire
Councils (all Derbyshire Councils excluding Derby City Council and South
Derbyshire District Council), agreed to progress and commence
implementation of Vision Derbyshire proposals, translating the case for
change and proposition to central government, developed during Phase 2,
into a practical programme of work across the following five workstreams:






8.2

Strategic and Tactical Development
Building a Team
Accelerated Delivery Programme
Governance Model
Communications and Stakeholder Engagement

Vision Derbyshire Phase 3 has therefore sought to:


Maintain the momentum successfully built up during earlier phases,
extending engagement to a broader range of members, employees and
partner organisations through agreed implementation and delivery
proposals;

Page 79





Mobilise delivery in order to accelerate the implementation of agreed
priorities initially focusing on a number of early start areas aligned to the
four agreed ambitions areas;
Develop draft governance proposals for Vision Derbyshire through the
development of new Joint Committee arrangements; and
Build a broader short and medium-term delivery programme to meet
agreed ambitions.

8.3

Phase 3 has seen significant progress being made in a relatively short period
of time and has been successful in demonstrating the true potential of the
approach. During Phase 3, Leaders and Chief Executives supported by Lead
Officers from across the range of participating Councils have been given
responsibility for identified thematic programmes of work. This has
accelerated shared leadership and accountability and developed trust and
collective buy in to the approach.

8.4

Phase 3 has also seen the design and development of joint programmes of
work to support identified priorities and this has presented opportunities to
showcase activity and the benefits of the model in delivering improved
outcomes for people and place, for example through the development of a
new county wide Business Entrepreneur Scheme and new Homelessness
approach.

8.5

Engagement sessions specifically aimed at broadening wider Elected Member
involvement took place between January and March 2021 and have provided
a basis for the fostering of even closer working relationships through a clearer
understanding and involvement in Vision Derbyshire implementation which
will deliver benefits on the ground.

8.6

Rapid progress has been made on governance with Lead Officers, from a
number of participating Councils, involved in the Governance Working Group
designing and developing proposals for new formal governance arrangements
through a new Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee which are presented in this
report for consideration and endorsement.

8.7

Work to develop communications and engagement of the approach, which will
be vital as activity on the ground emerges, has also taken place with an initial
focus on the development and design of a new Vision Derbyshire brand
through a partnership with the University of Derby.

8.8

Phase 3 has ultimately put in place the foundations and architecture for future
phases of the Vision Derbyshire approach and this will put Derbyshire
Councils in an excellent position to rapidly accelerate future proposals.

9

Current Position

9.1

Vision Derbyshire has been driven forward and involved a significant
investment of time, hard work and goodwill from participating councils and

Page 80

their leaders, executive officers and lead officers. The future of the approach
is now at a critical stage of development, given what it potentially at stake.
9.2

At a meeting of Vision Derbyshire Leaders and Chief Executives in March
2021, proposals to take forward the approach were approved and Phase 3a,
which commenced in April 2021, is now underway. Phase 3a seeks to take
advantage of the significant progress made during Phase 3 putting in place
plans and making the necessary preparations for the delivery of a wider,
ambitious programme of work as part of Phase 4 proposals. The key aims of
Phase 3a are to:








Scope out and develop detailed programme delivery plans for the four
thematic ambition areas ensuring these are developed and in place in
advance of Phase 4 implementation;
Identify and scope out the key enablers and potential shared services
which can be further developed through the Vision Derbyshire approach;
Secure the buy in to, and involvement of participating councils to new
formal governance arrangements;
Identify and secure resources for the creation of dedicated joint
programme support;
Broaden involvement through additional Elected Member, and a series of
new Senior Management Team, engagement sessions across
participating Councils to support the development of programme delivery
plans; and
Re-engage with central government and other key stakeholders to identify
opportunities to maximise opportunities for Derbyshire to support identified
ambitions and priorities.

9.3

It is anticipated that all necessary plans and activity will be completed in
readiness for the launch of Phase 4 at the end of September 2021.

10

County Deals and Devolution

10.1

A key principle of the approach is to put in place arrangements and a model to
position Derbyshire at the forefront of any national developments including
securing a potential devolution deal and maximising additional resources into
the county. The national landscape has recently shifted, with a move away
from Devolution and Local Recovery to Levelling Up. Recent announcements
by the Prime Minister including the appointment of a Secretary of State for
Levelling Up have signalled a move towards the creation of County Deals and
this presents significant opportunities for Derbyshire Councils through Vision
Derbyshire in this shift, to present a credible model to Government.

10.2

Reduced public sector funding and increasing demand for services driven by
demographics and long standing social, health and economic pressures mean
that the Council, like many other authorities across the country, continues to
face significant challenges in providing the services that local people need
and want with available resources. The resulting impact of the pandemic on
the national economy is likely to be significant and the anticipated financial

Page 81

shock on public finances will place local government under increasing
pressures to deliver services with increasing demand and reduced resources.
10.3

Based on existing deals, a County Deal for Derbyshire could incorporate
directly devolved investment in infrastructure, skills, transport and housing.
Such investment would be of vital importance in enabling the local and
regional economy to recover from the pandemic for the benefit of local people.

10.4

Given the anticipated publication of the forthcoming Levelling-Up White
Paper, expected in the Autumn, many county councils are actively considering
their routes to securing a County Deal. Government are currently in
discussions with a number of authorities across the country and it is expected
that the Government will invite a small number of these to be pilot areas.
Derbyshire County Council recently submitted a formal expression of interest
requesting that Derbyshire be considered as a potential County Deal pilot
area.

10.5

Whilst this is an emergent process, the Council understands that those
authorities who can submit the clearest, most innovative and readily
deliverable plans for non-structural reform in their areas, with proposals for
strong governance alongside, are most likely to be successful. Therefore, the
need to mobilise as a group of Vision Derbyshire Councils in this process will
be critical in ensuring that vital resources and funding are drawn into the
county to meet identified ambitions.

10.6

Phase 4 proposals set out in the report will ensure that the necessary
governance and structures to deliver at pace are in place to take advantage of
opportunities as these arise in advance of the White Paper being published
and before any new proposals and funding streams for future Levelling Up
activity is announced.

11

Phase 4 Vision Derbyshire Proposals

11.1

Phase 4 Vision Derbyshire proposals seek to build on the foundations and
architecture built during previous phases whilst clearly focusing on
programme delivery specifically aimed at achieving better outcomes for local
people and places across Derbyshire. Phase 4 of the Programme will seek to:





Confirm detailed implementation proposals developed during Phase 3a
and commence delivery of agreed short and medium-term programmes of
activity focused on achieving the four Vision Derbyshire strategic
ambitions
Establish a new joint Vision Derbyshire programme team, tasked with
accelerating and supporting the implementation of delivery plans and
proposals
Build on the success of Phase 3, further extending and deepening the
engagement and involvement of Elected Members, senior managers and
partner organisations through agreed implementation and delivery
proposals

Page 82




11.2

Establish the new Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee embedding new
decision-making processes across participating councils
Build a broader longer-term delivery programme to meet agreed Vision
Derbyshire ambitions.

Detailed delivery programmes for each of the four thematic ambitions are
currently in development and will be in place by September 2021. Key
priorities for each of the ambitions which are set out below:
Ambition
Seize Innovation
Achieve Relentless Ambition

Communities

Live and Work Sustainably

Priorities
Business Entrepreneur Scheme
Smart Towns Programme
Careers
Skills and Employment Research
Festival of Business
Social Mobility
Homelessness
Independent Living
Domestic Abuse
Climate Change
Shared Planning Policies

11.3

A high-level plan, which sets out key activity identified to date, alongside
Leader, Chief Executive and Lead Officer leads is attached at Appendix A for
consideration.

11.4

The benefits of progressing the Vision Derbyshire approach are significant,
both in terms of the potential offered by the approach and the benefits that will
be accrued through associated programmes of delivery.

11.5

New formal governance arrangements will enable a clear focus and
accountability for key programmes of work which will streamline current
arrangements, reduce duplication, and ensure resources can be effectively
organised and deployed. They will also provide an opportunity to explore
rationalisation of existing partnership structures and approaches, which will be
essential given limited capacity and expertise and reducing public sector
resources.

11.6

The case for change developed through Phase 2 of the approach set out
potential benefits of taking forward Vision Derbyshire as a group of Derbyshire
Councils – these include organisational benefits estimated at between £20m
to £66m and wider system benefits estimated at approximately £1.08bn that
could be achieved. Whilst these figures are indicative at this stage and subject
to the decisions taken by individual Councils, it is clear that developing a joint
approach to a number of complex challenges facing organisations at the
current time both in terms of: programmes of activity which improve outcomes
for people and place; and proactive joint working on key enablers, will
undoubtedly result in better outcomes for people and place and savings.

Page 83

11.7

Any benefits associated with Vision Derbyshire activity will need to link to
agreed programmes of work as these develop and progress over forthcoming
months.

12

Proposals for Future Governance - Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee

12.1

The creation of new formal governance arrangements to support effective
decision making is a critical factor in delivering future Vision Derbyshire
ambitions and progressing a County Deal. Formal governance is important in
ensuring that Derbyshire Councils can work effectively, maximise
opportunities for collaboration and provide a platform to enable agile and
flexible formal joint decision making. Understanding the level of commitment
to the approach is also essential in identifying the appetite of Derbyshire
Councils to progress to Phase 4 and beyond, as well as participate in County
Deal discussions over the forthcoming period.

12.2

A significant amount of work has been undertaken by the Governance
Working Group during Phase 3 on the development of governance proposals.
Draft proposals, for the establishment of a Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee,
were developed and considered by Leaders and Chief Executives of the
current participating Derbyshire Councils at their meeting on 12th March
2021. Leaders and Chief Executives were tasked with considering proposals
within their own organisations and identifying any potential issues and
challenges in advance of proposals being brought forward for approval.

12.3

The final articles, functions and procedure rules for the proposed Vision
Derbyshire Joint Committee are now attached at Appendix B, for
consideration and approval by the Council. These provide a framework for the
Joint Committee to operate as the future decision-making body for matters
where Derbyshire Councils will work collaboratively and demonstrate a
collective political commitment and will to the approach moving forward. The
articles set out the main aims of the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee, which
will:





12.4

Provide collective leadership for Derbyshire
Progress shared ambitions for the area
Work together to tackle the issues and challenges outlined in the case for
change; and
Enable agile, timely and effective decision making.

The Joint Committee, on behalf of the participating authorities, will be
responsible for improving the delivery of functions already within the remit of
local authorities through statute or through specific collaborative work to
improve the economic, environmental or social wellbeing of the areas within
Derbyshire from the following broad definitions:



Shared service arrangements
Incorporating existing partnership
Derbyshire model

Page 84

arrangements

within

the

Vision




Areas for collaborative system changes across authorities
Specific thematic projects and priorities

12.5

The flow charts which are set out in Appendix C to this report, identify the
likely flow of decision making that will be required under the four areas
highlighted above.

12.6

The Joint Committee will initially have responsibility for the approval of agreed
Phase 4 delivery programmes and the budgets and resources allocated to the
full programme of work. It is likely that one of the first key tasks of the Joint
Committee will be the sign off, of the detailed delivery programme as outlined
in the report.

12.7

In the first instance, the Joint Committee will also have responsibility for
previously agreed thematic areas of work such as climate change and social
mobility. As the approach develops, consideration will be given to the Joint
Committee taking on responsibility for existing partnership arrangements such
as the Joint Committee for Economic Prosperity and associated programmes
of work.

12.8

As Phase 4 progress from September 2021, it is envisaged that the Joint
Committee will take on new areas of work and responsibility as these emerge
and develop. This will be subject to approval by the Council to delegate those
additional functions to the Joint Committee. Should there be the proposal to
delegate any non-executive functions, approval from full Council will be
required . The further exploration of agreed enablers will for example, identify
potential areas and opportunities for taking forward shared services which are
likely to result in efficiencies to those Councils participating in the approach.

12.9

In order to form a Joint Committee two or more authorities in the area must
delegate functions to that Joint Committee. All local authorities will be
encouraged to delegate functions to enable full collaboration across the range
of proposed activities that will form part of Vision Derbyshire and to deliver
efficient and effective services with improved economies of scale on a county
wide basis. However, the Articles, Functions and Rules of Procedure set out
in Appendix B recognise that those authorities who choose not to delegate
functions to the Joint Committee will still be able to appoint representatives to
the Committee.

12.10 In order to preserve the decision-making rights of authorities delegating
functions, it is proposed that voting will be restricted to those representatives
who are from authorities which have delegated functions to the Committee.
12.11 In view of the fact that the Joint Committee is not a legal entity, to progress
the approach and to ensure the effective operation of the Joint Committee, a
host organisation will also be required. The host authority be responsible for
the administration of meetings of the Joint Committee, hold funding on behalf
of the Joint Committee and act as the employing authority for the purposes of
the Programme Team. The host authority’s statutory officers will also act as
the statutory officers for the Joint Committee. At this time the host authority

Page 85

has not yet been agreed and is subject to discussion across Derbyshire
Councils. Therefore. in order to avoid any delay in the commencement of
operation of the Joint Committee it is proposed that the Executive delegate
authority to the Leader of the Council to agree the host authority in due
course. A number of authorities have indicated a preference to become the
host authority (not including this Council).
12.12 All Derbyshire Councils are now being asked, and will need to consider,
whether they wish to progress their involvement in Vision Derbyshire moving
forward, the implications of which are set out above. This includes the
approval of proposals to establish the Joint Committee, approval to delegate
the identified functions as set out in the report and the nomination of Leader
representatives to sit on the Joint Committee. It is important to note that with
the prospect of Vision Derbyshire and the Joint Committee providing the
foundations and structure for a County Deal, those councils not wishing to
progress their involvement in Vision Derbyshire at this time will still be able to
make a decision to join in the future.
12.13 The Council is now asked to consider proposals as set out in the report in
relation to the authority’s future involvement in Vision Derbyshire and the
proposed Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee. The establishment of
governance arrangements through the Joint Committee formalise Vision
Derbyshire as an approach. Given the role the Council has played in
developing the Vision Derbyshire approach, it is recommended that the
authority delegate functions to the Joint Committee as set out in report to
enable it to be formed, agree the governance arrangements at Appendix B
and to delegate authority to the Leader to agree by executive member
decision which authority will act as the Vision Derbyshire host authority. It is
also recommended that the Leader, Cllr Anthony McKeown, be nominated to
represent the Council on the Joint Committee once it is formed and the
Deputy Leader, Cllr Damien Greenhalgh, be nominated as substitute.
13

Taking Forward Proposals

13.1

Whilst significant progress has been made on the development of the
approach to date, it has become increasingly apparent that the ability to
accelerate delivery is currently limited due to the lack of capacity. This is
particularly the case at a project and programme delivery level. The lack of
resource at what has been a critical time for local government in terms of the
recent pandemic has slowed the delivery response.

13.2

Proposals to adequately resource Phase 4 ambitions and plans, initially for a
twelve-month period, are set out below and create the following programme
resource:


Programme team – comprising combination of team members to facilitate
delivery

Page 86





13.3

Proposals for the Programme Team include the creation of the following roles
on a fixed term basis:





13.4

Programme budget – funding to support the buy in of specialist expertise
and support and support the operation of the Joint Committee and other
associated costs
Communications budget – funding to support branding, design,
campaigns, social media activity etc
Equipment, travel and subsistence – to support the activities of the
programme team
Accommodation – in-kind support from host agency/agencies

Programme Manager
4 Senior Project Officers (one per ambition theme)
Communications Officer
Admin Support Officer

The total cost of taking forward resourcing proposals per annum is £436,248.
Resource

Cost
£

Programme Team
Programme Manager

47,181 (oncosts 13,211)

4 Senior Project Officers (1 per theme)

131,652 (oncosts 36,863)

Communications Officer

32,913 (oncosts 9,216)

Admin Support Officer

19,697 (oncosts 5,515)

Programme Budget

100,000

Equipment, Travel and Subsistence

10,000

Communications Budget

30,000

Total

13.5

436,248

Subject to approval of proposals, it has been agreed that the costs of
preparing for and taking forward Phase 4 proposals, should be shared across
Councils using the following split:
Council

Cost Split
£

County Council 40% split
District and Borough Councils
60% split

174,499
261,749
(32,719 per council if eight councils)
(37,393 per council if seven councils)
(43,635 per council if six councils)
(52,350 per council if five councils)

Page 87

Total

436,248

13.6

The Council’s contribution to the total cost of supporting Vision Derbyshire
Phase 4 is therefore likely to be a maximum of £52,350 based on the
involvement of five participating Derbyshire Councils. This figure will reduce
should a greater number of Council agree proposals to become a participating
Council. Involvement in Phase 4 presents a unique opportunity for the Council
to participate in the further development and implementation of an innovative
and collaborative approach for Derbyshire and a delivery programme which
will support the achievement of key Council priorities which will ultimately
benefit local people across local communities in High Peak and Derbyshire as
a whole. The ability to pool resources on the programme is likely to deliver
significant benefits across a range of activities.

13.7

The Council’s costs in year one will be met from the Efficiency and
Rationalisation Earmarked Reserve. Section 11.6 of the report highlights the
significant financial savings that could be achieved through enhanced two-tier
working brought about by the Vision Derbyshire approach. It is difficult at this
early stage to pinpoint the actual financial benefit to HPBC of the initial
financial investment. However, significant financial savings have already been
realised through the following early work:



Homelessness – a shared approach to the ’everyone in’ requirements
during the COVID-19 response in 2020 resulted in significant lower costs
for the Council
Business entrepreneur scheme – this initiative has resulted in significant
additional business support in High Peak at a lower cost

Additional financial savings are guaranteed through participation in the
following Vision Derbyshire work:




Climate Change – a shared approach to county wide climate change
initiatives will reduce the additional financial commitments that the Council
will need to make
Shared Planning Policy – a county wide approach to the development of
specific shared planning policy will limit the investment needed to be made
by the Council in the development of the updated Local Plan
Economic and Community Recovery Work – a collaborative approach to
COVID-19 recovery will significantly reduce the necessary new investment
that will be needed to be made by the Council

13.8

Future years costs will be the subject to further confirmation by the Executive
after a review of the implementation of Phase 4 of the programme and a
review of its benefits to High Peak.

13.9

Where an authority determines through its own governance arrangements
that it no longer wishes to be a member of the Joint Committee, that authority
may cease its membership with effect from the date of its decision. However,
authorities will remain liable for any previously agreed financial contributions

Page 88

to fund Vision Derbyshire until the end of the financial year for which those
contributions have been agreed regardless of any decision to cease
membership.
13.10 Where long term liabilities, such as any Pension Fund shortfall, exists they will
be calculated at the point membership ceases and any council exiting the
arrangement will pay the host authority an amount to cover their share of that
liability.
13.11 It is therefore recommended that the Executive approves the authority’s active
and continued involvement in Vision Derbyshire and the associated costs as
set out in the report.
13.12 Wider engagement with Leadership Teams within participating Councils, both
at an Elected Member and Senior Management Team level, will continue to
be vital moving forward and a key action which will feature strongly through
future phases of the approach. It will be important to ensure that the authority
is engaged in proposals as they emerge and develop over forthcoming
months to maximise the benefits for local people and communities in High
Peak. Identifying the key actions which the Council will need to undertake,
and the resources and capacity required to participate fully in both the
development and future implementation of proposals will also be important.

14

Constitutional / Legal Implications

14.1

Section 101(5) of the Local Government Act 1972 (LGA 1972) permits
councils to make arrangements for two or more authorities to discharge any of
their functions jointly, and arrange for the discharge of those functions by a
Joint Committee.

14.2

Under s102 LGA 1972 two or more local authorities may appoint a joint
committee of those authorities for the purpose of discharging any of their
functions. Those two or more authorities would need to agree to delegate
functions or powers to the joint committee to enable it to discharge those
functions. Those two or more authorities may permit other authorities to
appoint members to the joint committee without those authorities delegating
functions into it. However, all authorities that wish to join the joint committee
will need to formally agree to set up the committee and agree the terms of
reference to be able to appoint a member to the committee.

14.3

All members appointed to the joint committee are members of that committee.
Under the legislation, all members would have the right to participate and vote
on any matters at the joint committee. However, voting rights can be restricted
to members of those authorities who have delegated functions to it in the
Terms of Reference so that authorities would not be able to vote in respect of
functions they have not delegated to the joint committee.

14.4

Section 9EB of the Local Government Act 2000 (LGA 2000) enables the
Secretary of State to make regulations permitting arrangements under section

Page 89

101(5) of the LGA 1972 where any of the functions are the responsibility of
the executive of the Authority. The relevant regulations are the Local
Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England)
Regulations 2012. Regulation 11 makes provision for joint arrangements to
involve a joint committee under section 101(5) of the LGA 1972.
14.5

The functions being delegated to the Vision Derbyshire Committee at this
stage are executive functions. In accordance with the legislation and the
Council’s Constitution, the decision to establish the Vision Derbyshire
Committee and determine the number of members to be appointed to the
Committee and their terms of office should be made by the Executive.

14.6

As the functions are executive functions, the regulations also require that the
members appointed to the Vision Derbyshire Committee should be members
of the Executive.

14,7

In accordance with the Regulation 12 Local Authorities (Arrangements for the
Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012, a local authority with
executive arrangements delegating executive functions is not able to co-opt
additional members to the Committee. However, an authority operating a
committee system is able to co-opt additional members. Therefore, the ability
to co-opt is restricted within the Terms of Reference to obtaining a majority
vote in relation to any proposal to co-opt. Such co-optees shall not be
Members of the Joint Committee and shall have no voting rights.

14.8

Any requests for information received by the Joint Committee should be
directed to the relevant constituent authority for that authority to deal wi th in
the usual way, taking account of the relevant legislation. Where the request
relates to information held by 2 or more constituent authorities, they will liaise
with each other before replying to the request. The host authority will coordinate responses to ensure that legislative deadlines are met.

14.9

As part of the process of making decisions and changing policy, the Vision
Derbyshire Committee will in accordance with the public sector equality duty
to consider the need to:




Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected
characteristics (as defined by equalities legislation) and those who don’t.
Foster good relations between people who share protected characteristics
and those who don’t.

Page 90

APPENDIX A
Vision Derbyshire - High Level Plan

Page 91

APPENDIX B
PROPOSED GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR VISION DERBYSHIRE
ARTICLES
1.

Context

1.1

Vision Derbyshire is a collaborative working model between local authorities
across Derbyshire which seeks to improve outcomes for people and place
through closer working between those authorities without formal, top-down
reorganisation from central government.

1.2

These governance arrangements provide a framework to reach the intended
outcome of a model that will enable local authorities in Derbyshire to work
collaboratively to deliver efficient and effective services with improved
economies as an alternative to a government led reorganisation of local
government in the county.

1.3

A joint committee, to be known as the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee,
will:





1.4

Provide collective leadership for Derbyshire
Progress shared ambitions for the area
Work together to tackle the issues and challenges outlined in the case for
change.
Enable agile, timely and effective decision making

The Vision Derbyshire model allows local authorities to blend working at a
hyper-local level with a large strategic level. Authorities will collaborate at
three levels:




regional/national
county-wide or
local place level,

depending on the nature of the outcome that the authorities are looking to
improve. In adopting this way of working, Derbyshire can blend strategic,
county-wide and local approaches to tackle outcomes in a multi-faceted way,
and maintain focus on people and places, not organisational boundaries.
1.5

To enable the delivery of the above, the Joint Committee will act as the
enabling body, through the political leadership of councillors from the
participating authorities. Councils within Derbyshire may choose to appoint
members to the Joint Committee, but not to delegate any functions. Should
any council choose to do this, then they will still be required to agree to the
Terms of Reference for the Committee and contribute towards the cost of
funding the Committee.

Page 92

1.6

The authorities in the Vision Derbyshire working model are committed to the
provision of improved services. It is considered that this will, in certain
instances, be best achieved by the joint provision of services, joint working
and / or the development of common standards and protocols. All proposals
for the setting up of any new services or the discharge of functions are in the
first instance to be subject to an investigation into the suitability of providing
such services or discharging such functions, as a joint service for all
participating Councils. All participating Councils agree to operate all reviews in
an open and transparent manner to support the aims and objectives of Vision
Derbyshire. This will include the sharing of all information.

2.

Membership of the Joint Committee

2.1

[named local authorities who are delegating functions] shall appoint one of
their Elected Members to be a member of the Joint Committee and one
Member to be a substitute Member.

2.2

All other councils within Derbyshire, whether or not delegating functions to the
Joint Committee, will be permitted to appoint one member to the Joint
Committee and to nominate one member as a substitute.

2.3

A Substitute Member will have the same rights to receive meeting papers and
to access information as the Member for whom s/he is a substitute.

2.4

All appointments as Members or Substitute Members of the Joint Committee
shall be for a term of one year, but an individual may be re- appointed to
serve as a Member or Substitute Member any number of times.

2.5

All councils shall be entitled at any time to terminate the appointment of a
Member or Substitute Member appointed by it and to appoint another of its
Elected Members in that person’s place. Where a Council exercises this
power it shall give written notice of the new appointment and the termination
of the previous appointment to the Monitoring Officer responsible for the Joint
Committee and the new appointment shall take effect and the previous
appointment terminate at the end of one week from the date on which the
notice is given or such longer period not exceeding one month as is specified
in the notice.

2.6

A Member or Substitute Member of the Joint Committee who ceases (for
whatever reason) to be an Elected Member of the Council that appointed
them shall immediately cease to be a Member or Substitute Member of the
Joint Committee, and the relevant Council shall as soon as practicable give
written notice of this to the Monitoring Officer responsible for the Joint
Committee and appoint another of its Elected Members in that person’s place.

2.7

A person may resign as a Member or Substitute Member of the Joint
Committee by written notice served on the Proper Officer of the Council that
appointed them and the resignation shall take effect on receipt of the notice
by the Proper Officer. The relevant Council shall as soon as practicable give

Page 93

written notice of this to the Monitoring Officer responsible for the Joint
Committee and appoint another of its Elected Members in that person’s place.
2.8

Where an appointing Council operates executive arrangements (within the
meaning of the Local Government Act 2000), the appointment, removal and
replacement of Members and Substitute Members of the Joint Committee
shall be decided in accordance with the constitutional requirements of that
Council, but it is anticipated that all Members and Substitute Members
appointed by it shall be Members of its executive and will include its executive
leader or elected mayor.

2.9

All appointments, removals and replacements of Members and Substitute
Members of the Joint Committee by Councils shall be made by notice in
writing addressed to the Monitoring Officer responsible for the Joint
Committee. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given when
received by the Monitoring Officer.

2.10

Any individual council that does not operate executive arrangements and
which wishes to co-opt an additional member or members can only do so
following consultation with and a majority vote of all voting members of the
Joint Committee being supportive of that authority exercising powers of cooption. Such co-optees shall not be Members of the Joint Committee and
shall have no voting rights. They shall, however, observe the Code of Conduct
for Members set out from whichever authority they serve on. An individual’s
co-option shall terminate as soon as his/her involvement with the organisation
that gave rise to the co-option ceases; and such co-option shall be endorsed
annually by the Joint Committee and subsequently confirmed formally by the
appointing authority.

2.11

All Members of the Joint Committee (including any Substitute Members acting
in place of Members of the Joint Committee) will:(a)
(b)
(c)

(subject to the Joint Committee’s voting arrangements) collectively be
the ultimate policy makers of the Joint Committee;
bring views of their communities into the Joint Committee’s decision
making process; and
maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics.

2.12

Members will at all times observe the Code of Conduct for Members which is
in force in their own Council and any breaches will be reported to the
Monitoring Officer of their own Council.

2.13

No remuneration shall be payable to Joint Committee Members other than
allowances for travel and subsistence in accordance with the Members’
Allowances Schemes in operation at the participating Councils and nonparticipating Councils. (It is acknowledged that a participating Council or a
non-participating Council may, in accordance with its own procedures, pay a
special responsibility allowance to any Elected Member appointed by it to the
Joint Committee in respect of duties and responsibilities undertaken as a
Member or Substitute Member of the Joint Committee.)

Page 94

3

Chairing the Joint Committee

3.1

The Chair of the Joint Committee will be appointed by the Committee. The
Joint Committee can only be chaired by a Member of the Joint Committee
appointed by a Council which has delegated functions to the Joint Committee
for the duration of a municipal year.

3.2

In the event that there are more than two Members nominated for the role of
Chair, and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one Member, then
the name of the Member with the least number of votes will be eliminated and
that process will continue until a Chair is elected with a majority of votes.

3.3

The Joint Committee will appoint a Vice-Chair to deputise for the Chair when
they are not present or available. The Vice-Chair must also be from a Council
which has delegated functions to the Joint Committee and will be appointed
for the duration of a municipal year.

3.4

In the event that there are more than two Members nominated for the role of
Vice-Chair, and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one Member,
then the name of the Member with the least number of votes will be eliminated
and that process will continue until a Vice-Chair is elected with a majority of
votes.
The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Joint Committee will cease to hold such office
when they cease to be a Member of the Joint Committee, in accordance with
the provisions set out at paragraph 3.5 above.

3.5

4.

Procedural Arrangements

4.1

The Joint Committee shall meet in accordance with its agreed calendar of
meetings throughout a municipal year, but additional meetings may take place
should the need arise.

4.2

Each Member of the Joint Committee appointed by councils which have
delegated functions to the Joint Committee shall have one vote.

4.3

Members of the Joint Committee appointed by councils which have not
delegated functions to the Joint Committee will not have the right to vote

4.4

The proceedings of the Joint Committee shall not be invalidated by any
vacancy among its Members or Substitute Members or by any defect in the
appointment or qualifications of any Member or Substitute Member.

5.

Records of Proceedings

5.1

The Joint Committee shall make arrangements for the names of Members
and Substitute Members present at any meeting to be recorded.

5.2

Minutes of the proceedings of a meeting of the Joint Committee, or any subcommittee, shall be kept in such form as the Joint Committee may determine.

Page 95

5.3

5.4

Any such minutes are to be agreed as a true record and signed at the same
or next suitable meeting of the Joint Committee or sub-committee by the
Member chairing that meeting.
A Member of the Joint Committee, or any sub-committee, has the right to
have their vote on any matter recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which
the vote was cast.

6.

Sub-Committees

6.1

The Joint Committee may establish such sub-committees as it thinks fit to
discharge its functions

7.

Officers

7.1

The Head of Paid Service (appointed under Section 4 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989), Section 151 Officer (appointed under
Section 73 of the Local Government Act 1975) and Monitoring Officer
(appointed under section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989)
of the host authority for the Joint Committee will serve as the statutory officers
in support of the Joint Committee.

7.2

The Joint Committee may call upon any officer of any of the local authorities
who have members on the Joint Committee for advice and assistance, as it
considers necessary to carry out its functions.

8.

Scrutiny of decisions

8.1

Each constituent authority which operates executive arrangements will be
able to scrutinise the decisions of the Joint Committee in accordance with that
constituent authority’s overview and scrutiny arrangements. Any authority that
operates a committee system model of governance will have the discretion to
scrutinise decisions of the Joint Committee according its own specific
governance arrangements.

9

Winding up of the Joint Committee and Cessation of Membership

9.1

The Joint Committee may be wound up immediately by a unanimous vote of
all constituent authorities.

9.2

Where an authority determines through its own governance arrangements
that it no longer wishes to be a member of the Joint Committee, that authority
may cease its membership with effect from the date of its decision. However
authorities will remain liable for any previously agreed financial contributions
to fund Vision Derbyshire until the end of the financial year for which those
contributions have been agreed regardless of any decision to cease
membership. Where long term liabilities, such as any Pension Fund shortfall,
exists they will be calculated at the point membership ceases and any council
exiting the arrangement will pay the host authority an amount to cover their
share of that liability.

Page 96

FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
a. The Joint Committee is established pursuant to Section 101(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972, which permits local authorities to make arrangements
for two or more authorities to discharge functions jointly, so long as it is a
function that the law reserves to a specified committee. The Joint Committee
is established with the following aims:





Provide collective leadership for Derbyshire
Progress shared ambitions for the area
Work together to tackle the issues and challenges outlined in the case for
change.
Enable agile, timely and effective decision making

b. The Joint Committee, on behalf of the participating authorities, will be
responsible for improving the delivery of functions already within the remit of
local authorities through statute or through specific collaborative work to
improve the economic, environmental or social wellbeing of the areas within
Derbyshire from the following broad definitions:




Shared service arrangements
Incorporating existing partnership arrangements within
Derbyshire model
Areas for collaborative system changes across authorities
Specific thematic projects and priorities

the

Vision

c. Within those broad definitions, the Joint Committee will:(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

(x)

Oversee the Vision Derbyshire Delivery Programme
Determine the programme of projects and work streams, how those will
be managed and communicated to stakeholders and the public
Monitor and review performance in respect of services delivered
through the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee and authorise the
publication of an annual report of performance and outcomes
Commission strategic outline and full business cases for individual
councils to consider opportunities for more collaborative working in
respect of shared services
Approve annual business plans for the delivery of shared services
Provide or assume democratic oversight for existing joint committee
and partnership arrangements
Provide a platform for the devolution of powers from Government to
authorities in Derbyshire
Determine requests from individual authorities or groups of authorities
to work collaboratively on specific projects or work streams
Provide a forum for councils and their representatives to provide
challenge to each other with the aim of increasing collaboration to
deliver efficient, effective and economic services, which equally
improve the offer and outcomes to residents and businesses
Delegate functions and responsibilities to sub-committees or officers as
the Committee deems appropriate.

Page 97

d. The functions of the Joint Committee conferred or imposed upon it by any
Orders from the Secretary of State and / or the functions of the Joint
Committee delegated to it by Orders approved by participating authorities will
be set out within these terms of reference.
e. The Joint Committee will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with
the law and these terms of reference and procedure rules.
f. The authorities appointing to the Joint Committee are:


Insert names of authorities

g. It is a matter for each individual Council to determine which functions and
responsibilities it chooses to delegate to the Joint Committee according to its
own individual governance arrangements.

Page 98

PROCEDURE RULES
These procedure rules apply where appropriate to the Joint Committee and SubCommittees established by the Joint Committee.
1.

Name

1.1

The name of the Joint Committee shall be the ‘Vision Derbyshire Joint
Committee’.

2.

Membership

2.1

The membership of the Joint Committee shall be determined in accordance
with the provisions of Article 2.

3.

Meetings

3.1

The Annual Meeting of the Joint Committee shall be held each year on such a
day in the month of March, April, May or June as the Joint Committee may fix,
to deal with any other business normally transacted at an annual meeting.

3.2

The Joint Committee shall meet throughout the municipal year in accordance
with its agreed calendar of meetings, but additional meetings may take place
should the need arise. The dates and times of meetings of the Joint
Committee (including the Annual Meeting and extraordinary meetings) shall
be determined by the Joint Committee. Such meetings shall be held at a
venue determined by the Chair. Save as provided elsewhere in these
Procedure Rules all meetings of the Joint Committee, sub-committees and
working party meetings shall be summoned by the Proper Officer of the host
authority.

3.3

An extraordinary meeting of the Joint Committee may be called at any time by
the Chair. If the Chair refuses to call an extraordinary meeting of the Joint
Committee after a requisition for that purpose signed by three Members of the
Joint Committee has been presented to him/her or if, without so refusing, the
Chair does not call an extraordinary meeting within seven days after the
requisition has been presented to him/her then any three Members of the
Joint Committee, on that refusal, or on the expiration of those seven days, as
the case may be, may forthwith call an extraordinary meeting of the Joint
Committee

3.4

No business shall be considered at any extraordinary meeting save such as is
specified in any requisition of the Joint Committee calling such meeting, or as
the case may be, in the requisition presented to the Chair by Members.

4.

Chair and Vice-Chair

4.1

Article 4 sets out the arrangements for the appointment of Chair and ViceChair of the Joint Committee.

Page 99

4.2

If the Chair is absent from a meeting the Vice-Chair, if present, shall preside.

4.3

If both the Chair and Vice-Chair are absent from a meeting of the Joint
Committee, such Member as the Members of the Joint Committee present so
choose, shall preside.

4.4

Any power or duty of the Chair in relation to the conduct of a meeting may be
exercised by the person presiding at the meeting.

5.

Quorum

5.1

The quorum for a meeting will be two or one third of the total of the members
of the Committee who are entitled to vote, whichever is the greater.

5.2

If during a meeting the Chair, after counting the number of Members present,
declares that there are not at least two of the Members present, who are
entitled to vote, the meeting shall stand adjourned. The names of those
Members who are present shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.
Consideration of any business not transacted shall be adjourned to a date and
time fixed by the Chair at the time the meeting is adjourned, or if s/he does
not so fix a date and time, to the next meeting of the Joint Committee.

6.

Chair's Announcements

6.1

No discussion shall take place on any announcement made by the chair of the
meeting, but any Member shall be at liberty to move a motion, without notice,
to refer the subject matter of any such announcement to the next ordinary
meeting of the Joint Committee and such motion, on being seconded, shall be
at once put to the vote.

7.

Order of Business

7.1

Except as otherwise provided by paragraph 7.2 of this Rule, the order of
business at every meeting of the Joint Committee other than the annual
meeting and any extraordinary meeting shall be:-

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(j)

To choose a person to preside if the Chair and Vice-Chair are absent;
Apologies for absence;
To receive disclosures by Members of interests in matters under
consideration;
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the last
meeting of the Joint Committee;
To deal with any business expressly required by statute to be done;
Chair's announcements;
To dispose of business, if any, remaining from the last meeting;
To receive minutes of sub-committees;
To receive and consider reports, if any, from sub-committees;
To receive and consider reports from constituent authorities;

Page 100

(k)

To receive minutes of and recommendations from other bodies;

(l)

To consider motions, if any, in the order in which notice has been
received;
To deal with other business, if any, specified in the summons.

(m)
7.2

The Chair may at any meeting vary the order of business so as to give
precedence to any business which in his/her opinion is of special urgency but
such a variation shall not displace any business falling under items (a), (b), (d)
or (e) in paragraph 7.1 of this Rule.

7.3

At any extraordinary meeting of the Joint Committee the minutes of the last
ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee will not be considered. The minutes
of an extraordinary meeting of the Joint Committee will be submitted where
possible to the next ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee.

8.

Notice of Motion

8.1

Except as provided by Rule 9, every notice of motion shall be in writing,
signed by the Member or Members of the Joint Committee giving the notice
and delivered by email or in person at least seven clear days before the next
meeting of the Joint Committee at the office of the Head of Paid Service of the
host authority, by whom it shall be dated, numbered in the order in which it is
received and a record kept, which shall be open to the inspection of every
Member of the Joint Committee during normal office hours.

8.2

Every motion shall be relevant to some matter in relation to the Joint
Committee's powers or duties.

8.3

The Head of Paid Service of the host authority shall set out in the summons
for every meeting of the Joint Committee motions of which notice has been
duly given in the order in which they have been received, unless the
Member(s) giving such notice intimated in writing, when giving it, that s/he
proposed to move it at some later meeting or has withdrawn it in writing.

8.4

If a motion set out in the summons is not moved either by a Member who
gave notice thereof or by some other Member on his/her behalf, it shall,
unless postponed by consent of the Joint Committee, be treated as withdrawn
and shall not be moved without fresh notice.

9.

Motions which may be moved without notice

9.1

The following motions may be moved without notice: (a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Appointing a Chair of the meeting at which a motion is moved;
Motions relating to the accuracy of the minutes;
That an item of business specified in the summons has precedence;
Appointment of a sub-committee or members thereof occasioned by
the appointment;
That leave be given to withdraw a motion;

Page 101

(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(j)
(k)

(l)
(m)
(n)
(o)

(p)

(q)

That leave be given to withdraw in whole or in part or amend the
minutes or proceedings of the Joint Committee or any sub-committee;
That the Joint Committee proceeds to the next business;
That the question be now put;
That the debate be now adjourned;
That the Joint Committee does now adjourn;
Amendments to any motion to approve the Minutes or proceedings of
the Joint Committee or any sub-committee any part of which has been
withdrawn or amended in accordance with Rule 9(f);
Suspending Procedure Rules in accordance with Rule 18;
A motion, under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972 (relating to admission to meetings of local authorities);
That a Member named under Rule 12 be not further heard or do leave
the meeting;
Giving consent or leave of the Joint Committee where the consent or
leave of the Joint Committee is required by these Procedure Rules;
That the subject matter of an announcement made by the chair of the
meeting be referred to the next meeting of the Joint Committee or the
appropriate sub-committee;
Approval or amendment of recommendations of Officers and any
consequential resolutions.

10.

Amendments to Motions

10.1

Normally, no motion to amend a motion other than a motion which may be
moved without notice under Rule 9 shall be moved at any meeting of the Joint
Committee unless not less than 24 hours’ notice in writing of the motion,
signed by the Member(s) giving notice, is delivered to the Monitoring Officer of
the host authority. The Head of Paid Service of the host authority shall inform
the Chair of the Joint Committee of any such amendments so received.

11.

Rules of Debate

11.1

A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed
and seconded.

11.2

An amendment shall be relevant to the motion and shall be either:–
(a)
(b)
(c)

to refer a subject of debate to the next meeting of the Joint Committee
or the sub-committee for consideration or re-consideration; or
to leave out words and insert or add others; or
to insert or add words;

but such omission, insertion or addition of words shall not have the effect of
negating the motion before the Joint Committee.
11.3

Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at a time and no further
amendment shall be moved until the amendment under discussion has been
disposed of.

Page 102

11.4

When an amendment has been lost, other amendments may be moved on the
original motion. If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended shall take
the place of the original motion and shall become the motion to which any
further amendment may be moved.

11.5

When a motion is under debate no other motion shall be moved except the
following:(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

to amend or withdraw the motion provided that the notice of
amendment has been properly given in accordance with these
Procedure Rules;
to adjourn the meeting;
to proceed to the next business;
that the question be now put;
that a Member be not further heard.

11.6

The ruling of the Chair on a point of order or on the admissibility of a personal
explanation shall not be open to discussion.

11.7

A Member who does not have the right to vote on a matter shall have the
same rights to speak on a matter as a Member with the right to vote on that
matter.

12.

Disorderly Conduct

12.1

If at a meeting any Member of the Joint Committee in the opinion of the Chair
misconducts himself/herself by persistently disregarding the ruling of the Chair
or by behaving irregularly, improperly, or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing
the business of the Joint Committee, the Chair may move ‘That the Member
named be not further heard’ and the motion if seconded shall be put and
determined without discussion.

12.2

If the Member named continues his/her misconduct after a motion under the
foregoing paragraph has been carried the Chair shall either move ‘That the
Member named do leave the meeting’ (in which case the motion shall be put
and determined without seconding or discussion), or adjourn the meeting of
the Joint Committee for such period as s/he in his/her discretion shall consider
expedient.

12.3

In the event of general disturbance which in the opinion of the Chair renders
the due and orderly dispatch of business impossible, the Chair in addition to
any power vested in him/her may, without question put, adjourn the meeting
of the Joint Committee for such period as s/he in his/her discretion shall
consider expedient.

13.

Rescission of Previous Resolution

13.1

No motion to rescind any resolution passed within the preceding six months,
and no motion or amendment to the same effect as one which has been
rejected within the preceding six months shall be proposed unless the notice

Page 103

thereof given in pursuance of Rule 8 bears the names of at least five
Members of the Joint Committee. When any such motion or amendment has
been disposed of by the Joint Committee, it shall not be open to any Member
to propose a similar motion within a further period of six months.
13.2

Provided that this Rule shall not apply to motions moved by the Chair or other
Members of the Joint Committee in pursuance of a recommendation of a subcommittee.

14.

Mode of Voting

14.1
(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

14.2

Every proposition shall, unless otherwise required by these Procedure
Rules or statute, be determined by show of hands.
In taking the votes on any proposition, only those Members who are
present in the room when the proposition is put from the chair shall be
entitled to vote.
After a proposition is put from the Chair but before the vote is taken,
any three Members by show of hands may require that the voting shall
be recorded in the minutes of the meeting so as to show whether each
Member present gave his/her vote for or against that proposition or
abstained from the voting.
Except where a recorded vote has been taken, any Member who is
present when the vote was taken may require that his/her vote for or
against the question or abstention shall be recorded in the minutes by
notifying the Head of Paid Service of the host authority.

Where there are more than two persons nominated for any position to be filled
by the Joint Committee and of the votes given there is not a majority in favour
of one person, the one having the least number of votes shall be struck off the
list and a fresh vote shall be taken, and so on, until a majority of votes is given
in favour of one person.

14.3 In the case of an equality of votes the Chair shall have a second or casting
vote.
15.

Urgent Business

15.1

The Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer
of the host authority shall each be empowered individually to take any action
which is required as a matter of urgency in the interests of the Joint
Committee, after consultation (where practicable) with the Chair of the Joint
Committee, on behalf of and within the powers and duties of the Joint
Committee. All such action shall be reported to the next meeting of the Joint
Committee.

16.

Variation and Revocation of Procedure Rules

Page 104

16.1

Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Procedure Rules shall when
proposed and seconded stand adjourned without discussion to the next
ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee, provided that this Rule shall not
apply to any review of Procedure Rules at the annual meeting of the Joint
Committee.

17.

Suspension of Procedure Rules

17.1

No Rule shall be suspended at any meeting of the Joint Committee except on
the vote of a majority of the members then present.

18.

Recordings at Meetings

18.1

The Local Audit and Accountability Act allows persons:
(a)

(b)

(c)

To film, photograph or make sound recordings of proceedings at a
meeting of a body to which this section applies, or of a committee or sub-committee of such a body;
To use other means for enabling persons not present at such a
meeting to see or hear proceedings at the meeting, as it takes place or
later;
To report or provide commentary on the proceedings at such a meeting
orally or in writing, so that the report or commentary is available, as the
meeting takes place or later, to persons not present at the meeting.

19.

Record of Attendance

19.1

Every Member of the Joint Committee attending a meeting or a meeting of a
sub-committees of which s/he is a member, shall have their attendance
recorded and published through the website of the host authority.

20.

Appointment of Sub-Committees

20.1

The Joint Committee may establish such sub-committees as it deems
appropriate or it is required to appoint by or under any statute.

20.2

Subject to any statutory provision in that behalf the Joint Committee:–

20.3

(a)

shall not appoint any member of a sub-committee so as to hold office
later than the next annual meeting of the Joint Committee;

(b)

may at any time dissolve a sub-committee or alter its membership;
every vacancy on a sub-committee shall be reported by the Head of
Paid Service of the host authority at the first meeting of the Joint
Committee after the vacancy has arisen and the Joint Committee may
thereupon proceed to fill the vacancy.

The Joint Committee may appoint sub-committees for purposes to be
specified by the Committee and, subject to these Procedure Rules and to any

Page 105

resolution of the Joint Committee in that behalf, may delegate to any such
sub-committee any power or duty delegated by the Joint Committee.
20.4

The Chair and Vice-Chair of the Joint Committee shall be ex-officio members
of every sub-committee appointed by the committee.

20.5

The membership of a sub-committee may include persons who are not
members of the Joint Committee by which the sub-committee was appointed,
however where such persons are not Members of the Joint Committee, they
shall be appointed as non-voting members.

20.6

A Joint Committee shall not appoint any member of a sub-committee so as to
hold office later than the next annual meeting of the Joint Committee and may
at any time dissolve a sub-committee or alter its membership.

21.

Quorum of Sub-Committees

21.1

Except where ordered by the Joint Committee or authorised by statute, or set
out in the specific terms of reference of a sub-committee, business shall not
be transacted at a meeting of any sub-committee unless at least one third of
the whole number of members of the sub-committee who are entitled to vote
is present, provided that in no case shall the quorum of a sub-committee be
less than three members.

22.

Procedure Rules to Apply to Committees and Sub-Committees

22.1

These Procedure Rules shall, with any necessary modifications, apply to
meetings of sub-committees.

23.

Interpretation

23.1

The decision of the chair of the meeting on the question of the construction of
the Procedure Rules and on any question of order not provided for by the
Procedure Rules shall be final.

23.2

The inclusion or exclusion of any specific matters in any other regulation or
resolution shall not be construed as limiting in any way the scope of these
Procedure Rules.

23.3

Where the Monitoring Officer is not a solicitor holding a current practising
certificate for the expression “Monitoring Officer” in these Procedure Rules
there shall be substituted the expression “the solicitor to the Joint Committee”
wherever it is appropriate and where there is a requirement at law that such
action is to be taken by a solicitor.

24.

Procedure Rules to be Given to Members

24.1

A printed copy of these Procedure Rules and any other documents in respect
of governance of the Joint Committee shall be given by the Monitoring Officer

Page 106

of the host authority to every Member of the Joint Committee on his/her first
being appointed to the Joint Committee.

Page 107

APPENDIX C

Decision Flow Charts

Page 108

Page 109

Page 110

Page 111

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
The Executive
7 October 2021
TITLE:

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review
& Focus on Universal Credit Implications

PORTFOLIO HOLDER

Cllr Alan Barrow - Executive Councillor for
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICERS :

John Betts – Interim Executive Director
Joanne Wheeldon – Head of Revenues &
Benefits

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The Council is obliged to consider each year whether to revise its current
council tax reduction scheme, leave it as it is or replace it with a completely
new scheme. The proposal is to retain the current scheme for 2022/23.
However, the introduction of Universal Credit means that the current scheme
is proving increasingly difficult to administer and more difficult for recipients of
the discount to understand and manage. Therefore, there is also a proposal to
explore options for redesigning the scheme to provide greater certainty in the
light of Universal Credit. Any decisions on design and subsequent
implementation would occur by 2023/24 at the earliest, to allow for extensive
consultation.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Executive:



Approves the proposal to retain the existing council tax reduction scheme
for 2022/23
Approves the proposal for further research to be undertaken into
alternative designs for a council tax reduction scheme that better deals with
the impact of Universal Credit, subject to a further report and consultation

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

In April 2013 Council Tax Benefit was abolished and replaced with a local
Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS). The Local Authority is required to
review its Council Tax Reduction Scheme on an annual basis and if it

Page 113

determines to make changes, then it must consult on any proposed revised
scheme.
3.2

The local CTRS, as currently designed, works well. There have been no
particular difficulties in implementation and eligibility is well defined and
published on the Council’s website 1, so potential recipients are clear about
eligibility and how to apply. So, the proposal is to continue using the current
scheme for 2022/23.

3.3

However, there is a need to review whether, in the longer term, the current
CTRS scheme is compatible with Universal Credit. Nationally, around 60% of
working-age benefit recipients in England now claim UC rather than any one of
the six ‘legacy’ benefits that UC replaced. Universal Credit is based on “real
time information” which means it often fluctuates, generating changes in CTRS
eligibility. As of 1st July 2021 the total award of benefit for High Peak was
£6.161m. The caseload consisted of 6,111 cases, of which 3,951 were of
working age (2,053 on UC), which accounts for 60% of total spend. From the
beginning of June to mid August over 5,787 Universal Credit changes were
processed locally.

3.4

So many frequent changes to CTR eligibility, as a result of Universal Credit
fluctuations, makes household budgeting difficult and generates a
considerable administrative burden. In response to this, over 70 Local
Authorities have introduced income banded CTR schemes. Under such
schemes, small changes in income (from benefits, earnings or other) do not
usually change the amount of CTR received. This creates greater certainty
and makes household budgeting easier. It also reduces the administrative
burden on the Council. Therefore, the proposal is to research the possibility of
designing an Income Banded Council Tax Reduction Scheme and then, if
appropriate, designing some local options. Any proposed designs will be put
before Elected Members for comment prior to consultation, which will need to
be extensive, given the potential impact on households. Hence, any
implementation would be 1 st April 2023, at the earliest.

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Any change to eligibility and simplification of processes will make it easier for
residents to access this service (to support residents eligible for council tax
discount), improve financial resilience and improve the efficiency of service
delivery.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

The options available (including doing nothing) are analysed in the summary
above.

1

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/discounts_exemptions

Page 114

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
No Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is required at this point in time,
but if an alternative scheme is designed for consultation then a
comprehensive EIA will be required, alongside broad consultation.

6.4

Financial Considerations
The proposal to not change the scheme for 2022/23 has no direct
financial implications and any newly designed scheme put forward for
consultation will reflect the parameters of the current financial budget.

6.5

Legal
Section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires each
billing authority in England to make a scheme specifying the reductions
which are to apply to amounts of council tax payable. Under schedule
1A (3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, each financial year,
the Council needs to consider whether to revise the scheme, leave as is
or replace it. Consultation must occur on any options required to change
the scheme prior to implementation.

16.6

6.7

Risk
6.8 A

Sustainability
None.
External Consultation
See comment at 6.3 above.
Risk Assessment
There are no immediate risks, but if a new scheme is designed for
consultation then a risk assessment and risk register will be created as part
of the project management of the consultation process (and any subsequent
implementation, should any new design go ahead).
JOHN BETTS
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Moorlands House

John.betts@highpeak.gov. uk
07581 010628

Page 115

Detail of Current Council Tax Reduction Scheme and a Proposal for a Review
7.

Background

7.1.

From April 2013 Council Tax Benefit was abolished and replaced with a local
Council Tax Reduction Scheme. The Local Authority is required to review its
Council Tax Reduction Scheme on an annual basis and if it determines to
make changes then it must consult on the revised scheme.

7.2.

There is no proposal to change the Authority’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme
for 2022/23.

7.3.

However, there is proposal to explore and possibly redesign the Council’s
current scheme in response to the introduction of Universal Credit, with a
potential implementation date of 1 st April 2023. The reason for the long lead-in
time is to ensure that any change is well designed and that there is
comprehensive consultation. The rationale for this review is given below.

8.

Impact of Universal Credit

8.1.

Since the introduction of a local Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) the
landscape has drastically changed. Universal Credit (UC) has also been
introduced and is now operational in every local authority area in England.
Around 60% of working-age benefit recipients in England now claim UC
rather than any one of the six ‘legacy’ benefits that UC replaced. Universal
Credit is based on real time information which means that any change in
income generates a change in Council Tax Reduction through data files from
the Department of Work & Pensions (DWP).

8.2.

This means that local citizens are experiencing frequent changes in their
Council Tax Reduction allocation, which in turn impacts on the amount of
Council Tax payable. This results in residents receiving multiple bills and
letters, making household budgeting very difficult. It has led to a considerable
increase in the number of contacts, particularly when Council Tax bills are
issued and there is an additional administrative and legal burden in then
collecting and recovering substantial numbers of small amounts.

8.3.

As of 1st July 2021 the total award of benefit for HPBC was £6,161,294. The
caseload consists of 6,111 cases, of which 3,951 are working age (2,053 on
UC), which accounts for 60% of total spend. From the beginning of June to
mid August we have processed 5,787 UC changes.

9.

Income Banded Council Tax Reduction Schemes

Page 116

9.1.

This is one reason why some local authorities have introduced income
banded CTR schemes2. Under such schemes, small changes in income (from
benefits, earnings or other) do not usually change the amount of CTR
received. This creates greater certainty and makes household budgeting
easier. It also reduces the administrative burden on the Council.

9.2.

The potential move to a new income banded scheme is for those of working
age. The scheme for pensioners is set nationally and pensioners would not
see any change to the support they receive.

9.3.

Generally, the scheme could be designed along the following design
principles, although it must be emphasised that this is not intended to preempt any review:
a. If the applicant or partner is in receipt of one of the main passported
benefits (Income Support, Job Seeker’s Allowance Income Based and
Income Related Employment and Support Allowance etc) they will be
placed in the highest band of the scheme - generally this would be
expected to be 100% support.
b. Working age households will receive a discount, depending on their
level of income and the band that they fall into. For example (and this is
purely illustrative) the bandings could be organised as follows:
Net income, above a given
threshold
£0 - £4.99
£5 - £14.99
£15.00 - £29.99
£30.00 - £49.99
£50.00 - £74.99
£75.00 - £99.99
£100.00 - £124.99
£125 upwards

Maximum
CTR award
Up to 100%
A%
B%
C%
D%
E%
F%
0%

c. The level of CTR does not change with fluctuations within income
bands. It only changes if net household income moves between bands.
d. Under any such scheme such as this, there would be the option of
disregarding certain benefits and allowances (such as Disability Living
2

The New Policy Institute reported, in June 2021, that there were 72 income-banded schemes in place across
the country.

Page 117

Allowance, War Disablement Benefits, Child Benefit and child
maintenance etc) so at to protect the most vulnerable. There would be
also an option to introduce a Hardship Fund for those most
detrimentally affected by any changes.
9.4

10.

It should be emphasised that savings are not the driver for this change. Any
such scheme can be designed within the current financial envelope. The
primary driver is to simplify the process and provide greater certainty for
households. There is a secondary driver not to increase administrative costs
to the Council from greater changes to existing CTR through UC fluctuations.
Next Steps

10.1.

The proposal is to seek Member approval to research the possibility of
designing an Income Banded Council Tax Reduction Scheme, by contacting
Local Authorities who have introduced (or are considering introducing) such
schemes and then modelling options locally.

10.2.

Any proposed designs will be put before Elected Members for comment prior
to consultation, which will need to be extensive, given the potential impact on
households.

10.3.

Any implementation (should Members agree a new design following
consultation) would be implemented for April 2023 at the earliest

10.4.

There are no proposals to change the current local council tax reduction
scheme for the financial year 2022/23.

Page 118

Agenda Item 8
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
The Executive
7 October 2021

TITLE:

Review and Renewal of Torr Vale Mill
Memorandum of Understanding

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Greenhalgh - Deputy Leader &
Executive Councillor for Regeneration,
Tourism and Leisure

CONTACT OFFICER:

Joanna Bagnall, Sarah Porru - Senior
Regeneration Officer, Head of Regeneration

WARDS INVOLVED:

New Mills East and West

Appendices Attached
Appendix 1: Memorandum of Understanding
Appendix 2: Previous MoU (November 2018 - November 2020)

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

This report provides an update on progress with regeneration of Torr Vale Mill,
New Mills and seeks approval to renew the Memorandum of Understanding
first entered into in 2018 with Derbyshire County Council (DCC), Historic
England (HE), Torr Vale Mill Preservation Trust (TVMPT) and Torr Vale Mills
Limited (TVML) as the owner of Torr Vale Mill.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Executive approves High Peak Borough Council re-enters an updated
Memorandum of Understanding with Derbyshire County Council, Historic
England, Torr Vale Mill Preservation Trust and Torr Vale Mills Limited to help
facilitate collaborative work towards a shared development plan for specified
areas of the Mill.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

Torr Vale Mill, New Mills, is a Grade II* listed building which has been included
on Historic England’s Heritage at Risk Register. The Council has been

Page 119

working with the other parties to the MoU (HE, TVMPT, DCC and the owners)
for a number of years to secure the building complex’s repair and future use.
3.2

By Individual Executive Decision dated 17 July 2018, the Council approved
entering into a Memorandum of Understanding with project partners to record
the parties’ mutual understanding and objectives regarding the development of
Torr Vale Mill.

3.3

The Mou was signed on 26 th November 2018 and expired on 26 th November
2020. The delay in seeking to renew the document is due to interruption in
project meetings resulting from the pandemic.

3.4

In order to support continued partnership working, the project partners are
seeking to renew the MoU. A number of small amendments have been made
to the 2018 document and these are detailed at paragraphs 7.12 – 7.17 of this
report.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Entering into an MoU with project partners to guide collaborative working to
help bring Torr Vale Mill back into full use contributes to the following aims of
the Corporate Plan 2019 – 2023:



Aim 2: A responsive, smart, finally resilient and forward thinking Council.
Aim 3: Protect and create jobs by supporting economic growth,
development and regeneration.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

Option A: To approve the Council signing the renewed Memorandum of
Understanding. This option is recommended.

5.2

By renewing the Memorandum of Understanding, the Council is reaffirming its
commitment to work with partners to identify a viable future use for specified
areas of Torr Vale Mill, enabling a return of the building complex to full use.

5.3

Option B: To resolve to withdraw from the project partnership. This option is
not recommended.

5.4

By not resigning the updated Memnorandum of Understanding, the Council
would be signalling a lack of intent with respect to support for the
redevelopment of Torr Vale Mill and a withdrawal from the project partnership.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.

Page 120

6.2

Workforce
Not relevant to the recommendations of this report. A member of
the Regeneration Service attends monthly meetings of the MOU
Group.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.

6.4

Financial Considerations
It is not envisaged that the Council will contribute financially to any
study for Torr Vale Mill that arises from work undertaken under the
MoU.

6.5

Legal
The Memorandum of Understanding has been drafted by the legal
team at DCC.

6.6

Climate Change
Torr Vale Mill is a prominent and historically important building in
the Torrs, New Mills and its appropriate redevelopment and
restoration will significantly contribute to the local environment,
including improvements to access for all.

6.7

Consultation
Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.

6.8

Risk Assessment
Risks are covered in the body of the report.

Neil Rodgers
Executive Director (Place)
Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Individual Executive Decision 17 July 2018- to enter into
MoU

Joanna Bagnall, Sarah Porru
Senior Regeneration Officer, Head of
Regeneration
joanna.bagnall@highpeak.gov.uk,
sarah.porru@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 121

7.

Detail

7.1

Torr Vale Mill is included on the Secretary of State’s statutory list of buildings
of special architectural or historic interest and has a grade II* entry. It is also
included on HE’s Heritage at Risk Register with a Priority Category: F. Priority
Categories range from A to F, with A equating to immediate risk of loss and F
being at the lower end of the Priority Category scale, although still of serious
concern.

7.2

Torr Vale Mill dates from 1790 and is a near-complete example of a
multiphase integrated cotton spinning and weaving factory. The Mill retains
extensive evidence for both water and steam-powered phases of manufacture,
buildings which represent each stage of the development chronology of the
site and examples of both fire-proof and conventional timber-floored
construction. It is a compact site situated on a prominent bend of the River
Goyt at the Torrs in New Mills. The site is overlooked from the higher ground
of New Mills town centre and has a robust presence within the Torrs being
situated opposite the Millennium Walkway.

7.3

Vehicular access to the site is via Torrvale Road which is an un-adopted public
highway to the south of the site and runs into Wirksmoor Road. The roads are
fronted by 19th and early 20th century gritstone terraced properties. These
roads connect to Albion Road (A6015) which connects, within 600 metres at
its southern end, to the A6.

7.4

The redevelopment / regeneration of the Torr Vale Mill site has been a
longstanding objective of both Derbyshire County Council and HPBC.

7.5

The site has seen significant improvement in the last few years. The owner
runs a manufacturing business on one floor of the main block. Office space
and an events venue have been created on other floors, alongside a small bar
/ restaurant. A former workshop range has been converted to holiday
accommodation. An Historic England grant was awarded for the repair of the
main mill building roof and this work was undertaken last year.

7.6

Notwithstanding this, the site still has a number of difficulties. These include
access to the upper floors of the mill complex and ensuring unimpeded vehicle
access to the site. The Heritage Lottery Fund has indicated that it would be
willing to fund a feasibility study for the Torr Vale Mill site prompting the
entering into a Memorandum of Understanding in 2018.

7.7

An MoU for Torr Vale Mill (attached as Appendix Two) was agreed for a period
of two years, running from November 2018 to November 2020. The purpose
of the MoU was to ensure that the Council, DCC and Historic Engalnd were
engaged alongside the building owner and the Torr Vale Mill Preservation
Trust with the procurement and running of an approriate feasibility study /
market appraisal to assess viable options for the use of specified areas of the
mill building, principally the upper floor of the main mill.

7.8

Since the signing of the MoU, the parties have met regularly to progress

Page 122

preparation of an application to the National Lottery Heritage Fund to meet the
costs of an appraisal of options for new community uses to help bring the
whole site back into full and active use.
7.9

Options for community use will need to be compatible with existing uses on
the site and, ideally, complement the public facing uses (the events space and
holiday cottages). In order to meet NLHF requirements, it is necessary for an
application to include improved public access and interpretation of the site’s
history and heritage. Accordingly, the first steps have been taken to improve
community engagement with options development.

7.10

A consultation event was held on 3rd October 2020 to invite residents of
Torrvale Road to give their views on proposals to improve vehicle access to
the Mill. This event is being followed up by a display at the Mill during New
Mills festival week (10th – 26th September 2021), accompanied by a
questionnaire seeking views about potential community uses for the available
space at the Mill. This options survey is being hosted on the website of Torr
Vale Mill Preservation Trust:
https://torrvalemillpreservationtrust.org.uk/

7.11

As part of the ongoing work to bring Torr Vale Mill back into full use, the
parties would like to update and re-enter into the Memorandum of
Understanding. An updated draft has been prepared – attached as Appendix
One to this report. A small number of changes have been made to the 2018
MoU and these are listed below:

7.12

The appendices to the MoU have been updated and references to them have
been updated accordingly in the definition of “The study area” on page 1 of the
2021 MoU.
2018 MoU
Site plan and location
of former building F
Appendix B Key to colour coding;
Plans of each level
Appendix A

Appendix A

2021 MoU
Site plan

Appendix B

Building F site location

Appendix C

Schematic showing
where new uses can be
considered
Supporting plans

Appendix D

7.13

Definition of “The study area” (page 1): A new sentence has been added as
follows: “These are areas for which the Landowner has no current plans but
would be prepared to consider alternative uses if this would result in a
preferable mix of uses across The Site as a whole.”

7.14

The definition of “The Extended Study Area” (page 1) has been deleted and
added to the defintion of “The Study Area” as described above.

7.15

There is a new definition for “Established Areas” (page 1). Additional text as
follows: “means areas of the building or site which have established uses or

Page 123

development plans identified by the owner and are not to be altered. These
areas are shaded red on the attached plans.”
7.16

There is an amended 3b (page 3). Deletion of text as follows: “…to forego
those development plans already in place within the extended study area”

7.17

There is a new 5e: “Encourage New Mills Town Council (NMTC) to enter this
MoU to assist the objectives of the Partnership. Any agreement with NMTC
will be included by means of an addendum to this MoU to which all current
members shall agree upon.”

Page 124

Page 125

Page 126

Page 127

Page 128

Page 129

Page 130

Page 131

Page 132

Page 133

Page 134

Page 135

Page 136

Page 137

Page 138

Page 139

Page 140

Page 141

Page 142

Page 143

Page 144

Page 145

Page 146

Page 147

This page is intentionally left blank

Dated ........................................................2021

TORR VALE MILLS LIMITED
- andTORR VALE MILL PRESERVATION TRUST
-andHIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
-andDERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
-andHISTORIC ENGLAND

Memorandum of Understanding relating to Torr Vale Mill, New Mills

ALEX GILBERT
MATLOCK
Case no 72319

Page 149

PARTIES
1. TORR VALE MILLS LIMITED of Torr Vale Mill Torr Vale Road New Mills High
Peak SK22 3HS (“the Landowner”)
2. TORR VALE MILL PRESERVATION TRUST of C/o 19 Watford Road New Mills
High Peak SK22 4EJ (“the Trust”)
3. HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL of Buxton Town Hall Market Place Buxton
Derbyshire SK17 6EL (“the Borough Council”)
4. DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall Matlock DE4 3AG (“the
County Council”)
5. HISTORIC ENGLAND of East Midlands Office 2nd floor Windsor House
Cliftonville Northampton NN1 5BE (“Historic England”)
Together “The Parties”

1.

DEFINITIONS
The Site

means Torr Vale Mill and adjacent land within the ownership
of the Landowner and shown edged green on the attached
plan marked Appendix A.

The Study Area means those parts of the Site shown coloured green on the
plans attached as Appendix D which are outside the
Landowner’s development plans already in place. These are
areas for which the Landowner has no current plans but
would be prepared to consider alternative uses if this would
result in a preferable mix of uses across The Site as a whole.

Established

means areas of the building or site which have established

Areas

uses or development plans identified by the owner and are
not to be altered. These areas are shaded red on the attached
plans.

1

Page 150

Building F

means the building that occupied the site shown coloured
purple on the plan attached as Appendix B and identified on
the schematic axonometric drawing as Appendix C.

The

building that occupied this site was destroyed by fire in 2001
however it is considered acceptable, in principle, to
reconstruct a building on the same footprint and to the same
height as the original building on this site subject to (a) the
detailed design being satisfactory for the purposes of gaining
Listed Building Consent and (b) the demonstrable need of the
reconstructed building in terms of contributing to the overall
viability of a scheme for the Established Areas.

The

Relevant means the period commencing on the date of this

Period

Memorandum of Understanding and expiring 24 months later
subject to the provisions for early determination and
extension set out below

The MoU

means this Memorandum of Understanding

The Councils

means the Borough Council and the County Council

The

Viable means a scheme meeting the requirements of the Landowner

Scheme

and the Trust as set out in clauses 3(a)-(e)

The Partners

means the Trust, the Councils and Historic England

2. BACKGROUND
The purpose of this document is to record the Parties’ mutual understanding and
objectives regarding the development of Torr Vale Mill, a Grade II* Listed Building
contained within the New Mills Conservation Area.

3. OVERALL OBJECTIVES AND PRINCIPLES OF COLLABORATION
2

Page 151

The Parties agree to work collaboratively during the Relevant Period to achieve
the following key objectives of the Landowner and the Partners:
a. To secure funding for a further study to assess:
i.

the viable options for the use of space forming the Study Area only

ii.

the viable options for the use of space forming the Study Area and
the Established Areas only insofar as any uses in the Established
Areas would result in a preferable mix of uses across the Site as a
whole. The Study Area has the option of including a re-constructed
Building F.

b. To include within the viable options the Landowner’s reasonable
requirements and those development plans already in place whilst
recognising that the Landowner is not bound by this agreement.
c. To include within the options the objectives of the Trust for the Study Area
where they do not conflict with the Landowner's objectives for the rest of
the site and are viable as established in the study report to be prepared.
d. To review the access constraints to the Site;
e. To work collaboratively towards a shared development plan for the Site
that:
i.

respects the importance of the heritage asset pursuant to the
guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019
and the statutory framework set out in the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

ii.

is capable of being taken forward for discussions regarding funding

iii.

potentially leads to a viable and sustainable solution to the
preservation, use and maintenance of the Site.

4. LANDOWNER’S COMMITMENTS
During the Relevant Period the Landowner will:

3

Page 152

a. Notify the Partners of the disposal of any interest in the Site, any option
or joint venture agreement or other agreement or other arrangements
with any other party or charge or otherwise encumber the Site;
b. Cooperate with and act at all times in good faith towards the Partners
and in relation to the aims of the parties as set out in this MoU,
including the prompt provision on an open book and free of charge
basis of site information, site investigation reports and any other
relevant information reasonably requested by the Partners;
c. Assist the Partners and the appointed consultants, where requested, to
identify and evaluate potential uses, market demand and values, and
development costs;
d. Seek to identify possible means of funding a scheme for the conversion
and refurbishment of the Site, including potential joint venture
possibilities;
e. allow and/or procure all such access to the Site and to information
relating to the Site held by the Landowner as the Partners require to
comply with its obligations in this MoU subject to any operational
requirements in relation to access to the Site;

5. PARTNERS’ COMMITMENTS
During the Relevant Period the Partners will:
a. Co-operate with and act at all-times in good faith towards the Landowner
and in relation to the aims of the Parties as set out in this MoU including
the prompt provision on an open book and free of charge basis of site
information, site investigation reports and any other relevant information
reasonably requested by the Landowner;
b. Assist the Landowner and the appointed consultants, where requested, to
identify and evaluate potential uses, market demand and values and
development costs;
c. Seek to identify possible means of funding a scheme for the conversion
and refurbishment of the Site including possible joint venture possibilities;

4

Page 153

d. Seek to address public access and planning constraints through a
dedicated development team.
e. Encourage New Mills Town Council (NMTC) to enter this MoU to assist the
objectives of the Partnership. Any agreement with NMTC will be included
by means of an addendum to this MoU to which all current members shall
agree upon.

6. PRODUCTION OF REPORT
6.1 As soon as possible following the commencement of the Relevant Period and
subject to obtaining all necessary approvals, the Trust, with the support and
agreement of all Parties, will appoint appropriately experienced and qualified
consultants to assess the condition of the Site, identify a potentially viable
development scheme or schemes for the conversion and refurbishment of the
Study Area, including the Established Areas where other requirements of this
brief can be met, and produce a report upon the same (“the Report”). The
Report is to include the following:
f. An assessment of the current condition of the building
g. An outline schedule of works necessary to leave the building fully
repaired to a standard commensurate with its Grade II* listed status
together with a budget cost
h. An outline schedule of works necessary for the conversion of the Study
Area, including the Established Areas where other requirements of this
brief can be met, into each of the options put forward together with a
budget cost
i. A viability assessment including final valuation for each option being
put forward
j. A recommendation of a preferred option together with a full financial
appraisal showing financial returns for the scheme and any
conservation deficit on the capital cost of construction
k. A delivery strategy for the scheme including potential sources of public
and private sector investment
l.

A draft development programme including cashflow requirements;
5

Page 154

6.2 It is anticipated that the Report will form the basis of any bid or bids, as
required, to the funding sources identified.
6.3 All options will be developed in close consultation with all of the Parties to this
MoU.
6.4 In addition to the Report each of the Parties shall be entitled to commission
and obtain such other reports surveys, assessments and studies and
commission as they may require, but shall each bear their own costs in this
regard.

7. DEVELOPING THE VIABLE SCHEME
7.1 The Landowner requires that any proposed Viable Scheme:
a) respects the requirement of the Landowner to have available space in
which to conduct his business;
b) accommodates the Landowner’s investment plans for the Site
7.2 The Trust requires that any Viable Scheme ensures public access to any
parts of the Site that have received public grant for their development.
7.3 Subject to the Partners and the Landowner agreeing following receipt of the
Report and any other reports assessments and studies obtained by either
of them that there is a potentially viable scheme the Partners and the
Landowner shall as soon as is reasonably practicable consider the terms
for securing the implementation of a Viable Scheme.

8. IMPLEMENTATION
8.1 If prior to the expiry of the Relevant Period a scheme is agreed in writing
between both parties as being potentially viable (a Viable Scheme ), then the
Relevant Period may be extended by a period to be agreed between the
parties and within that additional period the Partners and the Landowner shall
further consider the terms upon which they may be prepared to enter into an
6

Page 155

agreement or arrangement to secure the implementation of the Viable
Scheme and shall seek to agree the terms of the same.
8.2 The Partners and the Landowners shall not be obliged to enter into any
agreement or arrangements or to do so on any particular terms, it being
recognised and accepted by each of them that any such arrangements must
be on terms which are acceptable to each of them in terms of their own
commercial requirements and in terms of compliance with public law.
9. COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLICITY
9.1 Before any partner publicises, promotes or disseminates information on the
study or the site to others outside the MoU they will provide the information in
writing to the other partners at least 48 hours before issue. Partners will then
have 36 hours to respond before the information can be issued. Each partner
cannot veto another partner’s communication.
9.2 Communications and publicity can be issued more quickly if written permission
is received from all partners to do so.

10. MoU OPERATION
All partners will be expected to attend at least quarterly meetings through the
period of this Memorandum of Understanding. Partners will have up to 10
days, not including weekends or public holidays and notwithstanding
‘communications and publicity’ to respond to any consultations issued as part
of the study. Additional time can be agreed if all partners consent to an
extension of time.

11. CONFIDENTIALITY
11.1 This MoU and all other information related to the proposed development is
for the information of the Partners and the Landowner and their advisors only.
11.2 Subject to clause 24 below none of the details of this MoU or of any
information obtained by one party from the other pursuant to it shall [during
7

Page 156

the Relevant Period] be shared by the Partners or the Landowner with any
third party (other than their respective advisers) without prior written consent
of the other.

12. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
Nothing in this agreement shall prevent the Partners from disclosing any
information whether relating to the Report or Viable Scheme generally or this
agreement or otherwise which they in their absolute discretion consider they
are required to disclose in order to comply with the Freedom of Information
Act 2000 and/or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and any
other statutory requirements and the Partners reserve the right to make such
disclosure without reference to the other parties.

13 TERMINATION
This MoU may be terminated:
a. By any party, listed above, giving the others two month’s written notice;
b. By each Partner immediately upon giving the Landowner written notice in
the event that the Landowner does not comply with its commitments under
this MoU, or becomes insolvent or there is a change of control of the
Landowner;
c. By any party immediately upon giving the other written notice in the event
that the parties have not agreed in writing that there is a Viable Scheme prior
to the expiry of the Initial Relevant Period.

14 CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION
If this MoU is terminated pursuant to 13 above:
a. The parties shall (save as set out below) be released from all future
commitment and obligations pursuant to this MoU with effect from the date of
termination;
8

Page 157

b. The parties shall not be released from any liability in respect of failure to
comply with their respective commitments prior to the date of termination.

15. COUNCILS’ ROLES
15.1 Nothing contained in this MoU shall prejudice or fetter the Councils’ roles,
functions or duties as local authorities (including as a highways authority), or
their abilities in relation to other schemes that may come forward on or
adjacent to the site. Furthermore nothing in this MoU is intended to represent
a service or works contract for the purposes of the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 and the Parties acknowledge that the Councils may be
required at any point to run a competitive process in accordance with the
requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 before entering into
contracts with any third party.
15.2 Nothing contained in this MoU will prejudice or fetter the Borough Council’s
roles, functions or duties as a planning authority, and should not be
interpreted as demonstrating an intention to approve any planning application
relating to the Site.

16. NO PARTNERSHIP
Each of the Parties is an independent body and nothing contained in this MoU
Understanding shall be construed to imply that there is any relationship
between the Parties of partnership, principal / agent or employer / employee.
No other party shall have the right to act on behalf of another nor to bind the
other by contract or otherwise except to the extent expressly committed by the
terms of this MoU.

Signed on behalf of Torr Vale Mills Limited
………………………………………………….
Dated………………………

9

Page 158

Signed on behalf of High Peak Borough Council
……………………………………………………..
Dated……………………..

Signed on behalf of Derbyshire County Council
………………………………………………………
Dated…………………………

Signed on behalf of Torr Vale Mill Building Preservation Trust
………………………………………………………
Dated…………………………….

Signed on behalf of Historic England
………………………………………………………
Dated…………………………….

10

Page 159

APPENDIX A:
THE SITE

11

Page 160

Page 161

APPENDIX B:
BUILDING F - SITE LOCATION

12

Page 162

Page 163

APPENDIX C:
SUPPORTING SCHEMATIC AXONOMETRIC

13

Page 164

Page 165

APPENDIX D:
SUPPORTING PLANS

14

Page 166

T
or
rVal
eMi
l
l
Lev
el
:01
(
NTS)

01

Page 167

Tor
rVal
eMi
l
l
Level
:00+0.
5
(
NTS)

0.
5
+
00

Page 168

Tor
rVal
eMi
l
l
Level
:01
(
NTS)

01

Page 169

Tor
rVal
eMi
l
l
Level
:02
(
NTS)

02

Page 170

Tor
rVal
eMi
l
l
Level
:03
(
NTS)

Lor
em I
psum

03

Page 171

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
The Executive
7 October 2021

TITLE:

Safer Walk and Ride Initiative

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Damien Greenhalgh- Deputy
Leader & Executive Councillor for
Regeneration, Tourism and Leisure

CONTACT OFFICER:

Sarah Porru – Head of Regeneration

WARDS INVOLVED:

Buxton Central

Appendices Attached –
A 1 Cycle Route Map Update Sept 2020
A 2 Buxton Walk and Cycle Routes - HPBC Site Specific
A 3 Buxton Walk and Ride Park Implications
A4 DCC DfT Active Travel Tranche 3 Proposal

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

This report is to update members on progress of Buxton Town Team’s
proposal to create a Walk and Ride Network in Buxton.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

To note the work of the Town Team to develop the Walk & Ride Network to
date and to note the potential implications for the Council if the project were to
be fully endorsed.

2.2

That ward members be consulted before any final decision is taken by the
Council.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

Buxton Town Team volunteers have developed a proposal for a Walk & Ride
Network through Buxton town centre which is designed to provide a pedestrian
and cycle link from residential areas to all schools and FE college, town
centre parks and two business areas (Waterswallows and Staden Lane)

Page 173

3.2

The Walk & Ride Network is a Buxton Town Team proposal. HPBC are not
leading or responsible for the project. DCC are the lead authority for the
project.

3.3

BTT stated objectives are to;






encourage a shared space concept for all and for each to
recognise that all have equal rights to move freely and safely.
to open up, experimentally, off road routes to allow people to
walk and cycle through and around the town – to work, education
and for shopping and appointments.
to gain further feedback on the Safer Walk & Ride Network
concept already planned
to develop a ‘new normal’ of movement through modal shift.
to reduce car use.

3.4

A map of the routes is attached at appendix A 1

3.5

The routes across Council land which would require consent for cycling are as
follows with summary comments from Council Service Development officers.
Full comments attached at appendix A 2;










Paths through Ashwood Park and Ashwood Park to Granby
Road: In general, although not built to accommodate cycling,
most of the routes through the park are acceptable if cycling is
agreed in principle. Signage would be needed, especially at
pinch points where paths cross or where visibility isn’t great.
Spring Gardens (currently one way in two halves) cycle in both
directions throughout length: DCC and HPBC to consider how
space could be allocated to minimise conflict with pedestrians/
shoppers. Would require DCC to do TRO (Traffic Regulation
Order).
Broad Walk - stopping up order in 1970s no right of way except
on foot: This route is probably the most physically accessible to
accommodate walking and cycling due to its width. However,
would need signage to help reduce conflict between
pedestrians/cyclists. Broad Walk is not owned by HPBC, so
permissions might be an issue here. DCC to pursue further with
legal at DCC.
Footpaths Buxton 56, 57,58 require HPBC permission for DCC
Public Rights of Way to resurface and take on maintenance:
Surface one of the routes across Temple Fields that is an
existing public right of way. Southerly footpath across Temple
Fields i.e. a short section of HP4/56 where it leaves DCC land
and the whole of HP4/57 to its junction with Fern Road (HP4/55).
Although not the most direct route for anyone heading across
Temple Fields between the A515 and Green Lane, it makes
more sense in terms of the longer-term ambition to provide a
route into Harpur Hill.
Footpath Buxton 55 from junction with Buxton 57 skirting

Page 174







Sherbrook wood via open space off Ferneydale Avenue (would
require liaison with DWT who manage the space): Part of this
route includes Ferneydale Local Nature Reserve. The Council
would need to be kept involved with the route if this can be
agreed by all parties.
Footpath 73 From Route 2 (Broad Walk) through Pavilion
Gardens to Burlington Rd: Broad Walk is not owned by HPBC,
so permissions might be an issue here. DCC to pursue further
with legal at DCC. This route is probably the most physically
accessible to accommodate walking and cycling due to its width.
However, would need signage to help reduce conflict between
pedestrians/ cyclists.
Path through Serpentine Burlington Road to St John’s Road:
This site is similar to Ashwood Park in terms of its layout with the
paths. There is little physical improvement on site if cycling is
approved in principle. Signage will be needed at entrances, and
at pinch points where paths cross/join and visibility is limited.
Footpath Buxton 66 – part of onward route to Cavendish Golf
Club and residential area around The Park Gadley Lane to St
John’s Road: If included, the issues would be similar to that of
Ashwood Park and The Serpentine – predominantly the need for
signage but no major physical improvements.

3.6

Council officers from a number of service areas have reviewed the proposed
routes with DCC Sustainable Travel officers (see identified issues Appendix 3)
and whilst promotion of sustainable transport and improved cycle and
pedestrian access are to be welcomed, there are some possible conflicts with
other town centre projects, pedestrian flow and access requirements and
existing highway infrastructure.

3.7

It is proposed that further work is required, led by DCC with support from Town
Team, to understand the route risks and hazards across Council land along
with financial risks and liability risks, to identify capital works required and to
understand the longer term management and maintenance implications. A
further report will be presented at this time.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The Safer Walk & Ride Network will contribute to the following aims of the
Corporate Plan 2019 – 2023 but is not a named Corporate priority project:



5.

Aim one: Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer,
cleaner High Peak
Aim four: To protect and improve the environment including responding
to the climate emergency

Alternative Options

Page 175

5.1

This report is for information only and therefore there are no alternative
options.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
There are no immediate implications from this report, but full
consideration of community safety and liabilities will need to be
considered before any decisions are taken to permit change of use
on Council owned property.

6.2

Workforce
Officer time from Regeneration, Parks & Leisure and Legal would
be required to review the routes and prepare recommendations.
This will have implications in terms of staff capacity to deliver on
identified corporate plan projects, especially in Regeneration.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
The routes would make it easier to move around Buxton for
residents who don’t have access to a vehicle but could adversely
impact on people with disabilities. High Peak Access Group has
previously opposed proposals for shared use pedestrian spaces.
Consultation with HPAG and an equality impact assessment will be
required and their views considered prior to any decision to support
change of use on Council owned property.

6.4

Financial Considerations
Cost and maintenance implications for any changes to support
proposals need to be fully investigated prior to any decision to
support change of use on Council owned property.

6.5

Legal
Byelaws and permissions will need to be reviewed for pedestrian
and cycle use.

6.6

Climate Change
Increase in walking and cycling could reduce vehicle carbon
emissions.

6.7

Consultation
DCC will be required to consult with Ward councillors, High Peak
Access Group and ensure full liaison with FHSF and HAZ Delivery
Boards and Project Managers. Initial public consultation on the
Buxton Town Team proposals has been completed as part of their
sustainable travel plan proposals. Further consultation will be
required if DCC are successful with the funding bid.

Page 176

6.8

Risk Assessment
The risk assessment of the routes is managed by Buxton Town
Team but a full risk assessment in terms of financial and legal risks
to the Council will need to be considered prior to any decision to
approve change of use for land in council ownership.

Neil Rodgers
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers
Buxton Town Team
https://www.buxtontownteam.org/safer-walkride-network
7.

Contact details
Sarah Porru
Head of Regeneration
sarah.porru@highpeak.gov.uk

Detail
Background

7.1

Buxton on the Move conference was held on 9th March 2016. From this
Buxton Town Team formed an Access, Parking, Traffic and Transport Group.
Having undertaken residents’ surveys, organised events and gathered a wide
range of data, BTT are developing a whole town Sustainable Travel Plan. A
major element of that is to encourage more walking and cycling to allow safe
and easy movement around town away from busy main roads.

7.2

Many towns are constrained by narrow streets with little prospect of installing
cycle lanes on the highway. Government advice is currently to walk or cycle
where possible to school or place of work to minimise risk of Covid
transmission.

7.3

Buxton is an important centre nationally for quarrying as well as being a busy
tourist destination surrounded by the Peak District National Park. There is also
a substantial housing development programme. This means that with narrow
streets and the necessary HGV movements, coupled with year-round tourism,
inexperienced cyclists maybe deterred from cycling.

7.4

There are currently five proposed routes:






Pump
Pump
Pump
Pump
Pump

Room to
Room to
Room to
Room to
Room to

Waterswallows with spur to Dove Holes
Fairfield via Morrison’s
Harpur Hilll with spur to Poole’s Cavern
Burbage with spur to Gadley Lane
Harpur Hill via Market Place and Staden

Page 177

7.5

The appendix A 2 Buxton Safer Walk and Cycle Routes - HPBC Site Specific
contains reviews of each route by DCC and HPBC officers

7.6

Summary of land ownership on the proposed routes
Area
Ashwood Park
Fairfield Common (track across golf
course)
Pavilion Gardens
Serpentine
Temple Fields
Footpath 66 to access Gadley Land
Routes on road
Spring Gardens
Conway’s DIY - Station Approach
Footpath 70 behind station

Ownership
HPBC
HPBC

Broadwalk

DCC investigating

HPBC
HPBC
HPBC
HPBC
DCC Highways
DCC Highways
Private ownership
DB Cargo

7.7

DCC would be responsible for project management and adopting the cycle
route management on public highways. Member consultation will be
undertaken by BTT as part of the wider sustainable travel plan consultation,
with further consultation via DCC if their funding proposals are successful.

7.8

Increased cycling, walking and reduced car use supports the aspiration of a
carbon neutral Borough by 2030 and DCC’s ambition of net zero carbon by
2050 or sooner.

7.9

The identified routes by the Buxton Town Team would benefit local people
wanting to make local daily journeys and can also link to wider cycle routes
such as the White Peak Loop and DCC Key Cycle Network and could
encourage more people to cycle and help ease congestion.

7.10

However, the proposed routes via pedestrianised roadways could also present
a potential conflict of use with objectives to increase pedestrian footfall and
dwell time within town centre and key tourism destinations and there is an
increased risk of pedestrian/cycle accidents.

7.11

Issues related to Conservation area status, associated approvals for any
signage or physical alterations and implications for road traffic flow if new
crossings are added also need further investigation.

7.12

A number of the proposed routes, notably at the western end of Spring
Gardens, the newly refurbished Crescent forecourt, and within Pavilion
Gardens have high levels of pedestrian use which could be therefore be
adversely impacted.

Page 178

7.13

In addition, the public realm is currently subject to both a Heritage Action Zone
and Future High Street Fund regeneration projects to encourage business
diversification, dwell time, increase visitor footfall and improve the heritage
setting of the area. The Town Team proposals must be considered in line with
this to ensure compatibility with wider aspirations to support business
sustainability and increased pedestrian footfall.

7.14

Whilst BTT had hoped to open up these routes on a trial basis in the short
term, to assess suitability and use, it is understood that this would not be
feasible without considerable capital works to make the routes safe and
usable.

7.15

DCC have submitted a speculative bid to the Department of Transport’s (DfT)
Active Travel Fund – Tranche 3 which could support delivery of the Buxton
Walk and Ride network if successful and if identified issues can be resolved
satisfactorily.

Page 179

This page is intentionally left blank

Buxton Mineral
Water Bottling
Plant
Waterswallows
Business Park

Access to
industrial estate
and quarries

Link to Monsal Trail
via Redgap Lane
and Woodale

Link to
Dove Holes
alongside A6

Route 1

Tongue Lane
Industrial
Estate
Route 2

Route 4

Access to
Fairfield
Estate

Page 181

Morrisons

Route 5
Cote Heath Park

Pooles Cavern
Country Park

Route 3

Link to
Derbyshire
Bridge via
Roman road

Staden Lane
Business Park

Exact Line
of Route to
be determined

Link to
High Peak Trail
via Staker Hill

Harpur Hill
Business Park

Link to
High Peak
Trail via
Staker Hill

This page is intentionally left blank

Buxton Safer Walk and Cycle Routes Action Plan

Page 183

Route 1 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to
Waterswallows;
spur to Dove
Holes

Lightwood Road
to A6 Fairfield
Common

Route 1 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to
Waterswallows;
spur to Dove
Holes

A6 Fairfield
Common to
Waterswallows
Road

PROPOSED
KCN – WPL
Section 17a

Owner

Issue

Proposed
interventions

HPBC Consideration

Includes use
of Glenmoor
Road and
sections of
footpaths
HP4/3, HP4/6,
HP4/1, and
HP4/77

Various

None at present. A
route should be
catered for in longer
term through the
possible housing
development and
provision of Pegasus
crossing/ new A6
roundabout.

Issues for consideration
but not imminent – will
need further input from
Planning and
Regeneration.

Via Byway
Open to All
Traffic (BOAT)
10 (HP4/10)

HPBC

Issues on route include
narrow sections of
footpath, steep gradients
etc. Buxton 1 – crosses
Network Rail structure.
Too narrow at western
end. Buxton 3 –
significant flight of steps
at eastern end. These
issues are difficult to
address.
Main issue is 1:10
gradient.
Surfaced track would
benefit from possible
downgrading to
restricted byway and
surface and drainage
improvements.A6
roundabout scheme
requires changes to
existing BOAT and will
include new bridleway
alignment extending
along the northern
boundary of the east and
west arms of the
roundabout and a
Pegasus crossing taking
the bridleway over the
A6 on the northern arm

On hold until new
controlled crossing/
A6 roundabout
installed. This will
facilitate crossing of
A6 for pedestrians,
cyclists, and horse
riders from BOAT
across golf course.

Issues for consideration
but not imminent – will
need further input from
Planning and
Regeneration.

JS to take discussion
to HPBC – for link
road to be amended
with addition of
refuge.
Substantial
construction needed

of the roundabout. A
new combined cycleway/
footway would also
follow this same
alignment as the
bridleway.
Could make it harder to
‘stop up’ for traffic if
resurfaced.

Page 184
Route 2 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Fairfield via
Morrison’s

Pavement from
opposite
Ashwood Park
entrance
(Fairfield Road
end) to Spring
Gardens

HPBC
DCC Highways

Spring Gardens is
currently one-way with
access restrictions so
traffic regulation orders
(TRO) would need to be
amended to allow twoway cycling from end to
end. Consideration
needed as to how space
can be allocated to
minimise conflict with
pedestrians/ shoppers.
Access through HPBC

to improve BOAT minimum 4.5m – 5m
wide, or possibly
lesser width with
passing places.
Landscaping could be
used as deterrent for
motor vehicles either
end. Design required
GM to raise with
Design.
BTT to explore
possible funding / inkind contributions
from Nestle 50% £ /
Lomas transport and
Tarmac materials
once engineers’
costings known.
Opportunity to
include cycling as
part of Future High
Streets project. DCC /
HPBC solution?

Agree solution with

Assets concern over

Page 185

public car park/ lorry
park off end of Spring
Gardens. Need to secure
a route through there.
HPBC assets section has
concerns about access
through this car/coach
park and most
appropriate route
through – this area
would be included in the
report needed to seek
collective permission to
use HPBC land.

HPBC through Spring
Gardens and car
park.

Splitter island not
designed for use by
pedestrians or cyclists.
(Busy junction with
traffic backing up along
Bakewell Road from
roundabout). Evidence of
HGVs mounting
pavement when turning
left into Bakewell Road
from Fairfield Road.

Cross where tactile
paving is provided
away from
roundabout.

Parking spaces obscure
park entrance on
Bakewell Road making it
difficult to cross directly
into park.

New TRO and public
consultation to
amend parking /
remove a space. P-V
surveys needed and
feasibility how best

cycling through car
parks. Review route
option to pavement
around Sylvan car park
as part of DCC DfT
tranche 3 bid

Route 2 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Fairfield via
Morrison’s

Paths through
Ashwood Park
and Ashwood
Park to Granby
Road

HPBC

Surfaced paths through
Ashwood Park a bit
narrow, generally ok.
Maintenance issues and
conflict with pedestrians
to be managed.
Ashwood Park steps
from Fairfield.

to cross.
HPBC report to
Economy & Growth
on 16/9

Page 186

Stretches where
tarmac ramps could
be achieved, other
sections where large
trees next to the
handrail and
insufficient room.
Improve the surface
of informal path(s)
bypassing lower
steps.

In general, although not
built to accommodate
cycling, most of the
routes through the park
are acceptable if cycling
is agreed in principle.
Signage would be
needed, especially at
pinch points where
paths cross or where
visibility isn’t great.
Main issue here is the
steps to Fairfield estate.
It would not be feasible
to remove them and
replace with fully DDA
compliant ramp, so
there needs to be an
alternative to allow
bikes to be
pushed/wheeled at the
side of the steps. BTT
suggest a simple
‘trough’ solution but
consideration should
also be given to creating
more of a ‘ramp’ at the
side of the steps which
would accommodate
pushchairs too, if we

Page 187

Route 2 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Fairfield via
Morrison’s

Spring Gardens
(currently one
way in two
halves) cycle in
both directions
throughout
length

‘The Buxton
Boulevard’

DCC Highways

Route 2 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Fairfield via
Morrison’s

Permission to
cycle The
Crescent both
ways

PROPOSED
KCN – WPL
Section 17a

DCC Highways

‘The Buxton
Boulevard’

Route 3 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Harpur Hill;
spur to Poole’s
Cavern

Footpath Buxton
83 – Broad Walk
(Hartington Road
to Burlington
Road)

PROPOSED
KCN –WPL
Section 22
‘The Buxton
Boulevard’

Unclear.
Shown as
adopted
highway on Dmaps

Currently one-way and
vehicle access
restrictions so Traffic
Regulation Orders would
need to be amended to
allow cyclists through
from end to end.

DCC and HPBC (Lisa
Hooley) to consider
how space could be
allocated to minimise
conflict with
pedestrians/
shoppers.
Would require DCC
to do TRO.
Temporary TRO provides Make better
one way from The
provision for cyclists
Square/ Hall Bank end.
through The
Road has been narrowed Crescent. Requires a
and pavement widened TRO to permit twoaround Pump House.
way cycling through a
Current design makes no contraflow
provision for cyclists.
arrangement –
The developer is
consultation would
unresponsive so DCC will be needed.
discuss internally how to
deal with this issue.
Broad Walk - stopping up
order in 1970s no right of
way except on foot.
Crossing of Burlington
Road – improvements
needed for pedestrian
and cyclist priority /
safety. Landownership
unclear – so permissions

Pre consultation
underway regarding
a Section 3 Cycle
Track Order (1984) to
permit cycles to use
the Broad Walk.
There is a
consultation
procedure to follow.

are going to make some
form of alteration.
Public realm
improvements as part
of FHSF?

Broad Walk is not
owned by HPBC, so
permissions might be an
issue here. Carol at DCC
is going to pursue
further with legal at
DCC.
This route is probably
the most physically

might be an issue.
SC looking into the
bylaws for Pavilion
Gardens given the
ownership issues to see
if HPBC could allow
cycling through the
Gardens itself on a
specific route – waiting
to hear back from Legal.

If objections are
received, the matter
will have to be
determined at public
inquiry.

accessible to
accommodate walking
and cycling due to its
width. However, would
need signage to help
reduce conflict between
pedestrians/cyclists.

Remove fence to
create more width
and resurface. Check
that Children’s

N/A – although is the
link across Temple
Fields.

Page 188

Direct cyclists
approaching from the
Crescent slightly uphill
across NW end of Hall
Bank to cross into Broad
Walk away from 4-way
road junction.
Public Footpath (HP4/83)
need landowner's
permission for use by
cyclists. PRoW– ok and in
use today.
Signage to help reduce
conflict.
Route 3 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Harpur Hill;
spur to Poole’s

Footpath Buxton
58 (Green Lane
to junction with
Buxton 56)

KCN

Part of route
has no official
status. PRoW
team has

Onward route to junction
with Footpath 56 not all
recorded as official
PRoW but is used by

Cavern

Page 189

Route 3 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Harpur Hill;
spur to Poole’s
Cavern

recently
surfaced part
of FP 58 from
Green Lane
past entrance
into Buxton
Junior school
grounds.

Footpaths
Buxton 56 and
57 to junction
with Buxton 55
(Fern Road)

KCN

Onward route HPBC
across Temple
Fields muddy
– would
create good
link if
surfacing can
be continued
in direction of
Harpur Hill.

pedestrians and
occasional cyclist, as well
as horse riders. Possibly
intended as an
alternative to public
footpaths across the
school playing fields but
never formally diverted.

Services are okay
with this and let
school know when
work is planned –
path will need to be
closed while work
takes place.

DCC Children’s Services
okay with route
improvements and
would encourage it if
PRoW can take on future
maintenance. PRoW 56,
57 & 58 – crosses green
fields. Could use old
order.
As above. HPBC Planning
have confirmed that
approval would not be
required for
enhancements to the
existing routes across
Temple Fields as it would
be covered under Part 12
of the GPDO as it would
comprise “maintenance
or improvement “of
works on land belonging
to the Council.
Intention is to surface
2.5m width for cyclists

Resolve FP status
first. Jenny Webster
DCC Education to see
what school say and
reconvene further
meeting. GM will get
better map done.

Surface one of the
routes across Temple
Fields that is an
existing public right
of way rather than
create yet another
one. Preference
would be for the
most southerly
footpath across
Temple Fields i.e. a
short section of
HP4/56 where it
leaves DCC land and
the whole of HP4/57

If cycling across HPBC
land is agreed, then I
think we would
welcome improvements
to this route across
Temple Fields, to make
it generally more
accessible and to
provide that link to the
schools from Harpur
Hill.
Carol has obtained
some approximate costs
from Groundwork
which are in the region

Page 190

and horse riders to be
able to use the footpath
on a concessionary
bridleway basis with a
view to possibly
dedicating it as a public
bridleway. PRoW 56, 57
& 58 – crosses green
fields (pasture).
HPBC preference for
sandstone/gravel path
(there is possible support
from Tarmac for
materials).

Route 3 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Harpur Hill;
spur to Poole’s
Cavern

Footpath Buxton
55 (from
junction with
Buxton 57 to
entrance to
Buxton Civic

KCN

Where does it
go from here
– through
Sherwood
Plantation
and land to

DCC, HPBC and
BCA

BCA/DCC not keen to
grant permission for
cyclists through wood.
Alternative would be to
re-route around wood
though this would be

to its junction with
Fern Road (HP4/55).
Although not the
most direct route for
anyone heading
across Temple Fields
between the A515
and Green Lane, it
makes more sense in
terms of the longerterm ambition to
provide a route into
Harpur Hill. Also, this
seemed to be the
one which was
becoming muddier.
A) Deal with site as
whole
B) Proceed with
direct route
GM to investigate
PRoW background.
Engineers design and
costing needed. LTP
pot for engineer
time?
Explore funding for
feasibility work on
route options to
Grindlow Road,
Harpur Hill to
connect with WPL

of £53,000 for a
sandstone path.
If the path was
improved, long term
maintenance would
need to be agreed and
this is something Carol
is looking at with PRoW.
Consideration for the TT
to apply to for external
funds – DET/ Tarmac/
Suez. Could funds be
available from Public
Health in terms of
promoting walking/PA?
I have asked the
question of DCC
Education Services
about the Healthy Pupil
Fund.

Part of this route
includes Ferneydale
LNR. We would need to
be kept involved with
the route of this can be
agreed by all parties.

Association
(BCA) Sherbrook
wood just over
the cattle grid)
near Fern Lodge

Page 191

Route 4 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Burbage; spur
to Gadley Lane

Footpath Buxton
73

west of
Ferneydale
Avenue
towards
Harpur Hill
Road ???

From Route 2
(Broad Walk)
through
Pavilion
Gardens to
Burlington Rd

longer-term. Propose a
walk / accessible path
through Sherbrook to
Harpur Hill.
The open space in the
ownership of HPBC off
Ferneydale Avenue is
designated Local Nature
Reserve and is managed
by Derbyshire Wildlife
Trust. Would need to
engage with DWT
regarding any proposed
routes (SC).
Need options from
engineer’s perspective
first.
HPBC

spur at Parks Inn.

UoD to look at for
BTT September 2021.
Tina to approach
riding school to see if
interested in working
together.

Uses Route 3 to access
FP73. Need HPBC
permission for use by
cyclists.
PRoW – in use today.
Surfaced path - through
Pavilion Gardens.
Crossing of Burlington
Road - See above Route
3 for comments.

Not sure as to what
physical improvements,
if any, would be
needed.

Liaise with Highways
to improve
Burlington Road
crossing.

Same comments as per
Route 3 above -Broad
Walk is not owned by
HPBC, so permissions
might be an issue here.
Carol at DCC is going to
pursue further with
legal at DCC.
This route is probably
the most physically
accessible to
accommodate walking
and cycling due to its
width. However, would
need signage to help

reduce conflict between
pedestrians/cyclists.

Page 192

The route along
Jordan’s Walk towards
Burlington Road is
narrower than the
Broad Walk, but would
be ok for dual use
without any physical
improvements. Signage
would be needed
especially at the pinch
point where there is a
footpath crossing from
the toddler play area to
the lake and kiosk.
Route 4 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Burbage; spur
to Gadley Lane

Path through
Serpentine

Burlington
Road to St
John’s Road

HPBC

Need HPBC permission.
Consideration of
maintenance issues and
safe shared use.
Crossing of St John’s
Road to allow access
onto Buxton Footpath 66
and onwards to Long Hill.
Improvements to Gadley
Lane needed.

Repairs to surfacing
and appropriate
signage needed HPBC.
DCC will put in two
drop kerbs to
facilitate access (both
sides of St John’s
Road).

This site is similar to
Ashwood Park in terms
of it’s layout with the
paths. There is little
physical improvement
on site if cycling is
approved in principle.
Signage will be needed
at entrances, and at
pinch points where
paths cross/join and
visibility is limited.
There is a section of
footpath at the western

end of the site which
leads onto St.John’s
road on part of this
route, which would
benefit from resurfacing as it gets very
muddy.

Page 193

Route 4 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Burbage; spur
to Gadley Lane

Route 4 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Burbage; spur
to Gadley Lane

Pavement along
St John’s Road
(North side [Golf
course side]
from entrance to
Serpentine to
Old Macclesfield
Road)
Footpath Buxton
66 – part of
onward route to
Cavendish Golf
Club and
residential area
around The Park

Gadley Lane
to St John’s
Road

DCC Highways

Not feasible due to width None at present.
restrictions to widen
footway. Would have to
use road as it is.

HPBC

Would need HPBC
permission to use
Footpath 66 to access
Gadley Lane. This is
adopted highway but has
narrow footbridge over
stream.

Would be a spur at
present but should
monies for the safety
work on Manchester
Road/Long Hill
materialise then it
would link with the
proposed off-road
cycle way.

There is also a short set
of steps leading onto St.
John’s Road and
consideration would be
needed as to how this is
addressed – same
solution as to Ashwood
Park?
N/A

Page 194

Buxton Town Team Walk and Ride Network Project – Park Issues
Route

Owner

Park/Open Space

Issue

Actions

Route 2 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Fairfield via
Morrisons

HPBC

Paths through
Ashwood Park up
to Granby Road.

None of the parks were designed and laid
out to accommodate cyclists so in most
cases the existing paths are quite narrow.
Most of the paths in Ashwood Park are in
reasonable condition and would not require
investment to allow cycling. There are
potential pinch points where paths cross and
visibility is limited for pedestrians so clear
signage will be needed.

Clear signage will be required
through the park – see DCC
Phase 1 Signage Plan.

Page 195

Main concern in Ashwood is the path and
steps from the far end near Morrisons up to
Granby Road. After assessment of this whole
stretch there is no one solution to make this
section usable by bikes due to fencing and
large trees along the whole stretch. There
would be significant costs involved for any
work to this pathway. There are some small
desire lines towards the bottom section
which show where bikes are cutting into the
park and these could be resurfaced.

Route 3 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Harpur Hill;
spur to Poole’s
Cavern

Ownership Pavilion Gardens unclear
Broadwalk

This route is probably the most accessible to
accommodate both walking and cycling due
to its width.
Stopping up order in 1970s created a ‘no

Comment

May need to
manage public
perception
regarding the
section up to
Granby Road to
make it clear this is
not an accessible
path for bikes, as
this could be open
Minor resurfacing works could to criticism as part
be undertaken to desire lines – of the route.
approx. £5,000.
Consideration of installation of
cycle stands to encourage
people to spend time in the
park – approx. £1,000.

Clear signage will be needed
to manage potential conflict
between pedestrians and
cyclists.
Will need to consult with

DCC to lead on Pre
consultation
regarding a Section
3 Cycle Track Order
(1984) to permit

right of way’ except on foot however Legal
opinion is that cycling would have been
permitted previously for many years.

Conservation Officer in terms
of Grade II* listed status.

Route Across
Temple Fields Footpaths Buxton
56 and 57 to
junction with
Buxton 55 (Fern
Road)
route across
Temple Fields
muddy –

Very muddy route used by walkers, cyclists
and horse riders on a concessionary basis
with a view to possibly dedicating it as a
public bridleway – it links to Buxton Rising
School.
Would welcome improvements to this route
across Temple Fields to make it generally
more accessible and to provide a link to the
schools from Harpur Hill.

Would need to resurface one
of the routes across Temple
Fields that is an existing public
right of way rather than create
a new one, with countryside
path surfacing.
Estimated cost £53,000.

DCC, HPBC Footpath Buxton
and BCA
55 (from junction
with Buxton 57 to
entrance to
Buxton Civic
Association (BCA)
Sherbrook wood
just over the
cattle grid) near

BCA/DCC not keen to grant permission for
cyclists through wood. Alternative would be
to re-route around wood though this would
be longer-term.
The open space in the ownership of HPBC off
Ferneydale Avenue is designated Local
Nature Reserve and is managed by
Derbyshire Wildlife Trust. Assets deal with
DWT and would need to engage with them

Can BTT arrange engineering
feasibility for a multi-user offroad route (walkers, cyclists
and horse riders) from Fern
Road near riding school to
Grinlow Road, Harpur Hill to
connect with WPL spur at
Parks Inn?

HPBC

cycles to use the
Broad Walk which
would formalise use
for cycling. There is
a consultation
procedure to
follow. If objections
are received, the
matter will have to
be determined at
public inquiry.

Page 196

DCC liaising with PRoW team
as ongoing maintenance will
lie with them.
Part of this route
includes Ferneydale
LNR. We would
need to be kept
involved with the
route of this can be
agreed by all
parties. Not sure as
to what physical

Route 4 - Pump
Rooms, Buxton
to Burbage; spur
to Gadley Lane

HPBC

Fern Lodge

regarding any proposed routes.

From Route 2
(Broad Walk)
through Pavilion
Gardens to
Burlington Rd –
Jordan’s Walk

Jordan’s Walk is not designed for both
cycling and pedestrians and some areas are
narrow and it is a busy route through the
Pavilion Gardens. The surface is in good
condition and would not require investment
to allow cycling. There are potential pinch
points where paths cross and visibility is
limited for pedestrians so clear signage will
be needed.

Tina to speak to riding school
in New Year to see if
interested in working
together.
Clear signage will be required
to manage potential conflict
with pedestrians and cyclists –
see DCC Phase 1 Signage Plan.

Liaise with Highways about
any measures to improve
Burlington Road crossing

Page 197

Consideration needs to be given crossing
Burlington Road into Serpentine Walks.
HPBC

Path through
Serpentine Walks
from
Burlington Road
to St John’s Road

This site is similar to Ashwood Park in terms
of its layout with the paths. There is little
physical improvement needed on site if
cycling is approved in principle.

Clear signage will be required
to manage potential conflict
with pedestrians and cyclists –
see DCC Phase 1 Signage Plan.

There is a small section of footpath at the
western end of the site which leads onto St.
John’s road on part of this route, which
would benefit from re-surfacing as it gets
very muddy.

Resurfacing section of
footpath – approx.£3,000

There is also a short set of steps leading onto
St. John’s Road and consideration would be
needed as to how this is addressed.

Full accessible compliant path
would not be feasible. Option
is to install a narrow ramp to
the side of the steps to push
or wheel a bike whist cutting

Consideration of installation of cycle stands

improvements, if
any, would be
needed.
This route could be
seen as the ‘formal’
cycling route
through the Pavilion
Gardens park, thus
discouraging use
along other paths in
the park.

HPBC

Footpath Buxton
66 – part of
onward route to
Cavendish Golf
Club and
residential area
around The Park,
Gadley Lane to St
John’s Road

to encourage people to spend time in the
park – approx. £1,000.

back vegetation – approx.
£2,000

Footpath 66 to access Gadley Lane is an
adopted highway but has a narrow
footbridge over the stream which may cause
conflict with pedestrians.

Similar issue to narrow
footbridge in Ashwood Park
which is close to the crossing
at Bakewell Road. Clear
signage would be required but
no major physical
improvements are required.

Page 198

Page 199

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 201

Agenda Item 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 203

This page is intentionally left blank

